
 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

#plymplanning 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Thursday 14 April 2022 

4.00 pm 

Council House, Plymouth 

 

Members: 

Councillor R Smith, Chair 

Councillor Wakeham, Vice Chair 

Councillors Corvid, Cresswell, Derrick, Dr Mahony, Morris, Nicholson, Partridge, Shayer, 

Stevens, Stoneman and Tuffin. 

 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 

 

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 

Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 

recording for the webcast. 

 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 

 

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 

process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings 

 

 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 Oversight and Governance  

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

Please ask for  Democratic Support 

T 01752 668000 

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 05 April 2022 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

OFFICIAL 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 

1. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.  

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

3. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 

2022. 

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Questions from Members of the Public    

  

 The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 

accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 

words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 

10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 

of a written response. 

  

6. Planning Applications for consideration    

  

 The Service Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 

asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 

and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

  

 6.1. 79 Dean Hill, Plymouth, PL9 9AF - 22/00195/FUL (Pages 5 - 14) 

   

  Applicant:  Mrs Hayley Johns 

Ward:   Plymstock Radford 

Recommendation: Grant Conditionally  
 

   

 6.1. Land at Sugar Quay, East Quay, Sutton Harbour, Plymouth - 

20/02046/FUL 

(Pages 15 - 90) 

   

  Applicant:  Sutton Harbour Group 

Ward:   Sutton and Mount Gould 



 

OFFICIAL 

Recommendation: Grant conditionally subject to with delegated 

authority to Director of 

Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to 

refuse the application if the 

S106 is not signed within the agreed 

timeframes (3 months) 
 

   

7. Planning Enforcement:   (Pages 91 - 92) 

 

8. Planning Application Decisions Issued   (Pages 93 - 

108) 

  

 The Service Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers 

delegated to him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued from 

07 March 2022 to 04 April 2022, including – 

 

1)  Committee decisions; 

2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated; 
3)  Applications withdrawn; 

4)  Applications returned as invalid. 

 

Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available to view online at: 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

9. Appeal Decisions   (Pages 109 - 

110) 

  

 A schedule of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from the 

decision of the City Council will be submitted.  Please note that these Delegated Planning 

Applications are available to view online at:  

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Committee Thursday 17 March 2022 

OFFICIAL 

Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 17 March 2022 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor R Smith, in the Chair. 

Councillor Wakeham, Vice Chair. 

Councillors Corvid, Cresswell, Derrick, Dr Mahony, Morris, Nicholson, Partridge, 

Shayer, Stevens, Stoneman and Tuffin. 

 

Also in attendance: Stuart Wingfield(Head of Development Management), Julie 

Parkin(Lawyer), Jamie Sheldon (Senior Governance Advisor), Alistair 

Wagstaff(Strategic Developments Manager) & Jake Metcalfe (Democratic Support 

Advisor) 

 

The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 5.34 pm. 

 

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 

so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 

whether these minutes have been amended. 

 

89. Declarations of Interest   

 
There were no declarations of interest.   

 

90. Minutes   

 

Agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2022. 

 

91. Chair's Urgent Business   

 

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business. 

 

92. Questions from Members of the Public   

 

There were no questions from members of the public. 

 

93. Planning Applications for consideration   

 

The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 

local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 

Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 

1990. 

 

94. Former Western National Bus Depot, Embankment Road, Plymouth, PL4 

9LQ - 21/00218/FUL   

 

GoldmixLTD 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

Planning Committee Thursday 17 March 2022 

OFFICIAL 

Decision:  

Granted Conditionally subject to a S106 with delegated authority to Service 

Director of Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to refuse the application if the S106 

is not signed within the agreed timeframes (3 months), subject to amendments to 

Condition 6 and 16 to include  delegated authority to the Service Director of 

Strategic Planning and Infrastructure in consultation with Ward Councillors and a 

new condition to require a management plan for the management of vehicles on site 

related to the drive-thru restaurants,  

 

The management plan had been proposed by Councillor Nicholson and seconded by 

Councillor Stoneman. 

 

Councillor Stevens had proposed amendments to conditions 6 and 16 which had 

been seconded by Councillor Nicholson.  

 
 

(The Committee heard from Councillor Mrs Mary Aspinall, Ward Councillor) 

(The Committee heard from Ms Stewart, agent) 

 

95. Planning Enforcement   

 

The Committee noted the Planning Enforcement Report. 

 

96. Planning Application Decisions Issued   

 

The Committee noted the report from the Service Director for Strategic Planning 

and Infrastructure on decisions issued since the last meeting.  

 

97. Appeal Decisions   

 

The Committee noted the schedule of appeal decisions made by the Planning 

Inspectorate. 

 

VOTING SCHEDULE  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



 

 

OFFICIAL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 17 March 2022  

 

SCHEDULE OF VOTING  
 

Minute number and 

Application 

Voting for  Voting 

against 

Abstained Absent 

due to 

interest 

declared 

Absent 

6.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Former Western National 

Bus Depot, Embankment 

Road, Plymouth, PL4 9LQ 

- 21/00218/FUL 

 

Granted Conditionally 

subject to a S106 with 

delegated authority to 

Service Director of 
Strategic Planning and 

Infrastructure to refuse 

the application if the S106 

is not signed within the 

agreed timeframes (3 

months), subject to 

amendments to Condition 

6 and 16 to include 

 delegated authority to the 

Service Director of 

Strategic Planning and 

Infrastructure 

in consultation with Ward 

Councillors and a new 

condition to require a 

management plan for the 

management of vehicles 

on site related to the 

drive-thru restaurants,  

 

The management plan had 

been proposed by 

Councillor Nicholson and 

seconded by Councillor 

Stoneman. 

 

Councillor Stevens had 

proposed amendments to 

conditions 6 and 16 which 

had been seconded by 
Councillor Nicholson.  

 

 

Councillors 

Cresswell, 

Corvid, Derrick, 

Mahony, Morris, 

Nicholson, 

Partridge, Shayer, 

Smith, Stevens, 

Stoneman, Tuffin 

and Wakeham. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 1 Minute Annex Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 

Site Address 79 Dean Hill  Plymouth  PL9 9AF       

Proposal 

Two-storey extension to south east (side) elevation, single storey 
extension to south west (front) elevation, single storey extension to 
north east (rear) and north west (side) elevations and detached garage 
and additional upper floor side window to south west elevation of 
main house 

Applicant Mrs Hayley Johns 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    07.04.2022 
Committee 
Date 14.04.2022 

Extended Target Date 21.04.2022   

Decision Category PCC Employee 

Case Officer Mr Mike Stone 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 
Number   22/00195/FUL  Item 01 

Date Valid 10.02.2022  Ward PLYMSTOCK RADFORD 

Page 5 Agenda Item 6.1



 

 

 
 
This application comes before the Planning Committee because the applicant is an 
employee of Plymouth City Council. 
 
1. Description of Site 
Number 79 Dean Hill is a detached, two storey dwellinghouse set in its own grounds near the 
junction with Church Road in the Plymstock and Radford Neighbourhood. The property is set back 
just over 12 metres from and is at an angle to Dean Hill. On the south west elevation closest to the 
road there is a large conservatory. The applicants describe this as the front elevation with the 
conservatory acting as a lobby/hallway with the main front door.  
 
As well as the conservatory, there is also a small, single storey extension on the south east (side) 
elevation and a larger mono-pitched roof extension on the north east (rear) elevation. Two metres 
to the south east of the house is a large detached garage. There is a high stone boundary wall 

Page 6



 

 

running along Dean Hill that is topped with a stepped, timber fence bringing the height up to roughly 
2 metres. 
 
2. Proposal Description 
Two-storey extension to south east (side) elevation, single storey extension to south west (front) 
elevation, single storey extension to north east (rear) and North West (side) elevations and 
detached garage and additional upper floor side window to south west elevation of main house. 
 
The existing small single storey extension on the south east side elevation would be demolished and 
replaced with a two storey one. The two storey extension would be 4.5 metres deep and 7 metres 
wide, the eaves height would be 5.2 metres and roof height 8.2 metres, the same as on the main 
house. 
 
The existing conservatory on the south west (front) elevation would be demolished and replaced 
with a single storey extension. The single storey extension would be 8.3 metres wide and just over 2 
metres deep. It would have a hipped, pitched roof 2.2 metres to the eaves and 3.2 metres to the 
ridge. This would form a new front entrance lobby space. 
 
The single storey extension on the north east elevation would largely follow the footprint of an 
existing extension but would continue 3.7 metres past the North West elevation of the house to 
form a garden room. Side steps would lead down to the garden. 
 
The new garage would be located just south west of the main house. The garage would be 6.6 
metres by 5.3 metre with a 4 metre high pitched roof.  
 
3. Pre-application enquiry 
There was no pre-application enquiry. 
 
4. Relevant planning history 
88/01781/FUL - Extension to dwelling house - Granted Conditionally. 
 
83/01242/FUL - Extension to dwelling house to form a granny flat with integral garage - Granted 
Conditionally. 
 
83/03931/FUL - Extension to dwelling house and erection of garage - Granted Conditionally. 
 
5. Consultation responses 
Local Highway Authority - no objections. 
 
6. Representations 
One letter of representation was received that objected to the application on the grounds that an 
upper floor window would overlook their garden and habitable room windows. Following 
negotiations and amendments to the plans, the objector withdrew their objection. 
 
7. Relevant Policy Framework 
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For the purposes of 
decision making, as on March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 
2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council 
and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor 
National Park. 

Page 7



 

 

 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), National Design Guidance, the scale and urgency of the 
climate change emergency, and Plymouth City Council's Declaration on Climate Emergency (March 
2019) for a carbon neutral city by 2030. Additionally, the following planning documents are also 
material considerations in the determination of the application:  
 
o The Plymouth and South West Devon Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2020). 
 
8. Analysis 
 
1.  This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the adopted 

Joint Local Plan, the Framework and other material considerations as set out in Section 7. 
The relevant policies are: DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity), DEV20 (Place shaping and 
the quality of the built environment) and DEV29 (Specific provisions relating to transport). 

 
2. Principle of Development 

Joint Local Plan policies indicate that the proposal is acceptable in principle. 
 
3. Negotiations Undertaken 

The original plans submitted were considered unacceptable and the assessment has been 
based on the revised plans. 

 
4. Visual Impact 

Officers have considered the visual impact of the development against the guidance in the 
SPD and consider it acceptable.  

 
5. The Permitted Development Technical Guidance document defines the Principal elevation as 

follows: 
"In most cases the principal elevation will be that part of the house which fronts (directly or 
at an angle) the main highway serving the house (the main highway will be the one that sets 
the postcode for the house concerned). It will usually contain the main architectural features 
such as main bay windows or a porch serving the main entrance to the house. Usually, but 
not exclusively, the principal elevation will be what is understood to be the front of the 
house.  

 
6. There will only be one principal elevation on a house. Where there are two elevations which 

may have the character of a principal elevation, for example on a corner plot, a view will need 
to be taken as to which of these forms the principal elevation." 

 
7. The applicants consider the south west elevation with the conservatory to be the front of the 

house. It is the part of the house closest to the main road from which the address is derived 
and the conservatory serves as a large "porch" and includes the entrance door to the 
property. The main architectural features are the twin full height bay windows on the North 
West elevation, this faces the garden and could not be considered the principal elevation. The 
case officer accepts that the south west elevation is the front of the house. 

 
8. Front extension (South west elevation) 

The SPD says that extensions that project forward of the existing house will generally be 
resisted. This guidance is designed to protect the character of a street where there is a clear 
and defined building line. The subject property is a detached building in its own grounds, set 
well back from the main road and away from other residential development. 

 

Page 8



 

 

9. The new front extension would replace the current conservatory. Plans from 1983 show the 
conservatory in place on the front elevation of the house. The case officer considers that the 
removal of the large conservatory, which is clearly visible from the road, and its replacement 
with a front extension of a more traditional appearance would result in an improvement to 
the street-scene. 

 
10. Two storey side extension (south east elevation) 

The SPD says that side extensions should generally be subordinate to the main house. This is 
achieved by having the roof set down and the front elevation setback at least one metre. This 
would not be the case here with only a 500mm setback from the front elevation and the roof 
height the same as on the main house. The SPD does allow for exceptions to the guidelines 
for detached buildings, like the subject property, that have their own individual design. 

 
11. The property is detached and well separated from neighbours, so the case officer has no 

"terracing effect" concerns. 
 
12. The other single storey extensions at the rear (North East) and the side (North West) would 

not be visible from the public street. 
 
13. The front (south west) elevation of the two-storey extension and the single storey front 

extension would be finished in natural stone. Natural stone forms the boundary wall and is a 
feature of the immediate area. The Case Officer does not feel that this would have a harmful 
impact on the character and appearance of the area. A pre-commencement condition 
requiring details of the proposed stone to be approved by the LPA is recommended. The rest 
of the development would use materials to match the main house. 

 
14. New garage 

The new garage would be built roughly one metre in front of the house. The SPD states that 
"in urban areas, garages in front gardens will generally be resisted as these are prominent 
sites and can detract from the street-scene." There is a high stone boundary wall running 
along Springfield Road topped with a timber fence to bring the height to roughly 2 metres 
that would screen the bulk of the garage. There is no planning history for the timber fencing, 
but evidence from Google Street View show it in place since at least July 2009, so exempt 
from any compliance action.  

 
15. The Case Officer does not consider that there would be any significant harm to the street 

scene and the impact would be less than from the current large conservatory. A condition 
requiring the boundary wall to be retained to protect the visual amenity of the area and an 
incidental use condition for the garage are recommended. 

 
16. Amenity 

Officers have considered the impact on neighbouring amenity against the guidance in the SPD 
and consider it acceptable.  

 
17. No new upper level windows are proposed facing the neighbour to the south east, 102 

Church Road. New upper floor windows in the south west elevation of the two storey 
extension and one additional window in the main house would overlook the main road. On 
the north east elevation of the extension, the upper floor bedroom window would face the 
rear garden of 102A Church Road. 

 
18. A letter of objection from 102A Church Road raised concerns about overlooking from this 

window. Following negotiations, an amended scheme was submitted that made all the upper 
floor windows facing 102A obscure glazed and added a roof light for the amenity of the 

Page 9



 

 

occupants of the bedroom. The objector expressed their satisfaction with the amendment 
and withdrew their objection. 

 
19. Given the good levels of separation between the subject property and the neighbour to the 

North West and the high boundary wall to the north east, the case officer does not feel that 
either of these single storey extensions present any problems in terms of neighbour amenity. 

 
9. Human Rights 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 
 
10. Local Finance Considerations 
Not applicable. 
 
11. Planning Obligations 
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 
 
No planning obligations have been sought in respect of this application. 
 
12. Equalities and Diversities 
This planning application has had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard to the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and has concluded that the application does not cause discrimination on 
the grounds of gender, race and disability. 
 
13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision 
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal is acceptable and accords with policies DEV1, DEV20 and 
DEV29 and national guidance and is recommended for approval. 
 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 10.02.2022 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally. 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

  
   Existing and Proposed Plans 3079 - Rev A  received 24/03/22 
   Site Plan 1022022 -  received 10/02/22 
   Location Plan 1022022 -  received 10/02/22 
   Garage elevations and section 22022022 -  received 22/02/22 

Page 10



 

 

 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019). 
 
 
 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 3 CONDITION EXTERNAL MATERIALS 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external surfaces of the front (south west elevation) of the two storey extension and the single 
storey front (south west) extension hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance with 
Policy DEV20 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2019) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Justification: 
To ensure that the proposed external materials for the development are acceptable to the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
 
 4 CONDITION: MATCHING MATERIALS 
 
The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the two-storey side 
extension (south east), rear extension (north east), single storey side extension (North West) and 
garage hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the appearance of the existing building and the 
character of the area in accordance with Policy DEV20 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan (2019) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 5 CONDITION: USE RESTRICTION (GARAGE) 
 
The proposed private motor garage shall only be used for purposes incidental to the enjoyment of 
the dwellinghouse as such and shall at no time be converted to, or occupied as a residential annexe. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

 

Reason: 
To ensure that no adverse effect upon the amenities of the neighbourhood may arise out of the 
proposed development in accordance with Policies DEV1, DEV20 and DEV29 of the Plymouth and 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2019) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
6 CONDITION: EXISTING BOUNDARY TREATMENT TO BE RETAINED AND 

PROTECTED 
 
The stone boundary wall along Springfield Road shall be retained, protected and properly maintained 
at all times thereafter. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the existing boundary treatment is retained, protected and properly maintained 
thereafter to screen the visual appearance of the proposed garage in accordance with Policy DEV20 
of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2019) and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 7 CONDITION: OBSCURE GLAZING 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 and Class A of Part 1 to Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), the windows at first floor level in the 
north east elevation of the two-storey extension and the north east elevation of the main house, 
shall at all times be obscure glazed (the glass of which shall have an obscurity rating of not less than 
level 5) and non-opening unless the parts of the window which can opened are more than 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed. 
 
Reason: 
In order to protect the privacy enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjacent dwelling in accordance with 
Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2019), as permitted by article 
4 paragraph 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015, as amended. 
 
 8 CONDITION: NO FURTHER WINDOWS 
 
No additional windows or openings shall be inserted into the rear (north east) elevation of the 
enlarged property at the first floor level without the grant of a further specific permission from the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: 
In order to protect the privacy enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjacent dwelling in accordance with 
Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2019). 
 
 9 CONDITION: BIODIVERSITY GAIN 
 
To promote biodiversity, the applicant shall provide for the installation of 2 no. enclosed bird bricks 
or bat boxes, at eaves height, within the elevations of the building. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 
interest, in accordance with Policies SPT11 and DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan (2019) and Government advice contained in paragraphs 174 and 180 of the NPPF 2021. 
 

Page 12



 

 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 
1 INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 
 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is 
exempt from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 
 
 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NEGOTIATION) 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework, the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant and has 
negotiated amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 

Site Address Land At Sugar Quay   East Quay  Sutton Harbour  Plymouth     

Proposal 

Erection of a 21 storey mixed use development comprising 170 
residential apartments, ground- and first-floor commercial and retail 
units (Class E) and associated landscaping, public realm and 
infrastructure works 
 

Applicant Sutton Harbour Group 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    12.04.2021 
Committee 
Date 14.04.2022 

Extended Target Date 22.04.2022   

Decision Category Councillor Referral 

Case Officer Mr Alistair Wagstaff 

Recommendation 

Grant conditionally subject to with delegated authority to Director of 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to refuse the application if the 
S106 is not signed within the agreed timeframes (3 months) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 
Number   20/02046/FUL  Item 02 

Date Valid 11.01.2021  Ward SUTTON AND MOUNT GOULD 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6.2



 

 

 

 
 
This application is being presented before the Planning Committee as it is a Member 
Referral by Cllr Mary Aspinall 
 
1.  Description of Site 
The Application Site is approximately 0.55ha, located on the East Quay of Sutton Harbour. The site 
fronts the harbour, between Salt Quay House and Jewson's builder's merchant's yard to the north 
and Marrow Bone Slip to the south, which provides public access to the water. The Eau 2 building 
(also known as East Quay House) lies beyond the slipway to the south. Sutton Road bounds the site 
to the east and there is pedestrian access along the quayside to the west. Part of the site is currently 
in temporary use as a car park: the rest is vacant and surrounded by hoardings. 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

 

2.  Proposal Description 
The proposal seeks full planning permission for a 21-storey landmark building comprising 
commercial/retail units (Class E) at ground and first floor level together with 170 residential 
apartments on the upper floors. 
 
This application is an amended scheme following the previous grant of consent in December 2018 
(application number 18/01245/FUL): this consent has now expired and cannot be implemented.  
 
In summary, the primary changes to the former approved planning application relate to car parking 
provision, which was previously provided within a basement car park. This on-site car park provided 
parking for 106 vehicles. Additional parking for residents was also proposed through an extension to 
Harbour Car Park (planning consent 18/01246/FUL) - allowing 62 spaces dedicated to Sugar Quay 
residents and an additional 36 spaces for residents on an optional basis via permits. The current 
application omits the basement car park on viability grounds and instead proposes to deliver car 
parking provision off-site through the implementation of planning consent 18/01246/FUL (which has 
been implemented). This is a change from the application's original submission which sought to use 
car parking in a different scheme across Sutton Road. These applications have however now been 
withdrawn. 
 
Amongst other relatively minor alterations to the original scheme, the following changes have been 
made: internal revisions to the ground floor layout: external alterations to the ground/first-floor of 
the building where the previously approved basement access ramp was located at Marrowbone Slip: 
changes to the approved energy strategy and the incorporation of a green roof above the 
commercial plinth (replacing the approved commercial seating area).  
 
Further to the above, there has been a change to the unit type mix. The submitted application 
advises the design has been progressed to take account of updated fire regulations following the 
Grenfell disaster, and also to account for the change to the building energy systems. These changes 
resulted in amendments to the plant and servicing infrastructure through the building and changes to 
the unit type mix, as set out below. The total number of units remains the same at 170, as does the 
bed spaces at 590. 
 
Apartment Size  Proposed Number (2021) Proposed Number (2018) 
1B2P     73     74 
2B4P    69     67 
3B6P    28     29 
Total units   170     170 
Total bed spaces  590     590 
 
Changes to the plant room requirements have also resulted in changes to the first floor level and 
associated changes to the proposed commercial space.  
 
A cumulative total of 3102 sq. m of commercial and/or retail units (Use Class E) is proposed on the 
ground and first floors. The submitted plans show five two-storey commercial units to the western 
frontage of the building. The applicant is seeking a flexible consent, which allows future fit out to 
meet the requirements of occupants and therefore, the first floor plans do not provide details of the 
upper commercial floor space. 
 
A gym (Class E (d)) is also proposed at ground and first floor level in the south-eastern corner of the 
building and a co-working space (Class E (g)(i)) is also proposed at first floor level.  
 
 

Page 17



 

 

Use Class   Floor space m²  Floor space m²  Total floor   
        space m² 
    - Ground floor - first floor   
 
Unit 1- E(a), (b), (c)   130  130   260 
Unit 2 - E(a), (b), (c)   172  -   172 
Unit 3 - E(a), (b), (c)   349  290   639 
Unit 4 - E(a), (b), (c)   569  400   969 
Unit 5 - E(a), (b), (c)   254  184   438 
Gym - E(d)    146  315   461 
Co-Worker Space - E(g)(i)  -  163   163 
 
Total     1,620  1,482   3,102 
 
The height of the proposed development and the number of internal storeys has not changed (other 
than the removal of the basement car park). However, it should be noted, the proposal description 
has been amended to refer to the erection of a 21 storey building (rather than a 20 storey building as 
described in application 18/01245/FUL). The applicant previously, and in the current submission, 
refers to an 'upper ground/mezzanine level' and upon review, officers have determined this is more 
than a 'mezzanine' and should be considered as a full additional storey. The proposal description has 
therefore been amended to reflect this.  
 
The roof of the commercial plinth provides both private amenity space for future residents and a 
landscaped roof garden. Note, notwithstanding some of the details in the submitted application, the 
commercial plinth will not provide a seating area for the commercial units. Rather, it will be a green 
roof with a species rich maritime grassland mix (Scotia maritime grassland seed mix) with other 
areas of more structural planting. 
 
No on-site car parking is proposed. Parking for future residents at Sugar Quay is proposed through 
the extension to the Harbour Car Park, located on Lockyer's Quay, to the south of the Sugar Quay 
site. As noted above, planning consent for this car park extension was granted in 2018, under 
application reference 18/01246/FUL. The approved extension to the car park provides two additional 
floors of parking to create 114 additional spaces. As part of the amended proposals, a total of 136 
vehicle spaces will be made available to the residents of Sugar Quay in the extended Harbour Car 
Park (at a ratio of 0.8 parking spaces per unit).  
 
Cycle parking and refuse storage is proposed at ground floor level.  
 
As part of the application additional information and plans have been submitted in relation to the 
following matters: 
o highway matters including parking provision  
o Viability Appraisal 
o Energy Strategy 
o A response to the Design Review Panel Report and supporting information 
o Landscaping 
o Drainage 
o floor plans and amended site location plan Ecology.  
 
In addition, the original application sought a five year planning consent. However, this was amended 
and reduced to a three year planning consent, which is the period the LPA would normally look to 
require on any application.  
 

Page 18



 

 

During the course of the application three consultation periods took place in January, May and 
October 2021. 
 
3. Pre-application Enquiry 
Pre-application discussions commenced in November 2019 (planning application reference 
19/01806/MJR) and covered three sites: Sugar Quay, St John's Bridge and Sutton Road East. The pre-
application process largely focused on the sites to the east of Sutton Road, however, a summary of 
the discussions relating specifically to Sugar Quay is provided below. 
 
Officers' advice was sought on the proposed revisions to the previously approved scheme (planning 
application reference 18/01245/FUL). The most notable amendment was the removal of the 
previously approved underground car park and the provision of alternative car parking off-site at the 
St John's Bridge site. The applicant was seeking to make such amendments through a S73 application: 
officers advised this would not be appropriate and a full planning application would be required. 
 
In terms of car parking, it was noted at early pre-application stage the principle of providing off-site 
car parking to serve the residential units at Sugar Quay had been established by the planning history, 
whereby a significant proportion of car parking was to be provided at the Harbour Car Park. 
Consequently, there was no over-riding objection to providing off-site parking elsewhere. The Local 
Highway Authority sought further evidence from the applicant to demonstrate the level of car 
parking proposed was sufficient to meet demand and would not lead to vehicles over-spilling onto 
the surrounding residential streets.  
 
With regard to affordable housing, the applicant proposed potential alternative options before 
determining the £3.15 million payment towards off-site affordable housing delivery. This approach 
was agreed as part of the previous planning permission and officers agreed in principle this 
contribution could be retained in relation to the scheme going forward acknowledging the difficulties 
in viability in the scheme. 
 
During the pre-application process, the applicant carried out a public consultation exercise. Due to 
limitations on public events caused by COVID-19, an online community consultation event was held 
for a three week period. This included a virtual exhibition online with images and detailed 
information regarding the proposals. According to the submitted information, 751 people visited the 
consultation page; 63% were supportive of the Sugar Quay proposals, 66% were supportive of the St 
John's Bridge proposals and 74% were supportive of the Sutton Road East proposals. 
 
An Environmental Impact Assessment was requested, submitted and determined (see further details 
below - reference 20/01162/ERS103) this considered the 3 applications which were originally 
submitted together. It concluded that the development was not EIA development. 
 
It should be noted that the applicant submitted three separate planning applications following the 
pre-application process as follows: 
 
o Sugar Quay (this planning application) 
o St John's Bridge (planning application reference 20/02044/FUL), which was withdrawn on Fri 

22/10/2021. 
o Sutton Road East (planning application reference 20/0045/FUL), which was withdrawn on Fri 

22/10/2021. 
 
A new pre-application scoping meeting (reference 21/01442/MJR) was submitted on 30th July 2021 in 
relation to the Sutton Road East, St John's Bridge sites, which incorporated an additional area of land 
nearby. This pre-application engagement has since been concluded.  
 

Page 19



 

 

4. Relevant Planning History 
 
Application Site 
20/01162/ERS103 - Request for EIA Screening Opinion - Environmental Impact Assessment not 
required. 
 
18/01245/FUL - Erection of a 20 storey (plus basement) mixed use development comprising 
basement car parking, 170 residential apartments, ground floor and mezzanine commercial space 
(Class A1, A2, A3 & A4), a gym (Class D1) and co-working space (Class B1a) and associated 
landscaping, public realm & infrastructure works - APPROVED. This application has not been 
implemented and has lapsed and is not capable of implementation 
 
18/00912/ERS103 - Request for Screening Opinion for proposed 21 storey building comprising circa 
175 residential apartments and 5 commercial units (2,940 sq. m) with 120 underground car parking 
spaces - Environmental Impact Assessment not required. 
 
17/01573/FUL - Use of the site for temporary car park - APPROVED (subject to condition 2 which 
states that the use of the site as a car park shall cease before the 30th September 2022). 
 
15/01335/FUL - Continuation of use as a temporary car park for 24 months - APPROVED 
 
14/01011/FUL - Continuation of use of boatyard land as temporary car park for 12 months - 
APPROVED. 
 
12/00680/FUL - Use of boatyard land as temporary car park accommodating 49 vehicular spaces, 4 
motorcycle spaces and associated access and circulation areas and works - variation of condition 2 of 
planning permission 09/00763/FUL to enable original permission to be extended for a further 2 years 
- APPROVED. 
 
09/01882/FUL - Development of mixed use residential scheme comprising 62 residential apartments 
(C3 use) and 4 ground floor commercial/retail units (A1, A2, A3, A4, B1a and B1 (marine related 
employment use)), within a 5/10 storey building, with associated car parking, services and public 
realm works - APPROVED. 
 
09/00763/FUL - Change of use of land from boatyard to temporary car park to accommodate 49 
vehicular spaces, 4 motorcycle spaces and associated access and circulation areas and works (3 year 
consent) - APPROVED 
 
08/02194/FUL - Erection of mixed use office scheme (including use classes A1, A2, A3, and B1) 
within a three/four storey building, with associated internal car parking and the erection of an 
external electricity substation building - APPROVED 
 
07/02041/FUL - BBC telecommunications equipment, comprising of 2 satellite dishes, weather 
camera and off-air reception array - APPROVED 
 
06/01368/FUL - Demolition of light industrial unit/office unit, redundant public house and erection of 
mixed use residential scheme (including use classes A1, A2, A3, B1a and B1 Marine related 
employment uses) comprising 101 residential flats within a ten/eleven storey building and three 
storey office building, with associated parking - APPROVED 
 
06/00394/FUL - Demolition of light industrial/office unit and erection of mixed use residential 
scheme (including use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, B1, B2 and B8) comprising 107 residential flats within a 

Page 20



 

 

ten storey building and four storey office building, with associated parking, waterfront piazza and 
retention, extension and refurbishment of public house - WITHDRAWN 
 
Other Related Applications 
St John's Bridge - 20/02044/FUL - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of up to 13 storey 
mixed use development comprising 106 residential apartments, 2 live work or commercial units 
(Class E) or drinking establishments (sui generis), car parking spaces, public realm works, including 
pedestrian link and central square, and associated landscaping and infrastructure works including 
works to Sutton Road - WITHDRAWN. 
 
Sutton Road East - 20/02045/FUL - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of up to 15 storey 
mixed use development comprising 111 residential apartments, commercial units (Class E) and 
drinking establishments (sui generis), car parking spaces, public open space, and associated 
landscaping and infrastructure works including works to Sutton Road - WITHDRAWN. 
 
Harbour Car Park - 18/01246/FUL - Erection of two additional storeys to existing car park and 
change of use and external alterations to former toilets to form a commercial unit (Class A1 and A3) 
- APPROVED (The applicant has submitted pre-commencement planning conditions and confirmed 
the development has commenced). 
 
5. Consultation Responses 
 
Local Highway Authority (LHA)  
Numerous consultation engagement has taken place during the consideration of this application. 
 
Summary of final consultation response: 
The LHA acknowledge the proposal is similar to that approved under planning application reference 
18/01245/FUL and recognise the key fundamental difference is the omission of the basement car 
park. All vehicle parking requirements are now proposed off-site at Harbour Car Park. 
 
Following ongoing, proactive engagement with the applicant, the LHA raise no in principle objections 
to the proposals, subject to recommended conditions and informatives. In particular, the LHA seek 
further details on road access for contractors, the submission of a dilapidation survey to assess the 
existing condition of all highway infrastructure adjoining the site, the submission of a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan, street details, car parking and cycle provision, use of loading areas and the 
submission of a Travel Plan. 
 
The LHA recommend a Grampian condition to ensure proposed improvements to the existing 
highway are carried out before occupation and also recommend a Grampian condition to ensure the 
works to increase the capacity of Harbour Car Park (approved under planning application reference 
18/001246/FUL) have been delivered, including the provision of 34 electric vehicle charging points 
within the car park. 
 
The LHA advised that funding of travel planning, of £34,000 is sought for the residential element of 
the scheme and £220 per employee is sought for the commercial element of the scheme. To be 
included as an informative. 
 
Detailed comments have been provided by the LHA and are summarised in the analysis section 
below and are available for Members to fully review on the application file. 
 
Urban Design Officer 
Numerous consultation response and engagement has taken place during the course of the 
application.  The Urban Design Officer acknowledged the proposal was very similar to the approved 

Page 21



 

 

scheme for the site (planning reference 18/01245/FUL). As before, the principle of residential-led 
mixed use development on the site was considered consistent with JLP Policy PLY25 'Sugar House, 
Sutton Harbour'.   
 
In response to amended drawings and additional information provided by the Applicant, the Urban 
Design Officer supported the proposals subject to a series of conditions and informative.  
 
Historic Environment Officer/Archaeologist   
Due to the known nature of the remains exposed in 2008, notably the remains of the 17th century 
Sugar House, the Historic Environment Officer recommends a pre-commencement archaeological 
condition to secure a programme of archaeological work. 
 
Historic England (HE)  
Historic England acknowledge the land is not within a conservation area. Therefore, HE's statutory 
role is confined to the assessment of potential impacts on highly-graded heritage assets, such as 
Grade I and II* listed buildings or scheduled ancient monuments.  
 
HE's analysis of the previous proposals outlined the likely effect of the proposed Sugar Quay 
development on the setting of the Royal Citadel, a Scheduled Monument. HE advise that the Royal 
Citadel is a 17th century fortification incorporating an earlier 16th century structure that is regarded 
as one of the most complete surviving examples of a bastioned artillery defence in England, and is the 
most extensively intact survival of the important later 17th century group built to defend England's 
principal naval ports. HE suggest that if a tall building was to appear above the Citadel in short and 
medium-range views, it could compromise its fortress-like appearance, causing harm to its setting 
and thus significance. 
 
Drawing on the application information, HE consider that while the proposed building would rise 
above the Royal Citadel in longer-range views, it would not be visible from any part of the area 
within 600 metres of the shoreline. Where the proposed building would rise above the Royal Citadel 
in longer views from Plymouth Sound, it would be read against a backdrop of existing townscape. 
This being the case, HE considers any visual impact on the setting of the Royal Citadel is likely to be 
negligible. 
 
HE continue to regret the potential visual impact of the building on the setting of the Grade II listed 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) premises, which terminates the view eastwards along Royal Parade, the 
key east-west axis of the City Centre Conservation Area. HE confirm, the setting of a Grade II listed 
building and surrounding conservation area are outside HE's remit, but HE confirm they have a 
strategic interest in Plymouth City Centre and are providing significant grant aid to restore its mid-
century glory through the High Street Heritage Action Zone initiative. 
 
HE advise the RBS building is one of Plymouth's finest pieces of modernist architecture, with its 
elegantly-composed symmetrical silhouette, centrally punctuated by a clock tower. HE state the 
triangular termination of the proposed building will rise above the RBS premises and suggest this 
detracts from the symmetry, proportion, and sculptural form of the RBS premises. HE consider this 
harmful to the setting of the Grade II listed building and the character and appearance of the City 
Centre Conservation Area. 
 
HE state the proposals will cause harm that is less than substantial to the setting of the RBS building 
and advise that if the LPA is content the proposals are of the highest quality design, HE are content 
for this harm to be weighed against any wider public benefits offered by the proposals, in accordance 
with NPPF paragraph 196. 
 

Page 22



 

 

HE recommend that in determining this application, the LPA should bear in mind the statutory duty 
of section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which they possess. The LPA is encouraged to also bear in mind, 
the statutory duty of section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990, which requires decision makers to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Gardens Trust  
No response received.  
 
Environment Agency (EA)  
The EA raise no objections subject to a Section 106 agreement for the sum of £250,000 towards 
works to upgrade flood defences at Sutton Harbour and the inclusion of conditions to cover the 
mitigation measures set out in the Flood Risk Assessment, contaminated land report and the final 
Construction Environmental Management Plan. This response is consistent with the position in 
respect of the previously approved application 18/01245/FUL. 
 
Natural Infrastructure Team (NIT)  
Scheme is acceptable subject to conditions and S106 agreement. 
 
A number of responses were received from NIT during the course of the consideration of this 
application. 
 
Initially a 26.07% biodiversity loss was identified, which conflicts with JLP policy DEV26. An updated 
landscaping plan reduced this loss, however this assessment method is now out of date. The 
Applicant has suggested an approach to meeting 10% biodiversity net gain (BNG) through creation of 
seagrass which is considered acceptable and a S106 is agreed (of £25,000) which will enable direct 
delivery of marine habitat improvements and which will assist in establishing the long term approach 
to marine nature recovery. This is considered to enable a 10% net gain to be delivered. 
 
With regards to proposals to deliver BNG on the roof terrace, the NIT recommend attaching a 
planning condition to ensure the delivery of maximum ecological benefits and secure BNG in 
perpetuity. The NIT also recommend a condition requiring a Landscape Ecological Management Plan 
and Construction and Environmental Management Plan to ensure the marine environment is 
protected and works are done in accordance with the Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA).  
 
The NIT require further information on tree planting and tree pits (details and plans) and 
recommend a planning condition to ensure this information is received and agreed by the LPA. 
 
In terms of drainage and water quality, NIT recommend a pre-commencement condition requiring 
further information on the proposed drainage strategy, which considers the impacts to water quality 
as the site is hydrologically connected to the Special Area of Conservation. 
 
Low Carbon Team  
The Low Carbon Team raise no objections, subject to a condition ensuring the use of centralised Air 
Source Heat Pumps to achieve 56% carbon saving over gas baseline. 
 
A restrictive condition is also recommended to ensure there is a commitment to future-proof the 
scheme for connection to district energy. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority  
Site is in flood zone 3 and at high risk of tidal flooding and Critical Drainage area. 

Page 23



 

 

 
The drainage system is designed to the correct standard. 
 
A flood emergency plan identifying safe access routes is provided. 
 
No objections, subject to a recommended restrictive conditions seeking the following additional 
information: 
a) Calculations and modelling data should be produced in support of any drainage design 

showing that the drainage system is designed to the required standard. The impact of any 
potential tide-locking during extreme tide levels must be assessed together with any other 
incoming flows that may also be using the existing outfall. 

b) The site is located in a Critical Drainage Area and discharge rates to a sewer will be limited 
to 1 in 10 year greenfield run off rates with onsite attenuation required to store surface 
water volumes over and above these rates to a 1 in 100 year return period standard of 
protection with a 40% allowance for climate change. 

c) maintaining the water flow route from Sutton Road across the north of the site  and does not 
impact upon the site drainage and its proposed capacity, as indicated by the EA surface water 
flood risk mapping. Clarification should be submitted that shows how the site is protected 
against off- site surface water run-off from Sutton Road. 

d) It is recommended that the property owners and managers sign up to the Environment 
Agency's Floodline Warnings Direct service for flood warnings. 

e) A Flood Emergency Plan should be developed and communicated to all occupants detailing 
actions to be taken in the event of a flood warning to ensure occupants and property remain 
safe. The responsibilities of the building manager and individual property owners and 
managers should be clearly identified. The Flood Plan should also include an assessment of the 
scale of anticipated flooding and any access routes clearly identified. 

f) In an extreme event that exceeds the design standard, a surface water exceedance flow route 
should be identified on a plan that shows the route exceedance flows will take both on and 
off site from the point of surcharge, and demonstrating that these flows do not increase the 
risk of flooding to properties on and off the site and or to Third Party Land including the 
Public Highway. Exceedance  flows should be intercepted and contained on site as far as this 
is reasonably practicable and safe to do so, ensuring that flows are directed away from public 
access areas. 

g) Details should be provided that show how the water environment is to be protected from 
pollution from the parking and access road areas. Reference should be made to the pollution 
risk matrix and mitigation indices in the CIRIA SuDS Manual. 

h) A ground investigation should also confirm there is no risk of groundwater pollution from 
contaminated land. 

i) A construction environment management plan incorporating method statements should be 
submitted to demonstrate how the new drainage system and water environment is protected 
during the demolition and construction phases. 

j) Details should be submitted of how and when the surface water drainage system is to be 
managed and maintained. 

 
Public Protection Service (PPS)  
A number of responses were received during the course of the application 
The PPS recommend the submission of a Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
which, amongst many other things, must limit the times of work activities on site to protect 
neighbouring residential amenity.  
 
In terms of air quality, the PPS has reviewed the submitted Air Quality Assessment which identifies 
the operational phase will have a negligible impact on air quality and so no mitigation is required. In 
terms of the construction phase, the assessment identifies that through good practice and 

Page 24



 

 

implementation of appropriate mitigation measures, dust impact should be effectively controlled and 
mitigated with no significant impact. These control measures should be identified and implemented 
through the CEMP.  
 
The contaminated land risk assessment identified potential pollutant linkages, particularly as a result 
of the historic use of the site. The report recommends an intrusive investigation to assess the 
ground conditions on site. The PPS agree that a Phase 2 investigation should be carried out and 
recommend restricted conditions accordingly to secure the required site characterisation work, plus 
any other remediation and verification work that may subsequently also be necessary.  
 
With regard to noise, the PPS acknowledge the site is in close proximity to existing businesses, 
which may have a noise impact on future occupants. A noise impact assessment has been submitted 
in support of the application, which has assessed the likely impact. Outline proposals have been 
provided for the façade sound insulation to achieve suitable internal noise levels. The PPS 
recommend a restrictive condition accordingly.  
 
The noise assessment states ventilation would be by mechanical means to avoid the need for opening 
windows on the more noise exposed facades. The report, however, does not provide specific details 
of which dwellings will be fitted with mechanical ventilation. The PPS recommend a condition to 
ensure this is agreed with the LPA prior to commencement of development.  
 
The PPS also recommend a condition to ensure any of the proposed plant/ventilation systems do not 
cause an undue noise impact to residents.  
 
With regard to the proposed commercial units, PPS note these units give rise to potential impacts 
from noise and odour. Conditions are recommended to ensure these potential impacts are 
adequately controlled by an appropriate management plan and PPS also suggest conditions to restrict 
opening hours and delivery times.  
 
Finally, the PPS note the noise impact assessment has considered potential operation of the units as a 
restaurant and gym space and identified the internal generated noise from these units should not 
exceed 25 dB LAep, 15min and 35 dB LAF max at any time. The PPS recommend a restrictive 
condition to ensure these levels are not exceeded.  
 
In October 2021 following the submission of a letter of representation from Simms providing a 
technical assessment of noise associated with the three planning applications, PPS were re-consulted 
on the amended plans and information and recommended the same conditions. 
 
Local Education Authority (LEA)  
The LEA has advised the impact of the development proposal will lead to additional population 
growth, which places greater pressure on education services. Secondary education currently has 
insufficient capacity to deal with this additional pressure - the LEA presents further evidence and 
information to support this. 
 
Given the evidence presented and with reference to the SPD which includes the Developer 
Contributions Evidence Base (June 2020), the LEA has sought a contribution of £280,925.00 towards 
the expansion of Plymstock School, Hele's School or other secondary basic need education projects 
which provide citywide pupil places that will benefit the new residential population arising from the 
proposed development. 
 
The LEA refer to the need to deliver mitigation of the impacts of the proposed development in 
order to satisfy JLP policies DEV30 and DEL1. 
 

Page 25



 

 

Officer of the Director of Public Health (ODPH)  
The ODPH (acting on behalf of other organisations, including Devon CCG, NHS England and PCC 
Strategic Commissioning which meet together as a Health and Developer Contributions Group) 
advise the impact of the development proposal will lead to additional population growth, which 
places greater pressures on existing health services including primary care, such as general practice, 
community pharmacy, dental and optometry services and secondary care through hospitals and 
specialists. The ODPH state there is insufficient capacity in the existing infrastructure to meet the 
needs of this population growth. 
  
Given the evidence presented and with reference to the SPD, which includes the Developer 
Contributions Evidence Base (June 2020), Public Health seek a contribution of £54,979 towards the 
proposed health and wellbeing hub at Colin Campbell Court, Plymouth City Centre or other 
Wellbeing Hubs which provide citywide services that will benefit the new resident population arising 
from the development proposal. 
 
NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)  
The CCG notes concern that three nearest surgeries to the planned development, (Friary House 
Surgery, Wycliffe Surgery and Beaumont Villa Surgery) are already at or over capacity within their 
existing footprints. Therefore, it follows that to have a sustainable development in human health 
terms, the whole local healthcare provision will require review. The surgeries already have 32,765 
patients registered between them and this new development will increase the local population by a 
further 394 persons. 
 
Taking this into account and drawing upon the document Devon Health Contributions Approach: GP 
Provision document, which was agreed by NHS England and Devon County Council, the CCG seek a 
contribution of £100,966 (£594 per dwelling) towards the cost of mitigation of the pressures on the 
local healthcare facility.  
 
Emergency Planning/Civil Protection  
No response received. 
 
Devon Fire and Rescue  
No response received.  
 
Building Control  
PCC Building Control confirm the proposal will require a building regulations application to be 
submitted to a Building Control Body. 
 
Natural England  
On the basis of the mitigation outlined being secured, Natural England concurs with the LPA's 
conclusion in the Habitats Regulations Assessment that the proposed development will not have an 
adverse effect on the integrity of Plymouth Sound and Estuaries SAC & Tamar Estuaries Complex 
SPA European sites. 
 
Designing Out Crime Officer  
The Designing Out Crime Officer notes the scheme will need to comply with JLP policies DEV10 and 
DEV20.  
 
The Designing out Crime Officer identifies the main access points as vulnerable areas in respect of 
reducing crime and the fear of crime. Access control measures are recommended to restrict 
unauthorised persons from gaining access to the proposed building, including a visitor door entry 
system.  
 

Page 26



 

 

In addition, a condition is recommended to ensure the development achieves the Silver Standard of 
Secure by Design aware.  
 
With regard to parking, the Designing out Crime Officer emphasises the importance of coordinating 
and delivering associated landscaping, public realm and infrastructure works to minimise potential 
fear of crime to residents utilising the off-site car park.  
 
Marine Management Organisation (MMO)  
The MMO provided a standard response advising that any works taking place below the mean high 
water mark may require a marine licence from the MMO in accordance with the Marine and Coastal 
Access Act (MCAA) 2009. 
 
Economic Development (ED), including Building Plymouth Skills Coordinator 
ED support the proposal as a significant development with major construction spend, sizable (albeit 
temporary) construction jobs and further useful permanent jobs associated with commercial space 
and building management. In addition, residential occupation will bring job supporting spend to the 
City. ED recommends a restrictive condition seeking an Employment and Skills Plan and seeks a S106 
contribution of £1,000 per dwelling towards necessary upgrades to the Hoe Foreshore recreation 
facilities.  
 
Housing Delivery Team (HDT)  
The HDT accepts the development cannot afford policy-compliant levels of affordable housing and 
consider that on-site units would not be affordable to households in need due to the high sales 
values, rents and service charges. The development will not contribute to the creation of a 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed community, but it will provide a significant contribution to affordable 
housing delivery that justifies a relaxation of affordable housing obligations to a level that is less than 
that required by Policy DEV7. 
 
The HDT considers provision must be made from the outset to ensure M4(2) and M4(3) dwellings 
are made available for initial and future households. The HDT advises that failure to provide these 
from the outset would likely result in the loss of a significant and unacceptable number of accessible 
and adaptable dwellings. 
 
The HDT recommends a planning condition to ensure the development meets JLP policy DEV9 
requirements in full and from the outset and also seek a S106 contribution of £3.15 million for off-
site affordable housing delivery. 
 
Plymouth Waterfront Partnership (PWP)  
Whilst the PWP supports the principle of development here as well as the economic investment the 
application represents, they raise a number of objections/concerns: 
 
o Scale and massing and the resulting harm this could have on the general environment of the 

harbour and neighbouring Barbican  Conservation Area - the height, bulk and architectural 
form of this  building will dominate many close and distant views as demonstrated by the 
consultants own perspective images. No neighbouring buildings rise beyond 10 stories in 
height and to more than double this in an uncompromisingly horizontal stepped form that will 
significantly impact the urban form of the waterfront and create 'substantial harm'. The 
overwhelming impact of the scale will be detrimental and is not justified despite the other 
benefits that have been suggested. There will be areas of Sutton Road and the land to the 
north of the development that will be placed continuously in shadow. The PWP think the 
building is too high and should be reduced in height. 

 

Page 27



 

 

o Reference is made to another recently approved tall building of this scale at North Cross 
roundabout in Plymouth, which has  provided to be an aesthetically detrimental intrusion on 
the city centre with its stepped south facing rendered façade presenting a very poor quality of 
architecture visible for miles in every direction. The architecture of this current proposal is 
unashamedly bold, eclectic and un-compromising and we are fearful that the impact of this 
will have a long term detrimental effect on the setting of our historic waterfront. 

 
o Some of the design features may be architecturally disjointed and  the designers should 

reconsider whether there may be alternative solutions that would improve the appearance. 
Specifically, the PWP do not think the blue diagonal framing feature enhances the design. This 
is a rather blunt and unsubtle way of reinforcing the stepping façade and it is questioned 
whether it is really necessary. A primary colour used in this context is too bold and the PWP 
consider the design would be improved with a more neutral approach to colour. In addition, 
the way the building connects with the quayside also seems a little uncomfortable and 
contrived. The angled glass façade creates an appearance that lacks structural integrity and 
creates the illusion of something that is about to fall over.  

 
o The development has not been subject to peer review at a Design Panel and question why a 

building of this magnitude and significance was not required to do so? 
 
o The Climate Action Plan to move towards Carbon Neutrality by 2030 has not been fully 

addressed by the application and further steps could be made in the design towards 
improving energy reduction and biodiversity. 

 
o There are a significant number of north-facing, single aspect apartments within this proposal 

that will not obtain any sunlight for most of the year. Many of those apartments will only 
receive minimal sunlight for a couple of hours in the early evening at the peak of the summer. 
They also have limited amenity space and are subject to intrusive overlooking from adjacent 
apartments creating a loss of privacy. This will create a potential legacy of property that does 
not meet basic standards of wellbeing for a healthy living environment. There are increasing 
numbers of people who are adopting the practice of working from home and this creates an 
added pressure on every residential building to provide adequate amenity space and a 
working environment that functions well in relation to the external environment in which it is 
placed. 

 
o The last twelve months have seen an unprecedented period of economic and social upheaval 

caused by a global pandemic that will have a major impact on the design of tall buildings that 
accommodate large numbers of people. This building will accommodate over 400 people who 
will access single aspect apartments via three elevators and narrow mechanically ventilated 
corridors. Major concerns around the transmission of airborne and surface contaminations 
spread via confined and densely crowded access points are a significant issue and research on 
this is still in an early stage of development. It would seem prudent that the Applicant be 
requested to carry out a risk assessment in relation to this public health emergency which 
will not have been considered under any other policy requirements. 

 
Harbour Master 
No response received. 
 
Street Services 
Street Services refer to the need to provide sufficient space for the number of refuse containers 
required to meet the needs of the number of flats proposed. An average household would require 
two 240 litre bins (one for recycling and one for non-recyclables) collected on an alternate weekly 
basis. Whether individual bins or communal bins up to 1,100 litres are provided, the capacity 

Page 28



 

 

calculation needs to be factored in for this space unless the intention is to put in place a commercial 
waste collection with increased frequency as part of building management fees.   
 
Street Services refer to the need to provide flat, even, direct access for RCV vehicles i.e. without 
distances to pull bins.  
 
Street Services also refer to the changes afoot following the Environmental Bill, which will see 
mandated food waste collections on a weekly basis and the potential for more segregation 
(containers). 
 
Following discussions a waste strategy condition has been agreed to deal with the outstanding 
matters. 
 
Health and Safety Executive  
The HSE confirms the site does not lie within the consultation distance of a major hazard site or 
major accident hazard pipeline. Therefore, at present, HSE does not need to be consulted on any 
developments on this site. 
 
South West Water (SWW)  
SWW identified the approximate location of a public water main in the vicinity and confirmed that 
no development shall be permitted within 3 metres of the water main and that the water main must 
be located within a public open space and ground cover should not be substantially altered. 
 
SWW also confirmed that clean portable water service can be provided from the existing public 
water main for the proposal and foul sewerage services can be provided by the existing public foul or 
combined sewer in the vicinity of the site. 
 
It is noted the applicant must demonstrate to the LPA that its prospective surface run-off will 
discharge as high up the hierarchy of drainage options as is reasonably practicable.  Having reviewed 
the submitted information, SWW confirmed the method proposed to discharge into a surface water 
body is acceptable and meets with the Run-off Destination Hierarchy.  
 
Sport England  
Sport England confirms the proposed development does not fall within their statutory or non-
statutory remit and therefore, a detailed response has not been provided. However, Sport England 
has provided advice to aid the assessment of the application. The following is of specific relevance to 
the proposal:  
 
if the proposal involves the provision of additional housing then it will generate additional demand for sport. If 
existing sports facilities do not have the capacity to absorb the additional demand, then new and/or improved 
sports facilities should be secured and delivered in accordance with any approved local policy for social 
infrastructure, and priorities set out in any Playing Pitch Strategy or Built Sports Facility Strategy that the local 
authority has in place. 
 
In line with the Government's NPPF (including Section 8) and PPG (Health and wellbeing section), 
consideration should also be given to how any new development, especially for new housing, will provide 
opportunities for people to lead healthy lifestyles and create healthy communities. Sport England's Active 
Design guidance can be used to help with this when developing or assessing a proposal. Active Design 
provides ten principles to help ensure the design and layout of development encourages and promotes 
participation in sport and physical activity. 
 
Street Lighting 
No response received. 

Page 29



 

 

 
South West Highways  
No response received. 
 
Health and Safety Executive Fire Safety 
No Response Received 
 
6. Representations 
Nine letters of representation were received in response to the initial consultation exercise, 
including six letters of objection, one letter of support and two neutral letters. The points raised 
have been summarised below under key theme headings: 
 
Objections: 
Environmental 
- Lack of detailed environmental protection in proposal/does not reflect 'green' design/little 

consideration of nature and  environment/no attempt to introduce the contribution of 
'green' credentials of the building byway of bio-solar roofs, green walls,  habitat routes, 
charging points for electric vehicles amongst other  concerns. 

- The application acknowledges the opportunity (but not the intent) for a green and biodiverse 
roof space as a visual amenity with no public access. 

- Design considerations focus on harbour views rather than biodiversity.  
- The area is abundant with bird life. 
- The site has been left for over a decade and is now of value to wildlife and insects. 
- Should include a green or bio solar roof, combining the benefits of a softer exterior with 

options for low carbon, renewable energy. 
- Development should be as low carbon as possible given the Climate Emergency and the 

commitments made by PCC and national Government. 
- Transport infrastructure should encourage the use of public transport, walking and cycling. 
- There are no clear habitat routes for bees and other pollinating insects. 
- No provision for planting of street trees. 
- Improving and maintaining environmental quality is essential for the physical and mental 

wellbeing of local residents.  
- No provision for nesting birds or bats. 
- Green walls should be incorporated and 'living pillars' to reduce air pollution.  
- Effective waste management has not been comprehensively thought through and provided. 

More evidence of the provision for recycling, food waste collection and provision of 
commercial waste receptacles is required. The household refuse system is primitive with no 
provision for household recycling.  

- The DRP commented that 'environmental sustainability did not feature so how the scheme is 
to address the climate emergency and tightening national requirements was unknown'. We 
do not know how the scheme will contribute to Plymouth achieving its net zero  carbon 
target by 2030.   

 
Design 
- Size and height/too tall/inappropriate. 
- Overbearing.  
- Overdevelopment of area and this application should be considered as part of a whole 

strategy of redevelopment and its impact on the  area as a quality place to live in.  
- Unsympathetic trophy building proposed for an already over-developed heritage area with 

absolutely no attempt at enhancing or place making upon which the Council places increasing 
importance.  

- Not in keeping with surrounding buildings/height should be in-keeping with neighbouring 
buildings/scaled down/wholly out of  sympathy with the current elevation level around Sutton 

Page 30



 

 

Harbour/dwarf eastern side of the harbour/a 'Los Angeles' style development would be out of 
place/almost three times higher than over buildings in the area/should not be higher than ten 
floors/the massive size of this edifice in relation to existing surrounding buildings. 

- Call for a more sympathetic design to uplift the area and ensure the building stands out as 
best practice rather than another high rise development 

- Request less angular roof to avoid another Plymouth 'box' and on- going 'pollution' of the 
city's skyline. 

- Design should be reviewed by an independent Design Panel with representation from 
community groups such as the Plymouth Civic Society.  

 
Historic Environment: 
- Development must not detract from the heritage potential of the area and surrounding 

facilities. 
- Fail to see how 21 storeys does not represent 'substantial harm' to views from the Barbican 

Conservation Area. 
- Would spoil the character of the historic Sutton Harbour. 
- This is one of the most important heritage (and possibly archaeological) sites in Plymouth 

which has been overlooked within this unsympathetic development.  
- This proposed addition to large carbuncular architecture in Plymouth is classed as causing 

'less than substantial harm'. With each new development classed as such, the bar gets higher 
(and so do the buildings) setting the precedent for the next. New buildings in Plymouth will 
never cause 'substantial harm'.  

 
Other 
- How many apartments will be second homes or Airbnb lettings? 
- Are there going to be affordable homes to help local people? / Affordable housing has not 

been considered but appears to be outsourced to surrounding area proposed to follow in 
due course  

- Smoke and mirror attempts to offset affordable housing, car parking and net carbon zero 
targets. 

- The policy for this site should be reconsidered as an urban park to create a moderating 
influence on this proposed building tsunami.  

- The Applicant appears to take the position that all shortcomings in this application will be 
compensated for by other proposed buildings. This is unreasonable, risky, and possibly 
unenforceable and sets a bad precedent for avoiding regulatory framework.  

- Is the development purely a profit venture? 
- Neighbours will lose natural light, as will the eastern side of the Harbour. 
- Loss of view (not a material planning consideration) 
- There is a plethora of developed apartment buildings which are struggling to have occupation 

perhaps indicating a review of potential requirements.  
- Original 'restaurant' and bar units all around Sutton Harbour are still empty. There is little 

need for any more bar/restaurant units.  
- A public facility/space, possibly to encourage water based activities/café with car parking and a 

lower level apartment building may be more feasible.  
- The application does not conform with JLP policy 25 - Sugar House 
- No legal requirement for the developer to engage in meaningful participation (i.e. more 

accessible, collaborative and democratic) with the community and this is plainly evident in the 
application.  

- No evidence of place making in the application.  
- The proposed public realm and leisure areas are minimal with no attention paid to quality of 

life in a pandemic environment.  

Page 31



 

 

- Access to local green spaces has not been addressed satisfactorily. The application 
unrealistically proposes that Tothill Park (in  Prince Rock over a mile away) presents the 
opportunity to enhance existing linkage. The nearer Beaumont Park is ignored. 

- The application does not present a solution to access these parks across one of the busiest 
city strategic road routes. The smaller Teats Hill Park is not mentioned but could be 
overwhelmed by the addition of a substantial number of new residents to the locality.  

- Sufficient electric vehicle charging points should be provided for all residents and visitors. 
- The walkway should be made safe, especially for persons with disabilities and health 

challenges, by installing a barrier/fencing from the slipway to Foot Anstey. 
 
Support: 
- Great design/massive improvement. 
- Will look fantastic from the Barbican. 
- Should be welcomed. 
 
Following the submission of additional information/amended plans, including additional transport and 
highway information, updated landscape plans and revised ground floor plans amending the cycle 
store, a second public consultation took place (for twenty-one days, until the 15th June 2021). Two 
additional letters of objection were received on behalf of Sims Group UK Limited (neighbouring 
scrap metal business use) which raised the following points (in summary): 
 
Notification  
- Sims were not previously aware of the application(s). Disappointed that PCC elected not to 

inform them directly.  
- Sims sought to engage with the applicant directly prior to the submission of the formal 

application(s) seeking to engage collaboratively to ensure the proposals would not adversely 
affect Sims interests and to ensure the application was prepared on the  basis of the 
freedoms resulting from Use Class E.  

- Sims had understood the applicant would keep them informed. This did not happen.  
 
Requirements  
- Reference to the provisions of the NPPF in respect of the 'agent of change' paragraph 182, 

Planning Practice Guidance (30-009-20190722) and paragraphs 3.58 and 3.59 of JLP policy 
DEV 2.7. 

- Submission documents should adequately assess the cumulative impacts of proposed 
developments, including those in relation to the provisions of Use Class E to allow an 
application to be properly determined. 

 
Noise Impacts 
- PCC raised concerns throughout the pre-application enquiry in relation to noise impact from 

the industrial uses on the proposed  development and requested additional information on 
assessment of noise and appropriate mitigation measures. 

- The long term strategy of regenerating the area is not a sufficient reason to relax the need 
for mitigation measures. 

- Comments on submitted baseline survey results note the unattended daytime ambient noise 
levels are stated to be excluding the scrap  yard works, but it is not clear how that has been 
determined from the unattended long-term measurements.  

- When comparing the submitted results with official noise maps for England it would be 
expected to see daytime levels of 55 to 59 dB LAeq, 16 hour due to road traffic in the north 
west of the site, which is potentially 8 to 12 dB lower than reported. 

- The attended result from measurement position AP1, which is close to the measurement 
position of UP1, report levels of 66 dB LAeq, 15 min with the comment scrap yard works 

Page 32



 

 

measured at alternative location. This is inconsistent with the claim of UP1 results excludes 
scrap yard works. 

- The BS 8233:2014 'Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings' criteria 
for internal noise is not relevant when assessing industrial type noise. It only applies to 
anonymous noise, such as road traffic noise. 

- The assessment of noise from the Sims site should therefore be assessed in accordance with 
BS 4142:2014+A1:2019. 

- Based on working on other sites belonging to Sims and other similar facilities, the specific 
sound levels and rating levels would most likely be higher at the facades of the proposed 
developments. Initial 3D modelling carried out by RPS indicates specific sound  levels and 
rating levels of around 4 dB higher than what has been reported by Hoare Lea. This would 
result in internal noise levels  significantly higher than BS 8233:2014 criteria, despite it not 
being directly applicable to the industrial noise source. Typical a lower criterion would apply.  

- Internal noise levels for apartments facing south would be dominated by activities within the 
Sims site. 

- Drawings show balconies/openable doors on the south façade facing the Sims site. Higher 
noise levels would be expected when doors are open. 

- Noise levels on podiums facing south towards the Sims site would likely be affected by the 
activities on the site. 

- The characteristic of the noise would be highly distinctive and clearly discernible from other 
types of noise, such as road traffic. It would therefore be very likely that the noise would be 
considered incongruous, disruptive and annoying. It is reasonable  to assume that future 
residents would have a valid basis for complaining about noise. 

- As a result, the residential amenity would be significantly affected and with reference to the 
Noise Policy Statement for England (NPSE) [i], adverse noise effects would be above the 
'Significant Observed Adverse Effect Level' (SOAEL), i.e. the noise would very likely be 
considered present and disruptive, causing a material change in behaviour and/or attitude. 
The proposed development would not be compatible with the existing industrial 
neighbouring land use and the likelihood for unreasonable restrictions placed on Sims would 
be high. Therefore, the proposed development is not compliant with the NPSE or the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) [ii]. 

- It is recommended that a proper BS 4142:2014+A1:2019 assessment is carried out based on 
either sound source measurements from operations on the Sims site and/or 3D noise 
modelling using relevant source data. The assessment should include the external amenity 
areas. 

- It is further recommended that a full assessment of the road traffic noise is carried out. This 
should also include the external amenity areas on both facades (balconies), podium and roof 
levels. 

 
Air Quality Impacts 
- The Air Quality Assessments consider the suitability of the sites for NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 

concentrations from traffic-related emissions and conclude that predicted concentrations are 
below the relevant Air Quality Assessment Levels at the proposed receptors and therefore, 
the site is deemed suitable for its proposed use. However, the background NO2, PM10 and 
PM2.5 concentrations used in the assessments could be underestimating actual 
concentrations. The background concentration often represents a large proportion of the 
total pollution concentration, so it is important the background concentration selected for 
the assessment is realistic. 

- The background concentrations used in the Air Quality Assessments are Defra mapped 
background estimates, but these have not been compared with local measurements. 

- The use of Defra mapped concentrations at the Application Site may not be appropriate. 
- The Application Sites which are surrounded by a number of industrial sources could lead to 

increased PM concentrations. The Phase 1 Air Quality Assessment limits its consideration of 

Page 33



 

 

these industrial sources to the following statement in Section 4.3: A desk-based review of 
potential industrial sources using the UK Pollutant Release and Transfers Register and the 
Environment Agency's Pollution Inventory identified one source in the vicinity of the 
Application Site. Sims Metal Management, a scrapyard located approximately 20 m south of 
the Application Site has complied with its environmental permit in the last five years and 
therefore does not need to be considered further. 

- It is not clear where these distances are measured from, but it appears that they may have be 
measured from the nearest facade of the Proposed Development to the building on the Sims 
site rather than the Sims site boundary. RPS considers the proposed façade of the Phase 1 
development in particular to be much closer to the Sims site boundary than 20 m. It appears 
the assessments have only considered the operations in the buildings rather than including 
those operations within the external yard area. 

- The Phase 2 Air Quality Assessment and Addendum did not consider the effect of any 
potential industrial sources. 

- Furthermore, the conclusions of the Air Quality Assessments are only based on the fact that 
Sims has complied with its Environmental Permit for the past five years. The effect of the 
Sims site on the Proposed Development have not been considered further. The 
Environmental Permit requires Sims to apply the Best Available Techniques (BAT) to control 
dust and odour to minimise  emissions beyond the site boundary. After the application of 
BAT,  there will remain some residual emissions of dust and/or odour and there is still the 
potential for this to have an impact outside the site boundary. This is important because at 
the time the permit was granted, those residual effects would have been considered to be not 
significant based on the then-current land use of the surrounding area. The Environmental 
Permit for the Sims site was granted in 1993 to take effect on 19th May 1996. The land use of 
the surrounding area at that time was and remains less sensitive to air quality impacts from 
Sims' operations than those proposed in the three applications. 

- The Air Quality Assessments have not assessed the residual emissions from the Sims site 
operations for the proposed highly  sensitive land uses associated with the proposed 
developments. This is particularly important due to the proximity of the proposed 
development to the Sims site. 

- The November 2020 Environmental Wind Survey submitted with the Phase 1 planning 
application states Locations 10, 12, 14, 18, 20 and 21 (Refer Figure 31 and Figure 32) will 
experience a modest increase in wind speed, equivalent to one Lawson Comfort criterion 
level increase in most cases. These are primarily due to the impact of prevailing southwest 
winds and accelerations around the corners of the buildings. As the Proposed Development 
includes the introduction of highly sensitive land uses immediately downwind of the Sims site, 
RPS recommends that an assessment of residual dust and odour from the Sims site and any 
other nearby sources is undertaken. RPS recommends that this also considers any changes in 
wind speeds predicted in the Environmental Wind Survey. 

 
The Applicant sought to address concerns raised during this consultation, which prompted further 
correspondence from RPS consultants on behalf of Sims Group UK Limited confirming the original 
objection to the proposed development was to be maintained. 
 
In October 2021, a third and final consultation took place following the submission of amended plans 
and further information. The consultation ran for a period of 14 days until 2nd November 2021. 
There were no letters of representation received. 
 
These letter of representation have been considered by officers in the consideration and evaluation 
of the scheme set out below. Even when the comments are not directly referred to they have been 
considered in the assessment. 
 
7. Relevant Policy Framework 

Page 34



 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For the purposes of 
decision making, as on March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 
2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council 
and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor 
National Park. 
 
On 26 March 2019 of the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by all three 
of the component authorities. Following adoption, the three authorities jointly notified the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) of their choice to monitor the Housing 
Requirement at the whole plan level. This is for the purposes of the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) 
and the 5 Year Housing Land Supply assessment.  A letter from MHCLG to the Authorities was 
received on 13 May 2019 confirming the change. On 19th January 2021 MHCLG published the HDT 
2020 measurement.  This confirmed the Plymouth. South Hams and West Devon's joint HDT 
measurement as 144% and the consequences are None. 
  
Therefore a 5% buffer is applied for the purposes of calculating a 5 year land supply at a whole plan 
level. When applying the 5% buffer, the combined authorities can demonstrate a 5-year land supply 
of 5.8 years at end March 2021 (the 2021 Monitoring Point). This is set out in the Plymouth, South 
Hams & West Devon Local Planning Authorities' Housing Position Statement 2021 (published 12th 
November 2021).  
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), National Design Guidance, the scale and urgency of the 
climate change emergency, and Plymouth City Council's Declaration on Climate Emergency (March 
2019) for a carbon neutral city by 2030. Additionally, the following planning documents are also 
material considerations in the determination of the application: [add as appropriate].   
  
[the report should then seek to justify the weight given to all the relevant material consideration, add 
conclusion about whether it complies with current development plan policy so as to be clear that a 
decision is being recommended in accordance with the development plan or if not that there are 
other material considerations, including the emerging plan, which indicate otherwise]. 
 
8. Analysis 
This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the adopted Joint Local 
Plan, the Framework and other material considerations as set out in Section 7. 
 
Introduction 
1. Since the determination of the previous application in 2018, the Core Strategy and Sutton 

Harbour Area Action Plan (AAP) have been superseded by the adoption of the Joint Local 
Plan (JLP). The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted in March 2019 
and sets out the spatial planning framework for development in the city from 2014-2034. The 
principle relevant policy for the site is PLY25 (Sugar House, Sutton Harbour).  

 
Other relevant Joint Local Plan policies are: 
SPT1 Delivering Sustainable Development 
SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods 
SPT3 Provision for new homes 
SPT5 Provision for retail development 
SPT6 Spatial provision of retail and main town centre uses 
SPT9 Strategic principles for transport planning and strategy 

Page 35



 

 

SPT10 Balanced transport strategy for growth and healthy and sustainable communities 
SPT11 Strategic approach to the historic environment 
SPT12 Strategic approach to the natural environment 
SPT13 Strategic infrastructure measures to deliver the spatial strategy 
SPT14 European Sites - mitigation of recreational impacts from development 
PLY1 Enhancing Plymouth's strategic role 
PLY2 Unlocking Plymouths regional growth potential 
Strategic Objective SO3 Delivering growth in Plymouth City Centre and Waterfront Growth area 
PLY20 Managing and enhancing Plymouth's waterfront 
PLY21 Supporting the visitor economy 
PLY37 Strategic infrastructure measures for the City Centre and Waterfront Growth Area 
PLY62 Setting our strategic infrastructure priorities for the rest of the city 
DEV1 Protecting health and amenity 
DEV2 Air water soil noise land and light 
DEV7 Meeting local housing need in the Plymouth Policy area 
DEV9 Meeting local housing need in the Plan Area 
DEV10 Delivering high quality housing 
DEV16 Providing retail and town centre uses in appropriate locations 
DEV19 Provision for local employment and skills 
DEV20 Place shaping and quality of the built environment 
DEV21 Development affecting the historic environment 
DEV23 Landscape character 
DEV26 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation 
DEV27 Green and play space 
DEV28 Trees woodlands and hedgerows 
DEV29 Specific provisions relating to transport 
DEV30 Meeting the community infrastructure needs of new homes 
DEV31 Waste management 
DEV32 Delivering low carbon development 
DEV35 Managing flood risk and water quality impacts 
DEL1 Approach to development delivery and viability, planning obligations and the CIL 
 
2. Another change to local planning policy context is the Plymouth and South West Devon 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), which has now been adopted. The National 
Planning Policy Framework is an important material consideration in relation to this planning 
application, as is the supporting guidance contained in the National Planning Policy Guidance 
and National Design Guidance. 

 
3. As noted in the 'Planning History' section above (reference: 20/01162/ERS103), in the opinion 
of the Local Planning Authority an Environmental Impact Assessment is not required, as the 
proposed development would not be likely to have significant effects on the environment by virtue of 
its characteristics, location or the characteristic of the potential impacts. 
 
4. The main planning considerations are the principle of the proposed development, design 

considerations and the impact on the historic environment, transport issues; residential (both 
neighbouring and of future residents and neighbouring amenity; sustainability; flood 
risk/protection; impact on the natural environment and other environmental issues including 
noise and air quality. The consideration of these issues is explained in full below. 

 
The Principle of the Proposed Development 
 
5. The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle.  The JLP makes a 

positive allocation of the site (Policy PLY25) for a residential-led mixed use development 

Page 36



 

 

delivering in the order of 160 new homes.  The application is for such a scheme.  
Development of the site has been stalled for a significant period of time and this application 
presents an opportunity to address that matter. 

 
6. JLP Strategic Objective SO1 sets out the key elements of the JLP's spatial strategy, which 

includes the prioritisation of major growth in Plymouth's primary economic nodes.  One of 
these is the City Centre / Waterfront Growth Area and PLY25 is one of the key proposals 
within that Growth Area. 

 
7. Policies SPT1 and SPT2 set out the JLP's strategic approach to ensuring that development 

takes place in accordance with the principles of sustainable development, and the PLY25 site 
is allocated because it satisfies these locational principles including, for example its 
regeneration benefits, in a highly sustainable location on brownfield land. Through optimising 
the use of this previously developed site, this proposal will reduce the need for greenfield 
development, thus supporting JLP Policy SPT1.3 (i).  Additionally, the site is very well located 
to the vibrant mixed use centre of the Barbican and the City Centre, and provides for higher 
density living an aspiration in SPT2.1 and 2.  

 
8. JLP Strategic Objective SO2 seeks the unlocking of the growth potential of the City's Growth 

Areas as of key importance to consolidating and strengthening Plymouth's role as a major 
regional city.  Strategic Objective SO3 emphasises the role of the waterfront's economic 
assets in realising the potential of the City Centre and Waterfront Growth Area.  These 
objectives are supported particularly by policies PLY1, PLY2, PLY20 and PLY21 that seek to 
optimise the benefits of the waterfront in general and Sutton Harbour in particular.  The 
PLY25 allocation is a crucial part of the jigsaw for realising the potential of this Growth Area. 

 
9. The prominent and important waterfront site has been used as a temporary car park which, 

despite being in operation since 2009, is not an appropriate long-term use for this prime 
waterfront location and comprises a significant under-utilisation of this key regeneration 
opportunity. Officers, and some third party representations, therefore welcome the principle 
of developing this site, which will deliver much needed new homes within Plymouth, which is 
a priority for the Council. 

 
10. Whilst the site has benefitted from historic planning consents (see details above), whereby 

the Council has supported the principle of residential-led and mixed use development, for 
various reasons, these schemes have not progressed and the site remains undeveloped.  

 
11. The submitted documentation (page 3 of the Planning Statement) explains the most recent 

scheme, approved for the site in 2018 (planning application reference 18/01245/FUL), was not 
implemented as it was not viable to construct the underground car park. Whilst, now 
expired, this established planning history is a material planning consideration in the 
determination of the current application. Given the close similarities of the proposed 
development the Council considers that notwithstanding that the previous consent has lapsed 
a reasonable degree of weight is afforded to the previous consent as part of coming to this 
view that the previous scheme is a material planning consideration.  Officers have also 
considered the changed policy context since the grant of the previous consent in forming a 
recommendation for this application.   

 
12. As for the 2018 approval, the current scheme seeks consent for 170 dwellings ranging from 1 

to 3 bedrooms. The number of units is deemed to be 'in the order of 160' as set out in policy 
PLY25 and officers still welcome the mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom apartments with 3 bed units 
more likely to be occupied by families and 1 and 2 bed units appealing to people of a range of 
ages and family circumstances.  

Page 37



 

 

 
13. With regard to the commercial part of the scheme, the level of active ground floor frontage 

is supported by policy PLY25 which aims to create a vibrant waterfront. It is considered that 
the proposed commercial units will bring activity, surveillance and vibrancy to this part of the 
harbour. An active frontage condition is recommended to ensure all commercial windows 
remain visually transparent to improve security and ensure that adjoining streets are 
overlooked. 

 
14. The commercial units are double-height spaces with ground and first floors. The upper 

storeys would create improved waterfront views for occupants and support the success of 
the units.  

 
15. The applicant is seeking flexibility for the use of these commercial units 1 to 5 within parts of 

Class E. Officers support the principle of such flexibility and believe it could help to secure 
future occupants within these commercial units. However it is important to ensure that any 
activity here is not unduly harmful to residential amenity and units remain transparent to the 
street and this should not be compromised in the future. 

 
16. The principle of off-site parking was established by the previous grant of consent in 2018, as 

some of the parking was provided in Harbour Car Park. Such off-site provision frees up the 
ground floor plan for additional active ground floor frontage as parking does not need to be 
provided here which is a visual improvement on the previous scheme. 

 
17. As in 2018, concerns about the vacancy of other nearby commercial units has been raised 

within third party representations. The applicant is mindful of this, and has therefore sought 
consent for a variety of potential uses within Use Class E. It is noted the new Use Class E was 
introduced under the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2020 and came into force with effect from 1st September 2020 and gives greater 
freedom to operators to use their premises both for mixed uses - either for multiple uses at 
the same time or different uses at different times of the day (provided all uses fall within Use 
Class E) and also to switch between use(s) within the use class without the need for formal 
planning consent.  

 
18. The new Class E covers shops (formerly A1); professional and financial Services (formerly 

A2);, restaurants and cafes (formerly A3); business (office, research and development and 
light industrial) (formerly B1); medical or health services; crèches; day nurseries and day 
centres (formerly part of D1); indoor sport and recreation; fitness and gym uses (formerly 
part of D2). Such flexibility should improve the chances of occupation. In addition, it is noted 
that future occupiers of the proposed residential accommodation are likely to support 
existing and new commercial operations on this side of the harbour. On this basis, officers 
are satisfied that the proposed commercial units will help to deliver a greater level of activity 
in this part of the harbour in accordance with the aspirations of policy PLY25 to enliven the 
quayside with active ground floor uses and also meet the requirements of Policy DEV16.5 in 
providing town centre uses in the waterfront area supporting the visitor economy relating to 
the Sutton Harbour Waterfront area. More detailed consideration of the likely impact on 
town centre uses is considered below. 

 
19. In summary, in respect of the residential-led, mixed use development proposed, officers raise 

no objection in principle. Officers consider the proposal supports the aspirations of JLP 
strategic objectives SO1, SO2, SO3 ; JLP policies SPT1, SPT2, PLY1, PLY2, PLY20 and PLY21, 
and that the proposal is broadly consistent with the adopted JLP policy PLY25 and DEV16.5. 
Crucially, as was hoped in 2018, the proposal will bring a longstanding vacant/derelict site in 

Page 38



 

 

this prime gateway location back into use; such reuse in itself will bring significant benefits to 
the immediate environment. This position is subject to the detailed considerations below. 

 
Phasing and Delivery 
 
20. As outlined above, this application was originally part of a trio of interlinked planning 

applications and a five year consent was being sought by the applicant.  However, the Sutton 
Road East and St John's Bridge planning applications have now been withdrawn and a three 
year consent is now being sought. A standard three year commencement condition is 
included in this recommendation.  

 
21. Furthermore, as Sugar Quay is no longer dependant on Sutton Road East for car parking 

provision, it can be considered in isolation. Officers are content that Sugar Quay, by virtue of 
its design, visual prominence and siting, will have an acceptable and justified townscape impact 
as discussed below and are comfortable with determining this application in isolation of any 
potential forthcoming revised applications for the Sutton Road East and St Johns Bridge sites.  
Aspirations for the Sugar Quay site are clearly defined within JLP policy PLY25. 

 
Highways and Parking 
 
22. In considering the highways and parking matters of the scheme the JLP policy DEV29 and 

accompanying guidance in the SPD is relevant alongside that set out at a national level.  The 
specialist advice of the Local Highway Authority is also a significant consideration and the 
letters of representation have also been considered. In terms of the principle of development, 
as set out above this has been established. It is noted that the LHA raised no highway 
objections to the previous application 18/01245/FUL, subject to the inclusion of certain 
planning conditions.  

 
23. It is relevant in terms of highway impacts that a marginal increase from 2,947sq.m to 

3,102sq.m of commercial floor space is proposed.  However, the key fundamental difference 
with this application is the omission of on-site car parking.  Instead, the parking is to be 
provided at the Harbour Car Park. 

 
Trip Generation 
 
24. Based upon the trip rates derived from the TRIC's database for Flats Privately Owned agreed 

for the consented Sugar Quay scheme, the LHA have advised that the proposed development 
would likely generate approximately 45 two-way trips in both the am and pm peak hours. 
The LHA consider such a low number of stand-alone vehicular trips would be unlikely to give 
rise to concerns in relation to capacity on the local road network. It is therefore considered 
that the trip generation of the scheme is acceptable and therefore there is no conflict with 
JLP policy DEV29. 

 
Car Parking 
 
25. As set out in the sections above, the proposals for car parking have altered from the original 

submission.  Instead, parking provision would be located in the Harbour Car Park which will 
be extended in accordance with planning consent 18/01246/FUL. The applicants have confirm 
that they are currently commencing the implementation of this scheme. 

 
26. Based upon the quantum and size of the units proposed, calculated through the SPD it is 

considered that a total of 267 spaces would be required to serve the development. However, 

Page 39



 

 

due to the location of the site, on the edge of the city centre, the applicant sought a 
reduction in the level of parking on the grounds the site can be accessed sustainably. 

 
27. At the request of the LHA and in accordance with the SPD, the applicant provided supporting 

information detailing levels of car ownership within the local and wider area (based upon 
Census Output areas). The results indicated that 38% of properties in the area had no cars, 
48% had one car and 10% owned two or more cars. Taking account of this information and 
the accessible location of the development, in terms of availability and access to sustainable 
modes of transport, the LHA confirmed there were no in-principle objections to the level of 
car parking proposed, equivalent to 0.8 spaces per unit. Furthermore, the applicant confirmed 
a willingness to offer those units without an allocated parking space the opportunity to 
purchase a Harbour Car Park permit that would provide residents with access to a parking 
space. 

 
28. This proposal has been considered by the LHA and the principle of delivering off-site car 

parking provision to serve the development has already been established by the previous 
consent.  While, a level of parking would normally be expected on site in tight urban areas, 
including the waterfront area it is not always the case. In consultation with the LHA it is 
considered that the proposal is acceptable in this case. The LHA have advised the number of 
spaces to be provided would need to increase from 62 to 172 at the Harbour Car Park given 
the change in on site provision. This provision includes 136 spaces to serve the residential 
units proposed at Sugar Quay and 36 spaces to offset those lost on site when the temporary 
car park ceases operating on the site. 

 
28. The LHA have considered survey data submitted in support of a planning application to 

increase the size of the Harbour Car Park from 364 spaces to 478 spaces (approved under 
planning application reference 18/01246/FUL). The survey revealed Harbour Car Park on an 
average weekday is 30% occupied when taking account of the planned extension that will 
provide 114 additional spaces to the facility. The LHA have advised that sufficient capacity 
would be provided within the Harbour car park to meet the car parking demands arising 
from the development (172 spaces) in addition to its current use. However, this is very much 
dependent upon the works to increase the capacity of the car park being delivered prior to 
the occupation of any of the residential units proposed at Sugar Quay. The LHA and case 
officer therefore consider that a Grampian condition be attached to any grant of consent 
relating to the additional parking being delivered. 

 
29. During the course of the application, legal advice was sought in relation to the acceptability of 

increasing the number of parking spaces allocated to Sugar Quay residents within the 
Harbour Car Park from 62 to 172. In particular, guidance was sought on whether there was 
suitable flexibility within the consent that was granted (18/01246/FUL) to increase and secure 
additional parking provision to serve all the needs of Sugar Quay residents, rather than a 
restricted number. The advice received concluded that nothing in terms of the extant 
planning permission (reference 18/01246/FUL) would restrict the additional allocation of 
spaces to future residents.  

 
30. Given that there will be an increase in the allocation of spaces at the Harbour Car Park to 

serve the development; the LHA have advised that this will necessitate an increase in the 
number of electric vehicle (EV) charging points to be provided within the Harbour Car Park. 
Application of the standards for EV charging points as outlined in the JLP SPD requires a total 
of 34 EV charging points to be provided within the Harbour Car Park to serve the 
development. The LHA recommend using a planning condition to secure this level of 
provision, in accordance with JLP policy DEV29 and the SPD and this is considered 
reasonable and necessary. 

Page 40



 

 

 
31. The final point in relation to parking is that the LHA have advised the development would be 

excluded from the Controlled Parking Zones operating in the area and suggest including an 
informative to address this matter. 

 
32. Given these considerations the scheme is considered acceptable in relation to parking subject 

to appropriate planning conditions being applied to the decision. 
 
Cycle Provision 
 
33. In terms of cycle provision, the applicant is proposing 138 secure and covered cycle parking 

spaces within a communal facility in the building. The LHA have considered this and accept 
this provision and recommend a planning condition to ensure the delivery of this cycle 
parking. The LHA also advise that consideration is given to providing some charging points 
with the cycle store area in order to cater for electric bikes. 

 
34. The cycling parking requirement of the commercial units also needs to be considered and the 

LHA have advised that additional secure and covered cycle parking should be provided to 
serve the commercial units in accordance with the approved minimum standards (particularly 
for uses such as the Gym etc.) this is therefore proposed to be secured by conditions to 
promote more sustainable travel. 

 
Layout 
 
35. In terms of the layout of the scheme, it is important to ensure that it appropriately 

interrelates to the surrounding environment. The LHA had raised concerns with regard to 
the outward opening doors proposed on the ground floor that were considered to pose 
safety concerns to public highway users. The applicant subsequently provided amended plans 
to address these matters to the satisfaction of the LHA (drawing reference 7376_030). The 
LHA has also identified concern with the canopies projecting out over the loading bay on the 
Sutton Road building frontage advising that there would need to be sufficient clearance 
between any projecting structures and high sided vehicles using the loading/unloading bay.  
Given these concerns, officers consider that a condition to ensure that there is sufficient 
space will be required. The urban design officer has also raised concern as to whether the 
layout provides sufficient space for pedestrians given the close relationship of the layby to 
other structures and as such this detail will also be covered by condition. 

 
Accessibility 
 
36. The proposed development is in a highly accessible location. However, there are a number of 

areas surrounding the site where existing infrastructure particularly for pedestrian's falls 
below the required minimum standards or there are opportunities to improve provision. In 
particular, the LHA reference a number of junctions where there are no dropped kerbs or 
tactile paving, which would be the very minimum in terms of encouraging increased walking 
and cycling. 

 
37. At the request of the LHA the applicant undertook an assessment of walking and cycling 

routes to and from the development, with those routes primarily focused on the route to the 
City Centre from the development via Bretonside and to and from the Harbour Car Park. 
The assessment determined a list of sites where localised improvements are required namely 
the provision of dropped kerbs and tactile paving crossing points. These works are listed in 
Tables 3.1 and 3.2 of the Technical Note Post Application Highways Response document 
dated November 2021.  It is considered that these works are necessary to make the 

Page 41



 

 

development acceptable in terms of accessibility and therefore, these will be conditioned for 
delivery. 

 
38. There are also a number of off-site highway works which are proposed through the scheme.  

This includes works proposed on Sutton Road including the provision of a new zebra crossing 
and loading bay along the Sugar Quay frontage; subject to these details being secured by 
condition, the proposed development is considered acceptable in terms of the layout of the 
scheme in accessibility terms. 

 
Travel Plan 
 
39. A Framework Travel Plan (FTP) has been submitted, which includes measures/initiatives to be 

implemented that will encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel as an alternative to 
the private car. However, the LHA have highlighted that there needs to be updated 
information on the specifics of the scheme. This is considered necessary to ensure that the 
promotion of sustainable travel is achieved and recommended to be secured as a condition.  

 
Transport Conclusion 
 
40. In summary, in terms of the highways and transport consideration of the scheme the proposal 

is considered acceptable subject to a number of planning conditions.  Officers conclude that 
the proposals are consistent with the requirements of JLP policies PLY25, DEV29, SPT1 and 
SPT2 and as such the proposal is acceptable in highways terms subject to the conditions set 
out below. 

 
Design 
 
41. In considering, the design detail of the proposal it is important to consider the design of the 

building, changes from the previous scheme, landscaping and other key matters in considering 
the proposal against the policy requirements of DEV20 and PLY25 and the guidance set out in 
the SPD, NPPF, NPPG and national design guidance. 

  
Design - 18/01245/FUL Scheme 
 
42. Given the scale and prominence of this application, it is useful to understand the relationship 

to the previous consent on the site which is considered an important material planning 
consideration when considering the acceptability of the current scheme. The current 
proposal is very similar to the original scheme in design terms; limited external changes have 
been made to the building and the changes largely relate to the removal of the car parking 
from the scheme. 

 
43. During the evolution of the 18/01245/FUL scheme, the site was located within the Tall 

Building Zone of Opportunity in the adopted Sutton Harbour AAP, Core Strategy and Design 
SPD - documents which have now been superseded by the JLP. Although the principle of 
optimising development on the site has long been supported in planning policy, the accented 
massing the scheme proposed was a significant departure from previously consented schemes 
and masterplans. With the 18/01245/FUL proposal, officers undertook extensive design 
discussions and negotiations with the architect at the pre-application and application stages, 
to assess the appropriateness of the new three dimensional form of the development and in 
particular, the proposed tower's location and height. The scheme evolved to a point where 
officers considered that its architectural quality and distinctiveness created a high quality, 
memorable landmark and that there was justification for the developments' accented height. 

 

Page 42



 

 

44.  As part of the pre-application enquiry (reference 19/01806/MJR) which considered the 
changes proposed to the consented Sugar Quay Scheme and also development associated 
with the now withdrawn applications across Sutton Road; The scheme was considered by an 
independent Design Review Panel (DRP) on the 16th July 2020. As planning consent had 
previously been granted for the 2018 Sugar Quay scheme and limited design changes have 
been proposed, the DRP raised no significant issues.   

 
45. Given the above it is considered that the acceptance of the scheme previously is a material 

planning consideration in terms of the current scheme. It is however the case that the policy 
framework has changed including the adoption of the Joint Local Plan, SPD but also changes 
to the NPPF and the National Design Guide. Planning officers and colleagues in urban design 
have considered the scheme in light of these and are in principle supportive of the building 
and scheme design. This is subject to the considerations set out below. 

 
Removal of the Basement Car Park 
46. Turning to the current proposal, a key change from the consented scheme (reference 

18/01245/FUL) is the removal of the basement car park.  This change results in some minor 
revisions to the south and east ground floor elevations, these change are considered positive 
from an urban design perspective and it will result in fewer vehicle movements along 
Marrowbone Slip and a more pedestrian-friendly, humane and usable space for people around 
the building at this point and are visually also considered acceptable. 

 
Change to Heating System / First Floor 
47. Another amendment is to the building's main heating system, which has been changed from 

gas to air-source heat pumps. The change to a low-carbon/renewable heat system is positive, 
although the subsequent loss of the mezzanine floor from Commercial Unit 2 is disappointing.  
However it is positive that the projecting exhaust flue at roof level has been removed from 
the scheme. 

 
Change to Landscape Strategy 
48. During the application the landscape strategy for the scheme has been amended following 

negotiation with the Planning Officers, Urban Design and Natural Infrastructure Team. The 
scheme as proposed now is considered to present a good quality approach to the site and its 
wider existing and potential future connections should a future scheme come forward across 
Sutton Road. It equally provides a suitable relationship to the Waterfront which enables part 
of the area to be made available for future events space. As requested by the consultation 
response from Urban Design and Natural Infrastructure final specific details of both the hard 
and soft landscaping will need to be secured by detailed conditions. 

  
Materials 
49. The proposed materials palette has not substantially changed from the consented scheme.  As 

before, it is agreed there is an opportunity for innovation here, particularly given the site's 
gateway role, and it is positive the use of render has been avoided, given its poor 
performance, staining and algae growth on adjacent buildings.  However, it is essential the 
materials are specified to be suitably robust, and are able to weather attractively. All 
metalwork and external materials should be of marine grade or suitable specification and as 
such notwithstanding the submitted information, with regards to all external building 
materials, it is proposed that a condition be added to ensure key material specifications are 
agreed including sample panels showing proposed materials together. This will ensure 
materials and design of the building are resilient to their context and that they will endure 
over time.  This is consistent with the requirements of JLP policies PLY25 and DEV20 and the 
SPD. It is also considered that a maintenance condition is secured for the building to ensure 
the quality of the design and the building appearance is secured long term. 

Page 43



 

 

 
Lighting Scheme 
50. In accordance with JLP policies DEV2 and DEV10, it is requested that a lighting scheme be 

developed in consultation with the LPA, to ensure the building functions as a strategic urban 
marker at night, whilst being sensitive to light pollution, residential amenity and biodiversity 
and as such this is conditioned. 

 
Commercial Units Detail 
51. The visual appearance of the commercial units is considered acceptable however as 

recommended by colleagues in urban design it is considered that a design code for the 
commercial unit signage is required to ensure a high quality cohesive approach which does 
not undermine the quality of the overall architectural composition.  A condition which 
ensures all shopfronts and ground floor windows remain principally transparent and clear of 
obstructions, such as vinyl adhesive films or display stands, to safeguard active frontage is also 
recommended.  This will ensure the quality of the development is of high quality design and is 
consistent with the requirements of JLP policies PLY20 and PLY25. 

 
Sutton Harbour Heritage Trail 
52. The scheme is located on the route of the Sutton Harbour Heritage Trail and has an 

important historic role in the area.  In accordance with JLP policy PLY25, the scheme should 
provide details of interpretation of historic features, to form a part of the Sutton Harbour 
Heritage Trail.  The development of this should draw upon the historic environment ensuring 
it makes a positive contribution to local character and the enhancement of local 
distinctiveness in the measures proposed. Officers recommend the detail of this should be 
agreed with the LPA by condition. 

 
Design - Conclusions 
53. The design of the proposal and its impact on the Sutton Harbour and city townscape is 

understandably one of the principle issues for consideration in this case given the height and 
prominence of the proposed building and its visual impact when viewed from nearby historic 
settings. As noted above, issues of design and visual impact have been raised in several 
submitted letters of representation. Officers have considered these in their consideration as 
well as the advice of consultees. 

 
54. Overall, officers consider the scheme can be supported in design terms, subject to a series of 

conditions. The development is considered to contribute positively to the existing high quality 
waterfront design and is in keeping with the variety of building styles that give Sutton 
Harbour and the Barbican it's locally distinctive character. The development is considered on 
this basis to accord with JLP policies SPT2, PLY20, DEV20, DEV23 and DEV27, the National 
Design Guide: Planning practice guidance for beautiful, enduring and successful places (2019) 
and paragraphs 127-130 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021. This is subject to 
the further consideration in relationship to the historic environment below. 

 
Historic Environment 
55. The townscape within which the proposal is situated comprises of a large number of heritage 

assets. The site is visible from the City Centre Conservation Area and the Barbican 
Conservation Area, the boundary of which extends to include the western side of the 
harbour basin, opposite the application site. A development of the scale proposed will have 
an impact on the setting of this conservation area as well as a visual impact on a number of 
designated heritage assets, including many listed buildings including the Royal Bank of Scotland 
Build and the scheduled monuments of the Royal Citadel and Mount Batten Tower. 

 

Page 44



 

 

56. Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that 
when considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a 
listed building or its setting, the LPA shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving 
the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 
possesses. Section 72(1) of the Act contains similar requirements with respect to buildings or 
land in a conservation area. Although the setting of conservation areas is not a statutory duty 
in primary legislation, the NPPF states the setting of a designated heritage asset can 
contribute to its significance and Policy DEV21 also provides protection for such features. 

 
57. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF (2021) states that 'When considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given 
to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should 
be)' Paragraph 200 confirms that 'any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 
should require clear and convincing justification.' 

 
58. In this case, impacts on the heritage assets can only be to their setting as there is no physical 

connection between the development and the designated heritage assets. The NPPF defines 
'Setting of a heritage asset' as follows: 'the surroundings in which a heritage asset is 
experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. 
Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an 
asset, may affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral.' 

 
59. It has been accepted by officers, including the Historic Environment officer, and Historic 

England (HE) that the site in question can take a large, landmark building, higher than those 
immediately adjacent to it. Its sensitive location means the development should be of a high 
quality and an innovative design has been encouraged and achieved in accordance with JLP 
policy PLY25, so officers are supportive of the building having a striking appearance. Historic 
England (HE) have been consulted on the scheme and in their response acknowledge the 
previous advice and considerations they gave to the previous application. In terms of the 
schemes impact on the Royal Citadel Historic England conclude that 'The information 
supplied demonstrates that while the proposed building would rise above the Citadel in 
longer-range views, it would not be visible from any part of the Area within 600 metres of 
the shoreline. Where the proposed building would rise above the Citadel in longer views 
from Plymouth Sound, it would be read against a backdrop of existing townscape. This being 
the case, we agree that any visual impact on the setting of the Royal Citadel is likely to be 
negligible.' 

 
60. In addition to the above, HE  have raised concerns regarding the harm the building will have 

on the setting of the Grade II listed Royal Bank of Scotland premises which terminates the 
view eastwards along Royal Parade and also the City Centre Conservation Area.  However, 
HE has confirmed that the proposals will cause less than substantial harm to the setting of the 
RBS building. In considering the application of critical importance to this balancing required 
on this scheme, given the requirements of sections 66(1) and 72(1) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and national historic environment policy set out 
in chapter 16 of the NPPF, it is officers' view that any harm to heritage assets is 'less than 
substantial'. Whilst objections have been raised to both this and the previous application, the 
Local Planning Authority's Historic Environment Officer, nor Historic England claim that 
'substantial harm' will be caused in the determination of the previous application or the 
current scheme. 

 
61. In this regard officers recognise that the site is currently derelict and a new development will 

improve the appearance of the area and is allocated for development in policy PLY25 of the 

Page 45



 

 

JLP. The design and massing of the proposed building have been during the two applications 
evolved and been carefully considered. Whilst third party representations are and have been 
critical of the design, height and massing of the proposed building officers consider that the 
scheme's architectural quality and distinctiveness will provide a high quality, memorable 
landmark which justifies the development's height.  

 
62. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states that 'Where a development proposal will lead to less than 

substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its 
optimum viable use.' It is concluded by officers that the scheme will inevitably change the 
setting of the conservation area, particularly as a result of its scale, but officers are in 
agreement that this constitutes 'less than substantial'. Weighing up this 'less than substantial' 
harm, against its numerous benefits (which are set out elsewhere in this report), Officers 
conclude that the proposal can be accepted.  

 
Archaeology 
63. In terms of archaeology, the proposed development area is situated on a vacant space in 

between other modern tall buildings on the east side of Sutton Harbour where previous 
archaeological evaluation in 2006 exposed limestone walls defining quayside and property 
boundaries with recorded 17th century owners. One of the buildings exposed is arguably of 
international importance - the Sugar House, known to have been in existence before 1633 
when it was in the ownership of Samuel Buttall a 'sugar baker'. The excavation revealed 
evidence of sugar production on site from sugar cane imported from the 'New World', 
offloaded at Sutton Harbour and processed using specially made cones and syrup jars (which 
we believe were made in the Plympton St Mary area where kiln wasters were found some 
years ago). The site, therefore, illustrates the significant trade links between Plymouth and the 
Americas once sugar-cane plantations took root in the 17th century. Had the development 
not stalled, the results would have been published at National Journal level probably in Post-
Medieval Archaeology. Due to the loss of revenue all that emerged was a paragraph summary 
and a block plan in Post-Med Archaeology (2009). The Councils Historic Environment Officer 
has considered the submitted information and given the potential significance of the site 
recommended a restrictive condition, seeking a programme of archaeological work.  This is 
considered an important requirement of the future redevelopment of this site and a pre-
commencement condition is included.  

 
Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 
64. The consideration of such a large scheme on the surrounding residential environment is a key 

consideration of the scheme and the policy requirement of policy's DEV1 and DEV2 of the 
JLP are a key consideration. 

 
Overshadowing/Loss of Light 
65. Overshadowing impacts are likely to be experienced most acutely by the commercial building 

known as Salt Quay House and to a much lesser extent to the proposed Harbour Arch Quay 
residential development and adjacent Pinnacle Quay as well as the Jewson's Yard and other 
commercial development on the other side of Sutton Road. There will also be overshadowing 
of the harbour itself; however this will only occur in the mornings.  

 
66. The submitted 'Illustrative Sun Path Study' allows a detailed assessment of these impacts. It 

compares the overshadowing impacts of the existing and proposed scenario at the summer 
and winter solstices and spring and autumn equinoxes. These suggest that with a lower solar 
altitude, the worst case scenario for overshadowing will occur in the winter months, whereby 
longer shadows will be cast. Whilst significant overshadowing will inevitably occur from a 
building of this height, the buildings primarily affected are commercial and it is not considered 

Page 46



 

 

that overshadowing will impact their operation. Therefore, Officers are satisfied this impact 
could not warrant the refusal of planning consent in this case. 

 
67. Maintaining sufficient light to East Quay House North is more critical as this building primarily 

comprises residential units. However, as this residential building lies due south of the 
application Site, overshadowing will not occur and the relationship between proposal and 
these residential units is therefore acceptable and proposal would not conflict with JLP 
policies DEV1 and DEV2 in this regard. 

 
Overlooking/Visual Prominence 
68. By virtue of the proposed 'T' shaped design, the main bulk and massing of the building has 

been arranged in a way that it is set away from the neighbouring residential accommodation 
in East Quay House North. 

 
69. At the closest point (i.e. the south elevation to the Sutton Road/Marrowbone Slip corner) 

there is approximately 15.3m between the proposed development and East Quay House 
North. This complies with the guidance within the Development Guidelines Supplementary 
Planning Document which recommends that developments over three storeys in height 
should be set away from existing residential windows by at least 15m to maintain sufficient 
outlook. 

 
70. Given the application site has remained undeveloped and derelict for a significant period of 

time, the properties to the side of East Quay House have become accustomed to unimpeded 
views north. This proposal would severely interrupt, and in many cases sever completely, 
those views. The Courts have long held that Local Planning Authorities cannot protect 
individual private views and the impact upon existing private views from a development 
proposal is not a legitimate matter of planning concern. 

 
71. The planning system does however provide for the consideration of overbearing impacts, and 

given the size of the building and its proximity, residents of East Quay House North will 
clearly perceive an impact. However, taking in to account the policy aspiration for 
development in this location set out in JLP policy PLY25, where higher densities are a typical 
character of the locality, these localised negative impacts must ultimately be weighed against 
the wider benefits of the site development. As was the case when the scheme was previously 
considered the current scheme is, on balance, considered by officers to be acceptable and 
accords with the requirements of JLP policies DEV 1, DEV10 and PLY25. 

 
Privacy/Overlooking 
72. In terms of privacy, the SPD suggests distances of 21m for facing habitable windows or 28m 

for dwellings of 3+ storeys. The north elevation of East Quay House North comprises the 
primary frontage of several residential units, many of which benefit from balconies and 
generous floor-to-ceiling windows - these windows are likely to be most sensitive to loss of 
privacy due to their width and full height. 

 
73. As noted above, the proposed Sutton Road/Marrowbone Slip corner of the development lies 

within 15.4m (approx.) of neighbouring windows and balconies. Such separation distance falls 
significantly short of that recommended in the relevant guidance document for the protection 
of privacy. Therefore, a restrictive condition is recommended to ensure that all of the 
windows on the residential first to fourth floors in the side (south) elevation (immediately 
adjacent to Marrowbone Slip), shall at all times be obscured to protect neighbouring privacy 
and to make the scheme acceptable. This is considered reasonable and to not unduly impact 
the amenity of the future occupiers of the building. 

 

Page 47



 

 

74. Whilst balconies are proposed to serve units fronting Marrowbone Slip, all balconies are at 
eighth floor level and above. Given the adjacent East Quay House North contains only four 
storeys of residential accommodation, the balconies will look out over the neighbouring 
building. Therefore, in accordance with JLP policy DEV1 officers are satisfied there will not be 
an undue loss of privacy. 

 
75. Other residential windows in the north and south elevations (within the 'stem of the T') do 

not create any significant opportunities for overlooking, as adequate separation distances are 
achieved - 23.8m (approx.) from Salt Quay House to the north and 45.5m (approx.) from 
East Quay House North to the south. 

 
76. Third party representations have raised concerns/objections regarding the potential loss of 

privacy/overlooking caused by the proposed height of the commercial units (at ground floor 
and mezzanine level) and the associated roof garden/dining area. At the closest point, these 
units and their raised external seating areas are sited approximately 18m from East Quay 
House North. During the course of the consideration of the application the use of the  
external roof space has been discussed with the applicant and it has been agreed that with the 
exception of the balcony's and enclosed amenity space there will be no further use of the 
roof space for residential or commercial use. This will be restricted by condition. In terms of 
the units themselves officers acknowledge there will be some impact in terms of 
overlooking/loss of privacy. Whilst it is important to maintain active ground floor frontages, 
officers consider that some form of screening could be introduced at mezzanine level to 
protect neighbouring amenity in accordance with JLP policy DEV1.  

 
Noise and Disturbance - Construction Phase 
77. The construction phase of any approved development here has the potential to disturb 

nearby residential dwellings. Officers, however, consider that a Code of Practice condition 
could be included on any grant of planning consent to minimise/control this. In accordance 
with JLP policy DEV2, a Code of Practice would cover all potential aspects of nuisance with 
regards to the development and should acknowledge the development has the potential to 
impact others. 

 
Neighbouring Amenity - Conclusions 
78. Overall, in amenity terms, officers acknowledge the scheme would have an impact on 

adjacent residential occupiers. However, this impact is not deemed unacceptable with 
reference to JLP policies DEV1 and DEV2, the SPD and the NPPF. 

 
Proposed Residential Amenity 
79. Officers welcome the fact the scheme includes a mix of 1, 2 and 3-bedroom apartments, 

which could appeal to a range of people and families. In accordance with JLP policy DEV7, the 
proposed mix will help to meet local housing needs in the Plymouth Policy Area particularly 
the larger units. 

 
80. According to the submitted information, the proposed residential apartments all meet or 

exceed the internal space standards set out in the Nationally Described Space Standards 
(NDSS), which accords with JLP policy DEV10 and is supported by the SPD ensuring that all 
residents would benefit from sufficient living space. 

o The minimum 1 Bed, 2 Person Apartment area is: 51sqm (NDSS for a 1bed, 2persons, 1 
storey dwelling is 50sqm). 

o The minimum 2 Bed, 3 Person Apartment area is: 61sqm (NDSS for a 2bed, 3persons, 1 
storey dwelling is 61sqm).The minimum 2 Bed, 4 Person Apartment area is: 72sqm (NDSS for 
a 2bed, 4persons, 1 storey dwelling is 70sqm). 

Page 48



 

 

o The minimum 3 Bed, 5 Person Apartment area is: 107.4sqm (NDSS for a 3bed, 4 
persons, 1 storey dwelling is 74sqm) 

o The minimum 3 Bed, 6 Person Apartment area is: 110.91sqm (NDSS for a 3bed, 5 persons, 1 
storey dwelling is 95sqm) 
 
81. The depth of the proposed building results in a central corridor with apartment units either 

side. As a result of this proposed internal layout, most of the units are single aspect. Open 
plan layouts have been adopted in some units so kitchen/dining areas can rely on 'borrowed 
light' from windows, which primarily serve living spaces. Whilst this is not ideal, officers are 
satisfied that future occupier(s) would benefit from acceptable levels of amenity in accordance 
with the principles of JLP policies DEV1, DEV10 and DEV20 and the SPD guidance. 

 
82. The ground floor will provide some shared residential services, with a front and rear 

entrance and lift/stair hall, as well as access to bin stores and cycle Stores. Public amenity 
space is offered at ground level via the new public square; all units have private external 
amenity space in the form of balconies and roof terraces, which are welcomed in principle. 
This is in line with other residential developments in the area and given the waterfront 
location, future occupiers will have access to public open spaces that are amongst the highest 
in the city, including the Hoe Registered Park (Grade II). In line with the SPD, balconies 
should be a useable size of at least 3sqm to be considered an 'amenity space'. The balconies 
proposed all exceed this standard.  The SDP states that flat developments should provide for 
50sqm of amenity space per development plus 5sqm additional per units over five for this 
scheme this would require 900m2 of amenity space. The development exceeds this with 
2770.15 m2 provided by a combination of balconies and roof gardens. 

 
83. The site is bound by long established commercial premises including a scrap yard, timber 

merchants and car garage. Current commercial operators generate a significant amount of 
noise and other adverse environmental effects which would be harmful to neighbouring 
residential amenity. Whilst, it is noted there is existing residential properties nearby, including 
Alma Cottages and pockets of housing to the northeast, this is a long established relationship 
which benefits from a greater degree of separation. 

 
Noise - Existing Residents 
84. In terms of the surround areas residential amenity the construction phase will be a disruptive 

period which is the case with all development. The Public Protection Service (PSPS) 
acknowledge that construction works are likely to impact on neighbouring residents and 
recommend a condition requiring a Construction and Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP). In particular, the PPS suggest restricting construction hours as follows: Monday - 
Friday 8am - 6pm and Saturday 8.30am - 1pm.  Securing this will ensure that construction 
works do not occur during anti-social hours for neighbouring residents.  

 
Air Quality - Existing Residents 
85. An air quality assessment has been submitted alongside the application and it concludes that 

the operational phase will have a negligible impact on air quality.  Following a review of this 
assessment, the PPS have confirmed no mitigation in this respect is required.  Although, it is 
noted by officers that the requested CEMP would help limit dust and other disruptions which 
could impact on Air Quality.  

 
Contaminated Land 
86. The PPS acknowledge the contaminated land risk assessment report submitted with the 

application has identified potential pollutant linkages, particularly as a result of the historic use 
of the site. The submitted report recommends an intrusive investigation to assess the ground 

Page 49



 

 

conditions on site and the PPS are in agreement that a Phase 2 investigation should be carried 
out. As such, this would be conditioned. 

 
Noise - Future Residents 
87. A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted alongside the application and reviewed by 

the Public Protection Service (PPS). The PPS consider the proposal is in close proximity to 
existing businesses and therefore, there may be a noise impact on future occupants of the 
proposed development from existing uses in the surrounding area. The PPS, therefore, 
recommend conditions to ensure a suitable British Standard is achieved (BS8233) to deliver 
adequate sound insulation within the proposed development to mitigate against this impact 
and to ensure development accords with DEV1 and DEV2 of JLP'. 

 
88. The noise assessment states that ventilation would be by mechanical means to avoid the need 

for opening windows on the more noise exposed facades. The PPS note the report does not 
provide specific details, such as, which dwellings will be fitted with mechanical ventilation and 
the PPS recommend a condition to ensure these matters are agreed with the LPA prior to 
construction. 

 
89. Representations were received on behalf of Sims Group Limited, which occupy land near the 

application site. In letters dated 15/06/2021 and 08/09/2021 (it is noted that these relate to 
both the Sugar Quay scheme and also the two now withdrawn applications across Sutton 
Road) a number of concerns were raised, in particular, attention was drawn to the perceived 
noise impacts and air quality impacts of Sims business operations on new occupants within 
the proposed development and the impact on the Simm operations going forward. A detailed 
Technical Note was submitted with the second letter. 

 
90. The PPS have reviewed the submitted information and advised in their consultation response, 

that it is considered that the proposed development has been appropriately designed to 
ensure suitable mitigation is in place to protect future occupants from external noise, 
specifically, for example, there are no balconies proposed on the eastern side of the building 
and mechanical ventilation will also be installed. The PPS confirm the application is supported 
by a noise assessment, which demonstrates suitable internal noise levels can be achieved, 
which can be secured by condition. Having gained this response from the Council PPS, 
officers having considered the concerns conclude subject to conditions this is an acceptable 
relationship in relation to Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the JLP 

 
Ventilation 
91. There are number of ventilation/plant systems proposed in the development and in order to 

ensure these systems do not adversely impact residents of the building a condition is 
recommend to ensure the detailing and systems proposed are appropriate.  This will also 
ensure they are visually acceptable as requested by the Urban Design Consultation. 

 
Commercial Uses Impacts 
92. In relation to the commercial units, it is acknowledged there are potential impacts from noise 

and odour to both the existing and future residents. The PPS recommend a condition 
requiring a management plan prior to the operation of any commercial unit, to ensure 
adequate measures are in place to control noise and odour. In addition, the PPS recommend 
conditions to control opening hours and delivery times. These recommendations are all 
considered necessary in order that residential amenity is preserved of both the future and 
existing residents and to ensure proposal complies with requirements of JLP policies DEV1 
and DEV2. 

 

Page 50



 

 

93. The Noise Impact Assessment has considered the potential operation of the commercial 
units as a restaurant and gym space; This assessment has identified that internally generated 
noise from the commercial units to residential properties should not exceed 25 dB LAeq, 
15min and 35 dB LAF max at any time. The PPS recommend a condition to ensure these 
levels are not exceeded. 

 
94. Having considered in detail the residential amenity considerations for the site and the 
surrounding area officers consider, on balance, the proposed scheme is acceptable with regard to 
residential amenity, and its relationship to the surrounding area and uses.  The development is 
deemed acceptable in terms of JLP policies DEV1, DEV10, DEV2 and DEV20 and the guidance 
contained in the SPD. 
 
Refuse and Recycling 
95. JLP policy DEV31 sets out the requirements for waste management. The proposal includes 

two separate waste and recycling stores at ground-floor level which would serve both the 
residential and commercial uses. Discussion on the proposals have taken place with the 
Councils Waste Service and they have voiced concerns with the strategy, quantum of space 
provided, access, servicing and the frequency of collections required. One of the key issues 
relates to the required collection frequency not aligning to that provided by the Council.  
Discussions have taken place with the applicant and the waste services department. Waste 
service have working alongside the planning department developed a planning condition 
which would ensure that safe and suitable waste collection and storage arrangements are 
established prior to the commencement of development as part of a Waste Strategy.  This 
could necessitate the alteration of the ground floor layout to improve the provision subject 
to this condition being applied it is considered that a suitable waste strategy for the building 
can be developed which would satisfy the requirements of JLP policy DEV31 and it is 
considered acceptable for this detail to be secured by prior to commencement condition. 

 
Integration with Existing Communities 
96. Strategic Objection SO3 - 'Delivering growth in Plymouth City Centre and Waterfront 

Growth area, seeks new residential-led mixed use developments that integrate successfully 
with existing communities.  JLP policy SPT2 sets out the objectives of creating a sustainable 
neighbourhood/community to create a place where people of all ages and circumstances want 
to live and seeks to provide attractive living environments with good access to local facilities. 
Officers consider the removal of the basement car park (permitted previously in 2018) will 
improve the quality of the residential environment. The site offers good pedestrian, cycling 
and public transport connectivity to existing developed areas, open spaces and local services 
in accordance with JLP policies DEV10 and DEV29. This is subject to the improvements to 
the surrounding area recommended by condition by the LHA as set out earlier in this report 

 
97. The proposal will deliver an open and flexible space on the quayside area to the south of the 

building; it will be served with a power supply and will be available to host future events. The 
space will provide moveable features, such as seating and sun loungers for community use 
that officers recommend should be secured by conditions. Officers consider this space could 
help to support the integration of new residents with existing communities and could 
facilitate and enhance community cohesion in accordance with JLP Strategic Objective SO3. 

  
Affordable Housing 
98. JLP policy DEV7 seeks to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes which widen 

opportunities for home ownership, meet needs for social and rented housing, and will create 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. Furthermore, the policy requires at least 30% 
of the total number of dwellings to be affordable homes (without public subsidy) on 
developments of more than 10 homes, stating: 

Page 51



 

 

 
'For developments of above ten homes, at least 30 per cent of the total number of dwellings should be 
affordable homes without public subsidy. These homes should be provided on-site, except in the case of sites 
of between 11 and 14 dwellings or where robustly justified. In such cases the requirement can be met by 
providing an off-site provision or commuted payments in lieu of on-site provision to deliver affordable housing 
elsewhere in the policy area'. 
 
99. In addition to local planning policies, section 5 (Delivering a sufficient supply of homes) of the 

NPPF (2021) sets out the national policy context for affordable housing delivery. Paragraph 
63 of the NPPF (2021) states that  

 
'where a need for affordable housing is identified, planning policies should specify the type of affordable 
housing required and expect it to be delivered on-site unless:  
a) off-site provision or an appropriate financial contribution in lieu can be robustly justified; and 
a) The agreed approach contributes to the objective of creating mixed and balanced communities. 
 
100. Paragraph 65 of the NPPF (2021) states that: 

where major development involving the provision of housing is proposed, planning policies and 
decisions should expect at least 10% of the homes to be available for affordable home ownership, 
unless this would exceed the level of affordable housing required in the area… 

 
101. With 8,026 households currently on the housing waiting list (as of 11/05/2021), including 

2,283 in priority need (bands A-C), Plymouth has a significant and demonstrable need for 
affordable housing. The provision of affordable housing is therefore considered a priority for 
the City Council and it is crucial that contributions are sought from all major developments 
to help address this need. 

 
102. This application follows the approval of the (now lapsed) consent (reference 18/01245/FUL), 

whereby a financial contribution of £3,150,000 in lieu of on-site affordable housing was agreed 
following extensive viability negotiations between the applicant, the HDT and PCC's 
Development Viability Officer. At the time, the HDT advised that it would be preferable to 
see at least 30% / 51 no. affordable housing units delivered on-site. However, accepted the 
development was viability constrained and that it would not be possible to integrate the 
affordable housing units within the development due to the high sales values, rents and 
service charges, which would not be affordable to households on low incomes. The HDT 
therefore considered there was a robust justification to support offsite affordable housing 
delivery. 

 
103. The current application proposes to honour the financial contribution of £3,150,000 for off-

site affordable housing delivery with instalments of £1,050,000 to be paid on three 
milestones: 

o Commencement of construction; 
o Disposal of the 87th unit; and 
o Disposal of the 153rd unit. 
 
104. At the time of considering application reference18/01245/FUL, the £3.15 million contribution 

was equivalent to around 10% affordable housing. Since then, a new revised methodology for 
calculating affordable housing commuted sums has been determined through the SPD. Using 
the SPD methodology, the £3.15 million contribution equates to around 14% affordable 
housing. 

 
105. As before, the HDT has again confirmed that it would be preferable to see 51 affordable 

housing units delivered on site. However, policy DEV7 of the JLP and paragraph 63 of the 

Page 52



 

 

NPPF (2021) allow a commuted sum in lieu of on-site delivery where it can be robustly 
justified and where it contributes to the objective of creating sustainable, inclusive and mixed 
communities. Paragraph 4.111 of the SPD provides examples of circumstances in which a 
commuted sum may be appropriate: 'Within the PPA, circumstances where the affordable 
housing requirement may be provided by off-site provision, or via an appropriate financial 
contribution (subject to appropriate evidence where required), include: 

o Developments of between 11 and 14 units; 
o Developments where it is impractical or unreasonable for an RP to manage a small number of 

units within a large development, for example where viability has reduced the proportion of 
affordable housing numbers to a very low level; 

o Developments where the total housing costs of the affordable rental products or affordable 
home ownership units would be unaffordable to eligible Applicants. For example where very 
high service and other management charges would be required because of the nature of the 
development.' 

 
106. In this case, the HDT accepts the development is viability constrained and consider that it 

would not be possible to integrate affordable housing within the development due to high 
sales values, high rents and service charges, which would not be affordable to households on 
low incomes. The development will not contribute to the creation of a sustainable, inclusive 
and mixed community but it will provide a significant contribution to affordable housing 
delivery that justifies a relaxation of affordable housing obligations to a level that is less than 
required by JLP policy DEV7. On this basis, as noted above, the Housing Delivery Team 
accepts the principle of the applicant meeting its affordable housing obligation through a 
commuted sum for off-site delivery. 

 
107. In conclusion, with due regard to JLP policies DEV7 and DEL1, as well as the SPD, and 

chapter 5 of the NPPF, Officers agree that, whilst it does not deliver policy compliant 30% 
affordable housing provision, there is a robust justification to support off-site provision i.e. 
affordability for future occupiers and £3,150,000 is an acceptable offer that will deliver a 
substantial number of affordable housing units in the City whilst ensuring the proposed 
development remains financially viable to prevent the site from remaining stalled. 

 
Accessible Housing 
108. JLP policy DEV9 and paragraphs 4.51-4.56 of the SPD require at least 20% of dwellings to 

meet national standards for accessibility and adaptability (Category M4(2) of Building 
Regulations) on developments of five or more homes; and at least 2% to meet national 
standards for wheelchair user homes (Category M4(3)) on developments of 50 or more 
dwellings. Therefore, there is an expectation the development will provide at least 34 no. 
M4(2) and 4 no. M4(3) dwellings (note that M4(3) dwellings contribute towards the Category 
M4(2) requirement). 

 
109. Within the Design and Access Statement (chapter 9), reference is made to the potential to 

construct apartments with 2+ beds so they meet Building Regulations M4(2) or M4(3) 
standards.  However, there was no commitment from the applicant to deliver this provision 
from the outset. The Design and Access Statement suggests dwellings can be retrospectively 
adapted to meet M4(2) or M4(3) standards post sale and refer to meeting the needs of 
accompanied wheelchair users, rather than independent wheelchair users. The HDT objected 
to this approach and further discussions took place between the HDT and applicant during 
the course of the consideration of this application.  The HDT consider that M4(2) and M4(3) 
dwellings must be provided from the outset to ensure provision is made for initial and future 
households. To ensure compliance with JLP policy DEV9, officers recommend securing at 
least 34 no. M4(2) dwellings and at least 4 no. M4(3) dwellings by condition. 

 

Page 53



 

 

110. This proposal seeks to deliver a residential-led, mixed use scheme comprising 3,102sq.m 
commercial floor space and 170 residential units. The principle of delivering a residential-led 
mixed use scheme on this site has been established through historic planning application 
reference 18/01245/FUL and is supported by JLP policy PLY25.  JLP policy DEV16 seeks to 
ensure that retail and town centre uses are located in appropriate locations by adopting a 
centres first approach and supporting the spatial strategy of the plan.  It also supports limited 
provision of town centre uses in Core Tourism Areas. 

 
111. The retail hierarchy of centres within the Plymouth Policy Area is set out within the JLP 

(figure 3.7) and policy SPT6 identifies a centres-first approach to retail and other town centre 
uses. In considering this approach the sequential and impact assessment requirements are key 
considerations as set out below. 

 
Impact Test and Historic Sugar Quay Application 
112. DEV16 states that proposals for retail, leisure and office development in edge of centre and 

out of centre locations must be accompanied by an impact assessment where the floor space 
exceeds the thresholds set out below. This is so they will not have a significant adverse 
impact on the investment in and/or the vitality and viability of an existing centre or prejudice 
the deliverability or investment in proposed centres. 

o Retail development creating new or additional floor space greater than 500sqm (gross). 
o Leisure and office development creating new or additional floor space greater than 2,500sqm 

(gross). 
 
113. Within the pre-application response dated 16 November 2020, officers state that, for the 

Sugar Quay application, an impact assessment will not be required if a restrictive condition to 
floor space is applied. This is still the case and the approach has been accepted by the 
applicant. 

 
114. The combined total floor space of the commercial area has marginally increased from 

2,947sqm to 3,102sqm since planning application 18/01245/FUL was approved in 2018. In the 
view of officers, a condition restricting the amount of each type of Town Centre use is 
consistent with the previous approach adopted in 2018 and ensures that an adverse impact 
on the network of centres is secured while also helping deliver the aspiration of the JLP 
policy PLY25.  

 
Sequential Test Considerations 
115. DEV16 states proposals need to be assessed in relation to their support for the spatial 

strategy of the JLP and the sequential hierarchy of centres. It also states proposals for main 
town centre uses (as defined by the NPPF) outside of centres should be supported by a 
sequential test that demonstrates flexibility in its assessment and needs to explore whether 
there are any other sequentially preferable, suitable and available sites within or on the edge 
of the network of Centres.  As required by policy, the application is accompanied by a 
sequential test in the form of an appendix to the Planning Statement. 

 
116. Officers have assessed the sequential test and have the following comments.  The catchment 

area used for the sequential test is deemed to be acceptable and officers broadly accept the 
argument presented regarding disaggregation of a development is reasonable. Due to this, the 
following scale was used within the sequential tests to determine which sites to assess in each 
centre: 0.48 hectares (after applying a 20 per cent reduction in the developable area to allow 
for a degree of flexibility). 

 
117. The level of flexibility used is considered reasonable for these schemes considering their high 

density form of development. This methodology resulted in 15 sites being assessed, many of 

Page 54



 

 

which are allocated within the JLP as development sites. Officers do not agree with the 
conclusions the applicants have reached on many of the sites. Little proper justification or 
examination has taken place which would be expected in appropriate sequential tests. 
Officers take particular concern with the disregarding of the site allocations of the JLP (PLY7-
15 and PLY18), particularly those within the City Centre which are clearly capable of locating 
a similar form of development as part of a comprehensive scheme, or, in some cases, 
piecemeal development of the allocations. A number of the sites are now either on the open 
market or are, in part, within the control of the Council. No attempt has been made on 
behalf of the applicant to properly consider these sites, nor properly ascertain if they are 
available. As such officers cannot, based on the evidence, conclude the sequential test has 
been passed based upon the evidence presented by the applicant. 

 
118. On the basis of the lack of adequate assessment, officers have now considered the potential 

sequentially preferable sites. In terms of the City Centre sites, particularly for a number of 
the allocated sites, there is, a clear potential for some of these sites to be suitable and 
available in a reasonable period of time for a similar development to take place. As such, it is 
not concluded the sequential test can be considered to be passed in this regard. 

 
119. That said, as part of the balanced consideration which needs to take place on the application, 

and the recognition that good place-making requires active frontages, officers have 
considered the quantum town centre uses within the scheme and that the schemes self-relate 
to proposals for the delivery of site allocation PLY25.  On balance, officers consider that in 
this instance, while the sequential test is not considered to be passed it is not considered that 
it should warrant the refusal of the application given the site allocation and place shaping 
considerations weigh in its favour. 

 
120. On balance and considering the proposal on its merits; notwithstanding, the lack of passing 

the sequential test, it is not considered, in retail and town centre policy terms, to warrant the 
refusal of the application given the contribution the town centre uses provide in this specific 
scheme. It is also not considered the scheme would undermine the retail hierarchy as set out 
in figure 3.7 and policy SPT6 of the JLP. 

 
Carbon Reduction 
121. Delivering Low Carbon Development is a crucial part of considering schemes in the context 

of Policy DEV32 of the JLP and the Councils Declaration of a Climate Emergency.  Officers 
and the Low Carbon Officers have considered the revised Energy Statement.  In principle, the 
proposed approach is acceptable, utilising a centralised air source heat pump to meet the 
thermal demands for heating and hot water for the development to achieve a greater than 
20% CO2 emissions reduction from the Building Regulations Part L 2013 compliant scheme 
based on Standard Assessment Procedure 10 carbon factors in accordance with JLP policy 
DEV 32.5. Officers consider that a restrictive condition should be included and welcome the 
improvements on the previous scheme approach. 

 
122. The statement also sets out the technical ability to connect to a future heat network will be 

provided (e.g. connected to Marine Source) in line with JLP policy DEV32.6. Again, officers 
consider that a restrictive condition should be included to secure this. 

 
123. Policy DEV32 also seek a wider range of requirements which improve the ultimate 

sustainability of buildings. This includes consideration of solar orientation. In this regard the 
building has glazing on all aspects of the development and as such the opportunity for this is 
secured.  The sustainability of the building is also intrinsically linked to both its construction 
and ongoing uses.  A planning condition is therefore considered necessary to secure details of 
the measure set out in the submitted sustainability statement being deliver and secured for 

Page 55



 

 

the lifetime of the development. This will ensure that all reasonable opportunities are taken 
to reduce carbon production and increase the sustainability of the building. 

  
124. In terms of the schemes wider ability to help support the Council declaration of a climate 

emergency it is acknowledged that flood prevention measures and a contribution towards the 
existing Sutton Harbour Flood Defence measures are secured. The schemes reduced levels of 
car parking and detailed travel plans will also help promote sustainable travel choice for 
future residents and operators. Likewise, the provision of EV charging secured in Harbour 
Arc will also be a wider benefit of the scheme. 

 
125. As such, subject to further detail secured through conditions, the proposal is considered 

acceptable in terms of sustainability and low carbon development in accordance with policy 
DEV32, the Councils Climate Action Plan and the guidance in the SPD and NPPF. 

 
Flood Risk/Protection - Sequential and Exception Test 
126. The Flood Risk Sequential Test does not need to be applied for this individual development as 

the site has been allocated in the adopted development plan and the Sequential Test was 
applied at point of allocation. Specifically, JLP policy PLY25 identified the application site as 
suitable for development, despite the potential flood risk on the basis that there was no 
alternative suitable site available at a lower flood risk. The Plymouth and South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan: Flood Risk Sequential Test Report (February 2017) sets out how the 
requirements of the Flood Risk Sequential Test was integrated into the assessment of this site 
allocation as part of the JLP preparation. It confirms there are no other reasonable alternative 
sites available in the same or lower flood zones and the site forms a key development 
opportunity on the edge of Sutton Harbour and is part of a previous site allocation in the 
Sutton Harbour AAP. The site is within the City Centre and Waterfront Growth Area which 
is identified as a focus for growth in the JLP. 

 
127. As it is not possible for this development to be located in a zone with a lower risk of 

flooding, JLP policy DEV35 and chapter 14 of the NPPF 2021, allows the Exception Test to be 
applied to any development which includes a more vulnerable use in Flood Zone 3a. The 
Exceptions Test provides a method for managing flood risk while still allowing development 
to occur. 

 
128. There are two elements of the Exception Test both of which need to be passed: 

a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh the flood risk; and 

b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 
risk overall (NPPF, para 164) 

 
129. In terms of part one of the Exception Test, the Local Planning Authority considers the 

proposed development will deliver wider regeneration and economic benefits, including visual 
enhancement of this stalled site, as well as beneficial effects in terms of flood risk 
management (by way of the agreed S106 contribution towards the upgrading of the existing 
Sutton Harbour defences to provide protection against increasing sea levels and more intense 
coastal storms). The Local Planning Authority considers that these wider community benefits 
outweigh the flood risks and therefore the first part of the test is passed. 

 
130. The second part of the test requires that the proposal will be safe (including access and 

egress) over its lifetime, and would not increase flood risk elsewhere and, where possible, 
reduce flood risk overall. In this regard, the Environment Agency is satisfied with the flood 
risk mitigation measures set out in the submitted FRA and associated plans, which will be 

Page 56



 

 

secured by way of planning conditions, and the agreed financial contribution towards the 
upgrade of existing defences will ensure that this development is safe over its lifetime. As 
such, it is considered that the Exception Test has been passed and the site is deemed suitable 
for development. 

 
131. The standing advice from the EA for development in this area of Plymouth, contained within 

the Sutton Harbour Development Guidance (Environment Agency 2016), is that new 
development should meet all the following requirements: 

o There should be no residential development or any other more vulnerable development at 
ground floor level and no new development below ground level; 

o Ground floor levels should be set no lower than 3.15mAOD; 
o Ground floors should incorporate flood resistance and resilience measures; 
o Provide and demonstrate a flood warning and evacuation procedures for occupants; 
o Residential or any other more vulnerable development should be set at no lower than 

5.10mAOD; 
o Provide a proportionate contribution (depending on scale of development) towards the 

future upgrade of the Sutton Harbour flood defences to ensure new development benefits 
from an appropriate standard of protection over its lifetime whilst also helping to reduce 
flood risk over time to existing development. 

 
132. The EA and LPA have reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (ref. WE04821/FRA, v5, 29 

September 2020) and are satisfied that it adequately highlights the key flood risk issues 
associated with the proposed development. The mitigation measures set out in the FRA are 
welcomed and they demonstrate that the layout of the proposed development has been 
significantly influenced by consideration of flood risk management, including: 

o Less Vulnerable commercial units will be set at a minimum of 3.75m AOD to enable 
continuation to the external harbour spaces. These units will be provided with resilience 
measures, such as horizontal plasterboard, flood compatible flooring and raised services and 
outlets. 

o Vulnerable ground floor elements such as the plant room should be set at 4.60m AOD (or 
above), above the design flood level of 4.58m AOD (200 year return period tidal level in 
2125 using higher central allowance). 

o All accesses to the building will be provided with a warning beacon/ signage for operation in 
times of flood. 

o More vulnerable residential development will be sited at locations above ground floor and as 
such will be safe from potential flooding for the lifetime of the development. 

 
133. These measures help ensure that the most vulnerable development is located at higher 

ground levels with lower flood risk and the development includes appropriately flood 
resistance and resilience measures such that, in the event of a flood, it could be quickly 
brought back into use without significant refurbishment and safe access and egress routes are 
provided, supported by an emergency plan. A restrictive condition is recommended to 
ensure that any grant of planning permission is carried out in accordance with the flood risk 
management and mitigation recommendations set out in the submitted FRA and to ensure 
that these are fully implemented prior to the occupation of the building.  

 
Financial Contribution for the Upgrade of Defences 
134. Sutton Harbour is currently defended from coastal flooding during a 1 in 200 year event 

through a combination of raised quay walls, flood gates and a water level within the harbour 
that allows for the storage of water that overtop these defences. 

 
135. The NPPF advises that developers need to consider flood risk over the lifetime of 

development and as such sea level rise needs to be considered. Sea level rise using current 

Page 57



 

 

predictions will increase sea levels by approximately 0.7m over the next 75 years and 1.1m 
over the next 100 years. When sea level rise is included the current defences at Sutton 
Harbour do not provide adequate protection during a 1 in 200 year coastal flood event. 

 
136. The proposed development will rely on flood defences, owned and maintained by the 

Environment Agency and Plymouth City Council, to keep it safe from flooding over its 
lifetime. Therefore the Environment Agency, supported by officers, consider that it is justified 
to request a financial contribution towards the future upgrade of the defences to meet the 
challenge of climate change. 

 
137. Section 106 contributions have therefore been agreed towards future flood risk management 

works around the harbour. The level of this contribution is linked to the scale and nature of 
this development. Further details are set out in the Planning Obligations section below. 

 
Contaminated Land 
138. The Phase 1 and Phase 2 Contamination Assessment report (ref: WE04821/GR01, version 3, 

dated 9th July 2018) identified potential pollutant linkages, particularly as a result of the 
historic use of the site, including a potential source of contamination to groundwater and 
future users of the land.  Therefore, restrictive conditions are recommended in accordance 
with guidance from the Environment Agency and Public Protection Service.; Subject to these 
conditions being applied the proposal is considered acceptable in this regard and would 
accord with the requirements of JLP policies DEV1 and DEV2. 

 
Natural Environment 
139. The proposed scheme is supported by a detailed landscaping strategy. This differed from the 

previous approach to the site from the last application. A number of concerns were raised by 
both the Natural Infrastructure and Urban Design officers. This lead to an updated scheme 
which is now, subject to conditions, considered an appropriate approach to the site.  

 
140. In terms of biodiversity considerations, the site is on the edge of the harbour and as such it is 

important that consideration is given to both the terrestrial environment and also the water 
environment. This is particularly important during the construction period where the 
potential for disturbance and pollution to occur is high. The consultation response from NIT 
has required a detailed condition for a Construction and Environmental Management Plan. 
This will ensure that appropriate mitigation and control measures are put in place to protect 
the environment as required by JLP policy DEV26. 

 
141. Policy DEV26 also requires schemes to deliver a 10% net gain for biodiversity. This has been 

a source of on-going negotiation during the application seeking to ensure that the SPD 
requirement to deliver a 10% net gain is delivered.  As part of those discussions, 
consideration has been given to the role of the Harbour Car Park Scheme as that scheme is 
delivering a significant uplift in biodiversity net gain.   

 
142. Notwithstanding, that there have remained concerns over the delivery of net gain through 

the scheme; Extensive negotiations have taken place in this regard. Under normal 
circumstances, the delivery of net gain is normally sought to be achieve by the provision of 
the same species type that is being lost. However, in this instance an innovative strategy was 
identified which sought to provide sea grass enhancement, this would help contribute 
towards wider biodiversity benefit within the Plymouth Sound National Marine Park.  

 
143. The applicant working alongside the Ocean Conservation Trust (OCT) sought to establish 

how much sea grass planting would be required to deliver the required level of net gain and 
the costing for its provision, maintenance and management. It was advised following this work 

Page 58



 

 

that an area of 802sqm of sea grass provision would be required and that if that was delivered 
alongside other sea grass provision and management the cost for this would be £13,000.  
While, supporting the principle of this approach the Natural Infrastructure Team did have 
concerns over how the quantum of provision and funding was calculated and in part this 
related to the fact that at present sea grass does not currently form a component of the 
biodiversity metric calculation system.  Concern was also raised that at present there is not a 
Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) for Plymouth Sound to guide how and where specific 
measures would be secured for marine enhancement. In the absence of such guidance, 
negotiations with the applicant and other key stakeholders continued. This has led to an 
innovative approach being agreed that recognises that there is currently no strategic 
approach for implementation. As such, the Sugar Quay development through financial 
contribution can act as a trailblazer, by providing funding to pilot a number of different 
measures designed to secure a marine BNG.  

 
144. A contribution of £25,000 has been requested by the Natural Infrastructure Team and has 

been agreed with the applicant.  This will fund direct delivery and will contribute to 
establishing the long term approach to marine nature recovery in the Sound. This would 
include contributing to the planting of seagrass beds in Plymouth Sound, as well as other 
measures to improve habitat for marine life on shoreline infrastructure e.g. harbour walls and 
similar structures. While, it is not possible in BNG terms to calculate the exact level of net 
gain this would provide; The Natural Infrastructure Team advise that the long term benefits 
created, would alongside those already being delivered by the scheme, deliver at least 10% 
net gain.  As such, it is considered that subject to this contribution; the delivery of 
landscaping on site and at the Harbour Car Park and the securing of a Landscape and Ecology 
Management Plan that the requirements of JLP policy DEV26 would be met. 

   
Habitat Regulations Assessment 
145. Natural England has been consulted on the Habitats Regulation Assessment for the scheme 

provided by the Natural Infrastructure Team and advise that on the basis of the mitigation 
outlined being secured, Natural England concurs with the LPA's conclusion that the proposed 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of Plymouth Sound and Estuaries 
SAC & Tamar Estuaries Complex SPA European sites. 

 
Fire Safety 
146.  Following the publication of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure and Section 62A Applications) (England) (Amendment) Order 2021 (the 2021 
Order),In August 2021, new Fire Safety requirements for High-rise buildings were introduced 
into the planning system as Gateway 1. This was to bring forward the consideration of some 
Fire Safety matters to the planning stage and to introduce the HSE as a statutory consultee 
for relevant applications.  

 
147.  This legislation applies to all new applications made on or after the 1st August 2021. As such 

this application is not required to meet these requirements.  Notwithstanding this, the Health 
and Safety Executive were consulted on the application in order that if they wanted to raise 
any matter relevant they could be considered. No Consultation response was received. In 
light of this and given that the procedure does not apply retrospectively, no further action is 
required in terms of the planning process. However, an informative is included to ensure the 
applicant is aware of the importance of these requirements going into the Building Control 
process as a high rise residential building. 

 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 

9. Human Rights 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the Applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 
 
10. Local Finance Considerations 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from liability 
under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not attract a levy 
payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule. 
 
11. Planning Obligations 
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met.  In terms of this application in a statement submitted on the 18th February, the applicant's 
agent confirmed that the previously agreed contributions for SQ will also be honoured. They are as 
follows: 
o Affordable Housing: £3,150,000 towards the provision of affordable housing within the 

boundaries of Plymouth City Council to be paid  in three equal instalments at the following 
trigger points: 

o £1,050,000 upon commencement of development 
o £1,050,000 upon disposal of 87th unit 
o £1,050,000 upon disposal of 154th unit 
o Education: £256,595 to be paid upon commencement of development towards provision of 

secondary pupil places within the boundaries  of Plymouth City Council. 
o Flood Risk: £250,000 to be paid upon commencement of development towards the upgrading 

of the existing Sutton Harbour defences to provide protection against increasing sea levels 
and more intense coastal storms. 

o Health Care: £44,817 to be paid upon commencement of development towards health and 
capacity improvements at Beaumont Villa and/or Friary GP surgeries  

o A management fee of £8004 
 
These infrastructure contributions total £3,701,412. 
 
These figure were reached following a detailed viability process being undertaken on the previous 
application. The level of contribution secured exceeded what it was considered the scheme could 
reasonably pay based upon the viability process undertaken.  Since the financial contributions were 
secured the JLP and SPD have been adopted;  With JLP policy DEV30 seeking development to meet 
the community infrastructure needs of new homes and policy DEL1 of the JLP setting out the 
Approach to development delivery and viability, planning obligations and the Community 
Infrastructure Levy.  
 
The following broad areas and contributions have been requested during the application from 
consultees: 
Affordable Housing    £3.15m 
Education              £280,925 
Flood Risk EA          £250,000 
Public Health          £54,979                                                           
CCG                    £100,966 

Page 60



 

 

Biodiversity BNG       £25,000 
Management fee         £8,004 
Total                  £3,970,840 
 
The current application is not accompanied by an updated Viability Assessment, however the 
consideration of viability has been ongoing during the pre-application and application period.   
 
It is acknowledged that the situation between the two applications has altered with the removal of 
the car parking from the scheme which would reduce some elements of the schemes costs. 
However, the lack of viability previously identified and considered was substantial. The changes to 
the scheme when considered and in the current climate where Development costs and materials 
have risen substantially is not considered to alter the previous viability conclusions significantly to 
make viability any less of a challenge.  It has therefore been considered by Officers the previously 
agreed S106 quantum should be accepted in principle.  It is however, as set out in the biodiversity 
section of the report agreed that an addition £25,000 is included towards delivery of a net gain for 
biodiversity in line with JLP policy DEV26. 
 
In terms of the quantum's the following figures have therefore been agreed.  Furthermore, following 
the receipt of the consultation responses the specific allocation of funding towards projects has been 
updated. 
 
It is also noted that the requested contribution from the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
duplicates the request previously agreed by the Councils' Public Health Department. 
 
The following contributions and projects are therefore secured: 
Affordable Housing £3.15m 
 
Towards the provision of affordable housing within the boundaries of Plymouth City Council to be 
paid in three equal instalments at the following trigger points: 
o £1,050,000 upon commencement of development 
o £1,050,000 upon disposal of 87th unit 
o £1,050,000 upon disposal of 154th unit 
 
Education          £256,595 
To be paid upon commencement of development towards provision of secondary pupil places within 
the boundaries of Plymouth City Council. 
 
Flood Risk EA      £250,000 
To be paid upon commencement of development towards the upgrading of the existing Sutton 
Harbour defences to provide protection against increasing sea levels and more intense coastal 
storms. 
 
Health                £44,817                                                                  
To be paid upon commencement of development towards a health and wellbeing hub at Colin 
Campbell Court or delivery of other Wellbeing Hubs within the City. 
 
Biodiversity BNG       £25,000 
To be paid in three equal instalments at the following trigger points: 
- £15,000 upon commencement of development 
- £10,000 upon disposal of 87th unit 
 
Towards direct delivery of biodiversity enhancement measures (including Sea Grass) and towards 
establishing the long term approach to marine nature recovery within Plymouth Sound Area.   

Page 61



 

 

 
Total               £3,726,412          
Management fee         £8,004 
 
12. Equalities and Diversities 
This planning application has had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard to the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and has concluded that the application does not cause discrimination on 
the grounds of gender, race and disability. 
 
13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision 
This application has been considered in the context of the development plan being the adopted Joint 
Local Plan, the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7.  The 
following key policies have been considered in the determination of the application SPT1, SPT2, 
SPT3, SPT5, SPT6, SPT9, SPT10, SPT11, SPT12, SPT13, SPT14, PLY1, PLY2, Strategic Objective SO3, 
PLY20, PLY21, PLY25 PLY37, PLY62, DEV1, DEV2, DEV7 DEV9, DEV10, DEV16, DEV19, DEV20, 
DEV21, DEV23, DEV26, DEV27, DEV28, DEV29, DEV30, DEV31, DEV32, DEV35 and DEL1 of the 
Joint Local Plan. As well as the guidance contained in the Supplementary Planning Document, NPPF, 
NPPG and National Design Guide.  
 
In terms of the key considerations, in relation to the application, the principle of the development is 
considered acceptable in the context of Policy PLY25 and taking into account the material 
consideration given to the previous consent granted on site.  
 
In terms of highways and parking it is accepted that the off-site car parking provided at the Harbour 
Car Park is, on balance, acceptable and at an appropriate level given the sustainability of the location 
and the scheme is not considered to have an adverse impact on the surrounding highways network, 
subject to the provision of key infrastructure secured by conditions.  Furthermore, the layout of the 
scheme is concluded to be acceptable. 
 
The design of the scheme and its impact on the Sutton Harbour and city townscape is considered, on 
balance, to be an acceptable approach to the development and it is accepted that the height 
proposed is reasonable in the context of the surrounding area and acknowledging the previously 
consented scheme on the site. It is also considered that the landscaping strategy is acceptable subject 
to the detail secured by conditions. 
 
In terms of Historic Environment and Archaeology, officers consider that the proposal will result in a 
less than substantial harm to the surrounding historic environment and features and that the 
schemes benefits outweigh this concern. In terms of consideration of the impacts of the scheme on 
the surrounding area and the amenity of the future residents; The scheme is concluded to be 
acceptable subject to the detailed conditions set out above. 
 
In relation to refuse and recycling, while the level of provision and the location of the storage is not 
considered ideal, subject to a detailed waste and recycling strategy being agreed the proposals are 
considered acceptable.  
 
In terms of the housing provision, the scheme is considered to appropriately integrate in to the 
surrounding area. In terms of the Affordable Housing provision it is, on balance, accepted that it 
would not be possible to integrate affordable housing within the development and that given the 
viability consideration previously considered a contribution of £3,150,000 towards off- site provision 
is acceptable.  
 
In terms of the schemes commercial component, these are not considered to undermine the retail 
strategy and are, on balance, concluded to be acceptable.  

Page 62



 

 

 
In relation to carbon reduction and wider sustainability matters, in the context of the Councils 
declared climate emergency, the scheme is considered acceptable subject to future detail secured via 
conditions.  
 
In relation to flood risk and drainage, subject to the flood provision measures being secured and the 
S106 contribution; the scheme is considered acceptable and finally in relation to the natural 
environment the proposal is considered acceptable subject to the measures agreed in relation to 
delivery of a net gain for biodiversity. 
 
As such, having considered the above in detail. Officers having taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, conclude that the proposal accords with policy 
and national guidance and the application is therefore recommended for conditional approval subject 
to the signing of a S106 agreement securing the funding set out in section 11 and the detailed 
condition(s) set out below. 
 
14. Post Planning Committee Addendum 
 
Following the Deferral of the item from Planning Committee on the 10th of February a number of 
further actions have taken place which this addendum sets out and advises of any required changes 
to the Officer Recommendation. 
 
Following the Committee, Officer’s met with the applicant’s team to discuss opportunities to provide 
additional disabled/ assessable parking spaces on site, as part of this meeting the applicant’s team 
advised of other opportunities they thought could help improve the accessibility of the scheme and 
also safe operation of waste facilities. The principle of this was welcomed by the Local Planning 
Authority and additional plans were submitted on the application file.  A further consultation period 
was undertaken on the amended plans for 14 days.  
 
The plans were slightly amended during the consultation period to amend an allocated space in the 
layby to a disabled space, this was not considered to require additional consultation. 
 
The following consultation and letters of representation have been received following the planning 
committee meeting. 
 
Additional Consultation responses 
 
Natural Infrastructure – no concerns subject to previous conditions 
 
Urban Design - reduction in quality of public realm including the visual impact of the proposed 
parking, but on balance acceptable. Parking spaces use should be limited. Replacement of lost tree 
should be explored. Support Local Highway Authority (LHA) comment on reducing layby size. 
Support granite sets on Marrowbone slip and parking space should be delineated with these not line 
painting. 
 
Highways Authority – No in principle objections, no objection to servicing on Marrowbone Slip, 
although turning over runs concierge space, recommend additional disabled space in layby is 
considered. Layby parking would be controlled to 20 minutes subject to a Traffic Regulation Order. 
These matters can be addressed through existing planning conditions proposed. 
 
Highways Authority Additional response- Proposed layby could be reduced to widen footway 
concerns over altered cycle storage, potential for overrunning of pavement at Jewson site. 
 

Page 63



 

 

Letters of representations 
2 received 
1 objection 
1 neutral 
 
Key points 
Development height, impact of illumination at night for ships, wind impact on pedestrian 
environment, off site car parking, congestion. 
 
One response was from the Cattewater Harbour Commissioner who provided images of the leading 
lights that are critical for all vessels navigating into Plymouth.  
He advised that the presence, and increase backscatter of lighting from the city is already a concern 
for mariners, and with the proposed location of the development any additional lighting facing the 
water will compromise navigational safety. Please could the planning department ensure no additional 
lighting is facing the South as further plans are developed. 
 
 
Updated Analysis 
The proposed changes provided on the plans are as follows: 
 
Changes to Marrowbone Slip to allow large vehicle servicing including for waste collection, the 
provision of two disabled parking spaces and one dedicated concierge space for the use of the Sugar 
Quay Development, the removal of proposed cycle spaces. The surfacing material will include granite 
sets for surface delineation. 
 
Changes to the servicing layby to provide 4 parking spaces for general use including one for a 
disabled car parking space. 
 
Changes to the proposed building 
These include: 
  
• Doors rationalised on the south side of the building with one set removed to avoid conflict 

with the concierge space; 
• Internal bin store layouts and connections between them have been amended for collection 

from Marrowbone Slip; 
• A new ramp for improved accessible access has been added on the north-east side of the 

building with amendments to the steps access; and 
• Additional door sets are provided to some of the commercial units to improve access to 

these units. 
• Reduction in the total retail floor space of 17sqm less at 2461sqm, with Unit 5 slightly 

increased and unit 4 has shrunk. 
 
In terms of the considerations of the proposed changes these are as follows: 
 
The additional provision of the car parking spaces on Marrowbone slip are considered a positive 
addition in relation to the accessibility of the future residents, particularly those with limited or 
restricted mobility. The addition of the concierge space also provides the potential to enable all 
residents to use this space for drop off purposes and to be used in collaboration with the proposed 
concierge service of the building.  While only two spaces are provided for disabled/ accessible 
spaces, this needs to be balanced against the operation of the slipway and its contribution to the 
setting of the building and contribution to the wider public realm. On balance officers consider this 
provision is acceptable. It is however important that the spaces are properly managed and as such a 
further condition is recommended on the application for an onsite car park management plan. 

Page 64



 

 

 
In terms of the alteration of the servicing arrangements, sufficient space has been provided to enable 
vehicles to turn on the slip road providing access and egress on to the highway network in a forward 
gear. This will also enable the servicing of the adjoining building to be improved.  Consequentially this 
will allow the collections of waste facilities to be located away from the principle pavement along 
Sutton Road.  This will introduce new movements on to this area but this is considered acceptable 
subject to the already proposed waste management condition.  While a consultation response from 
waste services has not been received the case officer has meet with Waste Service and reviewed the 
plans and no objections were raised to the proposed changes to the servicing arrangements. 
   
A consequence of the changes to Marrowbone slip is changes to the surfacing materials which are to 
match the wider approach with granite detailing. The proposals also result in the removal of one of 
the trees proposed and while consultees have suggested it is moved to the side of East Quay House, 
this would interfere with the parking and access for that building. The changes also result in a 
relocation of some of the proposed cycle parking, which officers raised concerns with and they have 
now been removed from the plans. The final cycle details were already proposed to be controlled by 
condition and their replacement location can be secured through this condition. As raised by urban 
design consultation while the changes result in a slight reduction in quality of public realm they are 
on balance acceptable. 
 
The changes to the waste strategy have resulted in some slight alterations to the internal 
configuration of the building. This is considered to improve the servicing arrangement and the 
consequential change internally and to the size of commercial units raises no concerns, as such the 
consideration remains the same in the main report. 
 
The changes to the servicing of the building have freed up the proposed servicing bay and this is now 
proposed for 4 vehicles to park, as these are on HMPE these would be for general use not restricted 
to the building. The LHA advised that one of these spaces could be a disabled parking space and the 
plans were amended on this basis. The LHA has advised that these spaces would be restricted to 20 
minute stopping and this is considered reasonable and would be controlled by a Traffic Regulation 
Order outside of the planning process. While they are for general use it is acknowledged that they 
are likely to be utilised by building occupiers for drop off and accessing the concierge services and 
this is considered beneficial particularly the addition of a disabled parking space. 
 
The plans also provide a series of external amendments to the building. There are no concerns with 
the visual alterations with the proposed changes. The inclusion of an accessible ramp to the buildings 
main entrance is an improvement in terms of the building accessibility to all. While it is a shame that 
it banks away from the proposed parking it would not be feasible to be located the other way. The 
proposals also include some changes to and inclusion of additional doors to increase accessibility to 
the commercial units which raises no new concerns in relation to the application. 
 
Following the Committee the Cattewater Harbour Commissioner contacted officers raising 
concerns with further lighting facing southward in the future due to the impact of ships navigation 
using the marker lights for guidance. Officers have met with the Harbour Master and discussed the 
impact of future development pressures but this is not a matter for this application. Concerns were 
also raised in this regard by the other letter of representation. In terms of the wider scheme this is 
an allocated site and the developments potential impacts were considered during the formation of 
the JLP and the proposals also accord with the building design to the previous granted scheme. It is 
not considered by officers that these matters should impact the determination of this application the 
same consideration is given to the wind concerns raised. 
 

Page 65



 

 

Finally the scheme includes changes to the tracking adjoining Jewson as a result of the amendments 
which shows a slight over run of the pavement which is not ideal however the LHA are content that 
this matter can be addressed by the existing conditions. 
 
In summary, on balance officers are satisfied that the proposed changes are acceptable and as such, 
having considered the above in detail. Officers having taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, conclude that the proposal accords with policy and 
national guidance and the application is therefore recommended for conditional approval subject to 
the signing of a S106 agreement securing the funding set out in section 11 of the officer’s report and 
the detailed condition(s) set out below. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt the following conditions have been amended: 
 
New Condition 50 
 
ONSITE CAR PARK MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Prior to the first occupation of the development an onsite car parking strategy shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The strategy shall: 
• Set out the use, restrictions and operation of the spaces proposed 
• Set out how coordination of the concierge space with waste collections will be under taken 
• Set out how the spaces will be managed with any proposed concierge service offered 
• Set out methods to control the use of the spaces 
• Provide details of signage 
 
Once approved the development shall be permanently managed in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt the 2 disabled/accessible spaces shall not be allocated to individual 
properties within the development. 
 
Reason: to ensure the safe operation of the proposed parking and to ensure it is made available for 
the intended purpose and in accordance with policies PLY25 and DEV29 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
Condition 27 amended 
 
CONDITION: ACCESS/HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS (GRAMPIAN) 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
No part of the building hereby proposed shall be occupied until the proposed improvements to the 
existing highway (including the provision of a zebra crossing and parking spaces) have been 
constructed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Such improvements shall also include pedestrian improvements as outlined in 
Tables 3.1 and 3.2 of the document TN08 Post Application Highways Response dated November 
2021. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and to facilitate safe access to and from the site for 
all highway users in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 
2019. 

Page 66



 

 

 
As requested previously by Members an additional informative has been included: 
 
INFORMATIVE: CONSULTATION CONDITION 6 
 
Applicants are advised that the detail required with condition 6 should be developed in consultation 
with the Designing Out Crime Officer and in the context of the guidance of the Commission on 
Violence against Women and Girls. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 11.01.2021 it is recommended to  Grant conditionally subject to 
S106 with delegated authority to Director of Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to refuse the 
application if the S106 is not signed within the agreed timeframes (3 months) 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

  
   Landscape General Arrangement Plan 7376_030 Rev E  received 09/03/22 
   Site Location Plan 1000 Rev G  received 22/12/20 
   Demolition Plan 1050 -  received 22/12/20 
   Ground Floor Mezzanine GA Plan 2002 Rev B  received 22/12/20 
   First Floor GA Plan 2003 Rev N  received 22/12/20 
   Second Floor GA Plan 2004 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Third Floor GA Plan 2005 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Fourth Floor GA Plan 2006 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Fifth Floor GA Plan 2007 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Sixth Floor GA Plan 2008 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Seventh Floor GA Plan 2009 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Eighth Floor GA Plan 2010 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Ninth Floor GA Plan 2011 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Tenth Floor GA Plan 2012 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Eleventh Floor GA Plan 2013 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Twelfth Floor GA Plan 2014 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Thirteenth Floor GA Plan 2015 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Fourteenth Floor GA Plan 2016 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Fifthteenth Floor GA Plan 2017 Rev P  received 22/12/20 
   Sixteenth Floor GA Plan 2018 Rev Q  received 22/12/20 
   Seventeenth Floor GA Plan 2019 Rev Q  received 22/12/20 
   Eighteenth Floor GA Plan 2020 Rev R  received 22/12/20 
   Nineteenth Floor GA Plan 2021 Rev Q  received 22/12/20 
   Context Elevations 3006 Rev A  received 22/12/20 
   Section AA 3100 Rev C  received 22/12/20 
   Section BB 3101 Rev C  received 22/12/20 
   Roof Plan 7376 _031 Rev A  received 22/12/20 
   Landscape General Arrangement Roof Plan 7376_031 Rev A  
   First Floor GA Plan 2003 Rev N  
   Revised Highway Scheme Crossing South of Jewsons SK_004 Rev P6  received 03/09/21 
   Roof Floor GA Plan 2022 Rev H  received 12/10/21 

Page 67



 

 

   Site Block Plan 1001 Rev J  received 12/10/21 
   Site Location and Land Ownership Plan 3554-1030 -  received 10/11/21 
   North Elevation AWW-02-ZZ-DR-A-01 3003 Rev E  received 02/03/22 
   West Elevation AWW-02-ZZ-DR-A-01 3002 Rev E  received 02/03/22 
   South Elevation AWW-02-ZZ-DR-A-01 3001 Rev F  received 02/03/22 
   East Elevation AWW-02-ZZ-DR-A-01 3000 Rev E  received 02/03/22 
   Ground Flood GA Plan AWW-02-00-DR-A-01 2001 Rev K  received 02/03/22 
   Disabled Parking Elevation 7376_205 -  received 02/03/22 
   
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019). 
 
 
 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 3  CONDITION: ACCESS (CONTRACTORS) 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Before any other works are commenced, an adequate road access for contractors with a proper 
standard of visibility shall be formed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and 
connected to the adjacent highway in a position and a manner that has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure an adequate road access at an early stage in the development in the interests of public 
safety, convenience and amenity in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West 
Devon JLP 2019. 
 
Justification: To ensure safe site access. 
 
 4 CONDITION: HIGHWAY DILAPIDATION SURVEY 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No works shall commence on-site until the applicant has undertaken a highway dilapidation survey in 
consultation with the Local Highway Authority. The survey shall assess the existing condition of all 
highway infrastructure adjoining the site  which will be impacted upon through the construction 
activities associated with the development hereby approved. This shall also include routes to and 
from the site being used by construction traffic. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that any damage to the existing highway infrastructure arising from the construction of 
the proposed development is properly recorded and addressed by the developer on completion of 
the works in the interests of the safety of all users of the highway in accordance with Policy DEV29 
of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP. 

Page 68



 

 

 
Justification: To ensure that any damage to the existing highway infrastructure arising from the 
construction of the proposed development is properly recorded and addressed by the developer on 
completion of the works. 
 
 5 CONDITION: CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
The development works hereby proposed shall not commence until there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
(CTMP). The said CTMP shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the commencement of the development works and shall include details relating to the detailed 
programme of works, details of construction vehicle movements including number, type and size of 
vehicles; construction operation hours; routes being used by construction vehicles and contractors 
parking arrangements. The development works hereby proposed shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved 
CTMP. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the traffic impacts associated with the construction phase of the development does 
not lead to adverse impacts upon the operation of the Local Road Network in accordance with 
Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 2019. 
 
Justification: To ensure that the development is undertaken in a safe way in relation to the Highway 
network. 
 
 6 CONDITION: STREET DETAILS 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall take place until details of the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and 
method of construction and drainage of all access roads and footways forming part of the 
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
part of the building shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides access to it 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: 
To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment and to a 
satisfactory standard in accordance with Policy DEV 29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 
2019. 
 
Justification: To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment 
and to a satisfactory standard. 
 
 7 CONDITION: PROGRAMME OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL WORK 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No part of the development approved by this permission shall be commenced until the applicant (or 
their agent or successors in title) has secured a programme of archaeological work, in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation (WSI) that has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

Page 69



 

 

the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance 
with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: 
The site is known to contain important archaeological deposits (including those of the documented 
17th century Sugar House) that warrant appropriate investigation and/or recording in accordance 
with Policies DEV21 and DEV22 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (2014-
2034), and paragraphs 189-199 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 
 
Justification: To ensure that important archaeological features are properly recorded before 
construction commences. 
 
 8 CONDITION: EXTERNAL MATERIAL SAMPLES BUILDING 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby approved shall not proceed past the 
Damp Proof Course (DPC) level until details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Sample panels demonstrating the proposed materials 
together shall be erected on site for inspection by the 
Local Planning Authority, with an associated specification of materials submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. 
 
The material should be marine grade or otherwise appropriate to their Setting 
 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the design of the building is a high-quality building with cohesive design and in 
accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25 and DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
Justification: To ensure that the design of the building is a high-quality building with cohesive design. 
 
 9 CONDITION: CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall include the 
following.  
o Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 
o Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones'. 
o Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or 

reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements). 
o The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features. This 

includes the use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 
o The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to 

monitor works to ensure compliance with the CEMP: Biodiversity, and the actions that will 
be undertaken. 

o Responsible persons and lines of communication. The role and responsibilities on site of an 
ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person. 

Page 70



 

 

 
The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period 
strictly in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of 
biological interest in accordance with Joint Local Plan Policies SPT11 & DEV26 and Government 
advice contained in the NPPF paragraphs 174 and 180. 
 
Justification: To ensure that the construction activities shall take place in a considerate and safe way 
and to protect the environment. 
 
10 CONDITION: RESOURCE AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of development a detailed waste and recycling management plan shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority which sets out: 
 
-          The safe and sufficient provision of waste and recycling facilities to serve the developments  

including the type and number of receptacles for storage of both residential units and 
commercial units 

-          Suitable access arrangements to waste collection location with routes that are free from  
obstruction and minimise distances for receptacle movements . 

-          Details of alternative waste carriers, timing and frequency of any supplementary and/or  
commercial waste collection arrangements which minimise HGV movements  

-         Measures to provide the safe movement of the waste and recycling receptacles to a  
designated kerbside location pick up point including banksmen or other measures to enable 
the collection. 

-          Details of designated kerbside collection points and vehicle stopping points suitable for HGV  
and without impact on the highway. 

-           Method of storage during presentation for collection and maximum timeframes for storage  
on the highway to reduce the obstruction of the highway 

 
For the avoidance of doubt the prolonged storage of multiple waste and recycling receptacles 
outside of the building will not be acceptable and must be minimised. 
 
As part of the submission details of the ground floor plans should be provided including any required 
changes to the internal layout to facilitate the management of waste. 
 
This condition can if required be discharged in 2 parts;  
1. Which sets out and overarching strategy and associated ground floor changes 
1. Which provides the detailed approach  
The second of which can be prior to the first occupation of the building by residential or commercial 
units. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure the safe and acceptable means of waste and recycling facilities and their collection which 
will serve the building and the ensure highway safety and in accordance with Policies PLY25, DEV1, 
DEV2, DEV10 and DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan and the Guidance in the Supplementary Planning 
Document. 
 

Page 71



 

 

Justification: To ensure that the waste and recycling facilities can reasonably be store and managed 
on site. 
 
11 CONDITION: CONSTRUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 

PLAN 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission the developer 
shall submit a Code of Practice for the site that outlines how they intend to prevent or control any 
nuisance arising from any work carried out. 
The Code of practice must comply with all sections of the Public Protection Service, Code of 
Practice for construction and demolition sites, with particular regards to the hours of working, 
crushing and piling operations, control of mud on roads and the control of dust. All sensitive 
properties surrounding the site boundary shall be notified in writing of the nature and duration of 
works to be undertaken, and the name and address of a responsible person, to whom an 
enquiry/complaint should be directed. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise and dust from demolition / 
construction and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, 
water, soil, noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
Justification: To Ensure the Construction process is undertaken and a safe and considerate way. 
 
12  CONDITION: LAND QUALITY 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT  
 
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required to 
be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall not commence until sections 1 to 
3 below have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after development has 
begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected 
contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until section 4 of this 
condition has been complied with in relation to that contamination.  
 
Section 1: Site Characterisation  
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any 
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
The report of the findings must include:  
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:  
o human health,  
o property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 
lines and pipes,  
o adjoining land,  
o groundwaters and surface waters,  
o ecological systems,  
o archeological sites and ancient monuments;  

Page 72



 

 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).  
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.  
 
Section 2: Submission of Detailed Remediation Scheme  
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment shall be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives, remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
 
Section 3: Implementation of Approved Detailed Remediation Scheme  
The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the 
remediation scheme works.  
The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development, other than that required to carry out remediation, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report must be produced that evidences the remediation and demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
scheme carried out, must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
Section 4: Land Quality - Reporting of Unexpected Contamination  
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 
that was not previously identified; it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. Development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected 
contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until this condition 
has been complied with in relation to that contamination.  
 
An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 1, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 2 above, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report shall be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority 
in accordance with Section 3 above.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the environment, future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors; and to avoid conflict with 
Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light) of the 
Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
Justification: To ensure land contamination is appropriately managed during construction process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 

13  CONDITION: MECHANICAL VENTILATION RESIDIENTIAL 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
All dwellings must be installed with mechanical ventilation (to avoid the need for opening windows) 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This agreement must be obtained 
prior to construction. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the business 
and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
Justification: To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from 
the surrounding business uses. 
 
14 CONDITION: DRAINAGE 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of development and updated drainage strategy shall be submitted which 
includes the following: 
a) Calculations and modelling data should be produced in support of any drainage design 

showing that the drainage system is designed to the required standard. The impact of any 
potential tide-locking during extreme tide levels must be assessed together with any other 
incoming flows that may also be using the existing outfall. 

b) Discharge rates to a sewer are limited to 1 in 10 year greenfield run off rates with onsite 
attenuation required to store surface water volumes over and above these rates to a 1 in 100 
year return period standard of protection with a 40% allowance for climate change. Unless 
otherwise agreed through the detail to be submitted under part (a) above.  

c) maintaining the water flow route from Sutton Road across the north of the site is maintained 
and does not impact upon the site drainage and clarification that shows how the site is 
protected against off- site surface water run-off from Sutton Road. 

d) It is recommended that the property owners and managers sign up to the Environment 
Agency's Floodline Warnings Direct service for flood warnings. 

e) A Flood Emergency Plan which is communicated to all occupants detailing actions to be taken 
in the event of a flood warning to ensure occupants and property remain safe. The 
responsibilities of the building manager and individual property owners and managers should 
be clearly identified. The Flood Plan should also include an assessment of the scale of 
anticipated flooding and any access routes clearly identified. 

f) In an extreme event that exceeds the design standard, a surface water exceedance flow route 
should be identified on a plan that shows the route exceedance flows will take both on and 
off site from the point of surcharge, and demonstrating that these flows do not increase the 
risk of flooding to properties on and off the site and or to Third Party Land including the 
Public Highway. Exceedance flows should be intercepted and contained on site as far as this is 
reasonably practicable and safe to do so, ensuring that flows are directed away from public 
access areas. 

g) Details that show how the water environment is to be protected from pollution from the 
parking and access road areas. Reference should be made to the pollution risk matrix and 
mitigation indices in the CIRIA SuDS Manual. 

h) A ground investigation should also confirm there is no risk of groundwater pollution from 
contaminated land. 

Page 74



 

 

i) A construction environment management plan incorporating method statements to 
demonstrate how the new drainage system and water environment is protected during the 
demolition and construction phases. 

j) Details should be submitted of how and when the surface water drainage system is to be 
managed and maintained. 

 
The Drainage strategy shall:  
o explore the use of the proposed tree pits as SuDS and where this isn't feasible provide robust 

evidence as to why their use as SuDS isn't feasible; 
o Incorporate pollution prevention measures into the surface water drains and provide the 

appropriate details thereof 
o Considers the incorporation of the Yellow Fish Symbol or other communication tool to 

inform people that the drains flow directly into the harbour in order to limit the chemicals 
that are poured down the drains 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of water quality and to ensure 
appropriate site wide drainage provision in accordance with Joint Local Plan Policies SPT12, DEV2 
and DEV35 and Government advice contained in the NPPF. 
 
Justification: To ensure that a sustainable drainage strategy is delivered as part of the development. 
 
15 CONDITION: ACCESSIBLE AND ADAPTABLE DWELLINGS 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of development details of the location, access arrangements and 
specification of residential units to meet the Standard of M4(2) 34 units and M4(3) 4 units shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning authority and there after the development shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved detail. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure an acceptable number of dwellings are provided for accessible and adaptable House and in 
accordance with Policies DEV7, DEV9 and DEV10 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
Justification: To ensure an acceptable number of dwellings are provided for accessible and adaptable 
House and are appropriately designed. 
 
16 CONDITION: EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PLAN (ESP) 
 
PRE-COMMENCMENT 
 
No development shall take place until an ESP has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The ESP should demonstrate how local people will benefit from the 
development in terms of job opportunities, apprenticeship placements, work experience and other 
employment and skills priorities. The ESP should cover the construction of the development. The 
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved ESP unless a variation 
in the plan is agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure employment and skills development in accordance with DEV19 of the Plymouth and South 
West Devon Joint Local Plan 2019 and the NPPF 2019 
 

Page 75



 

 

Justification: To ensure the skills development and job opportunities are available throughout the 
construction of the development. 
 
17  CONDITION: DISTRICT HEATING AND COOLING FUTURE CONECTION  
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of development details of the location and connection detail of the 
proposed development Connections to future District Heating and Cooling System shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
 
Reason: 
To ensure the scheme delivers appropriate connections to future District Energy generation systems 
and in accordance with Policy DEV32 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
Justification: To ensure future connections to District Energy can be achieved. 
 
18 CONDITION: FURTHER DETAILS - SCREENING 
 
PRE-DAMP PROOF COURSE (DPC) 
 
Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby approved shall not proceed past the 
Damp Proof Course (DPC) level until details (presented at appropriate scales) of the following 
aspects of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 
 
1. Details/samples of obscure manifestation/glazing to be used in the south elevation (overlooking 
Marrowbone Slip) of the commercial units hereby approved.  
2. Details of the boundary treatment serving the first floor residential roof gardens 
 
The works shall conform to the approved details and be fully implemented before the building is first 
occupied and henceforth permanently maintained. 
 
Reason: 
In order to protect the privacy enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring and proposed dwellings in 
accordance with Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan  (2014-2034). 
 
19 . CONDITION: FURTHER DESIGN DETAILS 
 
PRE-DPC 
 
Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby approved shall not proceed past the 
Damp Proof Course (DPC) level until details (presented at appropriate scales) of the following 
aspects of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority:-  
1. Details of the design of the proposed balconies including all balustrades and soffits; 
2. Details of the blue feature frame; 
3. Details of the tensile sail canopies; 
4. Details of the proposed detailed design, materials and finishes to the windows/shopfront to the 
ground floor commercial units; 
5. Details of the proposed siting, design and external materials of any roof plant, services or lift 
rooms and any wall or roof vents, ducts, pipes or other accretions to the roof or elevations. 
6. Details of windows, including frames, depth of reveals, and relationship to surrounding cladding 

Page 76



 

 

7. Details of the boundary treatment serving the first floor residential roof gardens 
 
The works shall conform to the approved details. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the design of the building is a high-quality building with cohesive design and in 
accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25 and DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
20 CONDITION: LIGHTING DETAILS 
 
PRE-DPC 
 
No development shall take place beyond Damp Proof Course (DPC) until details of any external 
lighting scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
lighting scheme shall be fully implemented before any building is first occupied and henceforth 
permanently maintained for the occupiers of the site. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the lighting of the building is a high-quality and the lighting is appropriate to its setting 
and in accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25, DEV26 and DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
21  CONDITION: DELIVERY OF BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN MEASURES ON-SITE  
 
PRE-DPC 
  
Not-withstanding any of the approved plans and details, prior to the development reaching damp 
proof water course, details of the on-site biodiversity net gain measures shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. These measures must constitute no greater than - 51.93% 
loss in biodiversity. The details must include:  
o Details of the overall provision of net gain consisting of an assessment of the on-site 

landscaping to be provided  
o detailed delivery plan including timeframes for implementation  
o detailed management and maintenance strategy taking the form of a Landscape Ecological 

Management Plan which shall include the following: 
1. Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
2. Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 
3. Aims and objectives of management for both the landscape elements and the biodiversity 

features, 
4. Set out maintenance operations for the first year following implementation of the scheme and 

for a further 4 years following establishment for achieving aims and objectives. 
5. Preparation of a work schedule. 
6. Body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan. 
7. Monitoring and remedial measures. 
o Details of the resourcing of the entire delivery strategy for net gain on site for biodiversity 

for at least a period of 30 years including how potential loss of the proposed habitat areas 
will be avoided. 

For the avoidance of doubt the approved delivery plans must commence prior to occupation and the 
development shall be undertaken in full accordance with the approved detail. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 
interest, in accordance with Joint Local Plan Policies SPT12 & DEV26 and Government advice 
contained in the NPPF paragraphs 174, 179 & 180. 

Page 77



 

 

 
22 CONDITION: LANDSCAPE DETAILS 
 
PRE-DPC 
 
No development shall take place beyond Damp Proof Course until the details of the landscape 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The landscape 
works shall  
include: 
1. Soft landscape details: 
o Full soft landscape specification; plant species and size (to HTA standards), soil/roof build-up 

details, planting spec and establishment care. 
o The arrangement of proposed soft landscape elements and soil layouts/elevations (min 1:200 

scale) demonstrating sufficient rooting volume for the proposed trees. Plans should include a 
planting schedule for reference.  

o Planting details (1:20 scale or as appropriate) including (but not limited to) tree pit details and 
extensive green roof build-up  

 
2. Hard Landscape Details: to provide:  
o the arrangement of proposed hard landscape elements including (but not limited to) paving 

materials, boundary treatment materials (including the use of granite as the principle 
material), planters, corten rail features and all external surface treatments,  
ii. street furniture, including details of how movable features will be secured, 
iii. wayfinding and heritage interpretation features relating to the Sutton Harbour Heritage 
Trail and the sites to the east of Sutton Road,  
iv. 3 seagull proof bins 
v. junction details between existing and proposed paving, (min 1:200 scale)  

o Plans should include a specification of the hard landscape materials (e.g. paving materials), 
street furniture and any boundary treatments.  

 
All landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be 
carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development.  
 
Any dead or defective planting shall be replaced with a period of 5 years. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out in accordance with JLP policies PLY20, 
PLY25, DEV20 and DEV23 and Paragraph 130, 131 & 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019. 
 
23 CONDITION: OBSCURE GLAZING 
 
PRE-DPC 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 and Class A of Part 1 to Schedule 2 of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), the windows on the residential first to 
fourth floors in the side (south) elevation (at the outer edge of the 'T' shape only, immediately 
adjacent to Marrowbone Slip) of the proposed development, shall at all times be obscured. Samples 
of the proposed obscure manifestation/glazing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the development hereby approved proceeding past Damp Proof 
Course (DPC) level. The approved obscure manifestion/glazing shall be fully implemented before any 
building is first occupied and henceforth permanently maintained. 

Page 78



 

 

 
Reason: 
In order to protect the privacy enjoyed by the occupiers of the neighbouring dwellings in accordance 
with Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 
24 CONDITION: COMMERCIAL FLOOR SPACE 
 
PRE-SPECIFIC EVENT 
 
Prior to the internal fitting out of the commercial units of the building, detailed layout for each unit 
shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority this shall be accompanied by detail 
of the final floor space for each unit and a cumulative total for the scheme. 
 
Notwithstanding the provision of section 55(2)(f) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or any 
provision equivalent to that Act in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Act with 
or without modification, and the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any 
provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification) and The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 any provision equivalent to that Order in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification 
 
The final layout of the commercial uses including and mezzanine space shall not exceed the following 
quantums of development. 
Units 1-5 Use class E (a) (b) (c) total 2478 sqm of which no more than 500sqm shall be for E (a)  
Gym Unit E(d) 461 
Co-worker Space E (g) (i) 163 sqm 
 
Any proposed alteration to the approved subsections of the use class E or  subdivisions or 
amalgamations of the units shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
  
Reason: 
The application has been assessed on this basis and the impact of additional retail or Town Centre 
floorspace would need further consideration to ensure that the development would not impact on 
vitality and viability of other designated centres in accordance with Policy DEV16 of the Plymouth 
and South West Devon Joint Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
25 CONDITION: PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND ACCRETIONS 
 
PRE-INSTALATION 
 
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification), no plant, equipment or 
other accretions shall be added to the roof or elevations of any part of the building hereby permitted 
without the details of  these having been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
(any application for which will be expected to demonstrate the visual impact of such equipment). 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the design quality and appearance does not diminish over and ensuring a quality built 
form and in accordance with Policies PLY20 and PLY25 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
 

Page 79



 

 

26 CONDITION: ACCESS CONTROL MEASURES 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Prior to the first occupation of the building details of access control measures to protect the building 
and its users shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The development shall be secured in accordance with the approved details thereafter. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential amenity of the buildings occupiers and in accordance with Policy DEV1 of 
the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 
27 CONDITION: ACCESS/HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS (GRAMPIAN) 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
No part of the building hereby proposed shall be occupied until the proposed improvements to the 
existing highway (including the provision of a zebra crossing and parking spaces) have been 
constructed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Such improvements shall also include pedestrian improvements as outlined in 
Tables 3.1 and 3.2 of the document TN08 Post Application Highways Response dated November 
2021. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and to facilitate safe access to and from the site for 
all highway users in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 
2019. 
 
28 CONDITION: GRAMPIAN HARBOUR CAR PARK 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
No part of the building hereby proposed shall be occupied until the works to increase the capacity of 
Harbour Car Park (approved under application no 18/001246/FUL) or any modification to that 
consent have been delivered and in accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority which shall include the provision of a total of 34 EV Charging Points 
within the car park. Which shall also have been implement prior to the first occupation of the 
building 
 
Reason: 
To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to the development to be parked off the public 
highway so as to avoid damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the 
highway in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 2019. 
 
29 CONDITION: GRAMPIAN CAR PARKING PROVISION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
No part of the building hereby proposed shall be occupied until a minimum of 172 spaces, of which 
114 spaces are to be provided through the extension of Harbour Car Park approved under 
reference number 18/001246/FUL or any modification to that consent have been delivered and in 
accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 58 

Page 80



 

 

spaces are to be provided elsewhere within the existing 359 spaces of the Harbour Car Park,  spaces 
have been provided within Harbour Car Park to serve the development.  
 
Details relating to the allocation of these spaces within the car park along with measures to control 
their use shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority once 
approved the Spaces shall be managed in accordance with the approved detail. 
 
Reason: 
To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to be parked off the public highway so as to avoid 
damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway in accordance with 
Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 2019. 
 
30 CONDITION: CYCLE PROVISION RESIDENTIAL 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The building shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with 
details previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for a 
minimum of 138 bicycles  to be securely parked including an element of provision for E Bike 
charging.  
 
As part of the submission details the ground floor plans should be provided including any required 
changes to the internal layout to facilitate the required cycle parking. 
 
Unless alternative cycle parking facilities have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
The secure area for storing bicycles shown on the approved plans shall remain available for its 
intended purpose and shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with Policy 
DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 2019. 
 
31 CONDITION: CYCLE PROVISION COMMERCIAL 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The building shall not be occupied until details of Cycle Parking to Serve the Commercial Premises 
has been laid out within the site in accordance with details previously submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority for a minimum of  
- 10 spaces for Units 1-5  
- 5 spaces for the gym use 
 
For bicycles to be securely parked including an element of provision for E Bike charging.  
 
As part of the submission detail of the proposed number of employees per unit shall be provided 
with the final number of spaces determined in accordance with the provision set out in the Plymouth 
and South West Devon Supplementary Planning Document (2020) 
 

Page 81



 

 

The secure area for storing bicycles shown on the approved plan shall remain available for its 
intended purpose and shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with Policy 
DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP 2019 and Plymouth and South West Devon 
Supplementary Planning Document (2020). 
 
32 CONDITION: USE OF LOADING AREAS 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The land indicated on the approved plans for the loading and unloading of vehicles shall not be used 
for any other purposes unless an alternative and equivalent area of land within the curtilage of the 
site is provided for loading and unloading with the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that space is available at all times to enable such vehicles to be loaded and unloaded off 
the public highway so as to avoid:- (i) damage to amenity; (ii) prejudice to public safety and 
convenience, and (iii) interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway; in accordance with 
Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon JLP. 
 
33  CONDITION: TRAVEL PLAN 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a detailed Travel Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall seek to 
encourage residents, visitors and commercial occupants to use modes of transport other than the 
private car to get to and from the site. It shall also include details of the measures/initiatives that will 
be implemented in order to secure the modal shift targets, agreed funding to deliver those 
measures/initiatives, an agreed arrangement for monitoring the use of provisions available through 
the operation of the Travel Plan; and the name, position and contact telephone number of the 
person responsible for its implementation. From the date of occupation the developer shall operate 
the approved Travel Plan. The applicant should contact the Sustainable Transport Team within 
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure for site-specific advice prior to preparing the Travel Plan. 
 
Reason: 
The Local Planning Authority considers that such measures need to be taken in order to reduce 
reliance on the use of private cars (particularly single occupancy journeys) and to assist in the 
promotion of more sustainable travel choices in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and 
South West Devon JLP. 
 
34 CONDITION: SIGNAGE DESIGN CODE COMMERCIAL 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Notwithstanding the submitted information, the ground floor commercial units shall not be occupied 
until a design code for their shop-front signage has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The units shopfront signage design will thereafter conform to this code, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

Page 82



 

 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that the design of the building commercial signage is of a high-quality and cohesive design 
and in accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25 and DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
35 CONDITION: EXTERNAL MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
No part of the development hereby proposed shall be occupied until the applicant has submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority for approval a management plan for the external maintenance of the 
building. The said management plan will provide details relating to how all external materials shall be 
maintained in a good, clean condition and appearance as long as the proposed buildings remain on 
the site and how any problems with corrosion, discolouration, weathering or other defects will be 
rectified promptly. 
 
Once approved the building shall thereafter permanently be maintained in accordance with the 
approved document. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the design quality and appearance does not diminish over time and ensuring a quality 
built form and in accordance with Policies PLY20 and PLY25 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
36 CONDITION: INTERNAL SOUND LEVELS RESIDIENTIAL 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
All dwellings shall be constructed in accordance with BS8233:2014 so as to provide sound insulation 
against externally generated noise. The good room criteria shall be applied, meaning there must be 
no more than 35 dB LAeq for living rooms (0700 to 2300 daytime) and 30 dB LAeq for bedrooms 
(2300 to 0700 night-time), with windows shut and other means of ventilation provided. 
 
Prior to any occupation of dwellings, the developer should submit, for written approval by the LPA, a 
verification report proving that the dwelling meets the aforementioned criteria. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the business 
and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
37 CONDITION: EXTRACTION AND VENTILATION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Before the use hereby permitted is first implemented, details of the specification and design of 
equipment to control the emission of fumes and smell from the commercial premises shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented before the use first commences and shall be retained at all times thereafter. Any 
alteration or variation to the equipment should receive the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. All equipment installed as part of the scheme shall thereafter be operated and maintained 
in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. 
 
 

Page 83



 

 

Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise, odour and vibrations 
emanating from the business and residential uses machinery and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 
(Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and 
Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
38 CONDITION: COMERCIAL USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Prior to the first operation of each of the commercial units hereby approved and any subsequent 
changes of operation, a management plan for the operation of the use shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The management plan shall include contact 
details (including postal address, email address and telephone number) of the person to be contacted 
regarding any issues arising from the use of the unit or any associated external areas under its 
control and a commitment to keep this information up to date. The management plan must also 
describe how the operator will control any impact to the residential and general amenity from the 
operation of the facilities, and how those controls will be implemented and monitored to verify their 
effectiveness. The management plan shall thereafter be adhered to strictly at all times. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the general 
operation of the establishment and from patrons arriving and leaving, and avoid conflict with Policies 
DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light) of the 
Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
39 CONDITION: FIRST FLOOR ROOF TERRACE 
 
Notwithstanding the approved plans the first floor roof space of the Commercial plinth shall not be 
used in connection with the operation for the commercial units below for the access or enjoyment 
of customers. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of residents both of and neighbouring the proposed development and in 
accordance with Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 
40 CONDITION: FLEXIBLE EVENTS SPACE 
 
The southwest corner of the quayside public realm must remain as a flexible space for events as 
intended and the buildings' residents and occupants should be made aware that this is the intention 
for this area. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed area is available for its intended purpose and can contribute to the 
wider Water front area offer and in accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25 and DEV20 of the Joint 
Local Plan. 
 
41 CONDITION: ACTIVE FRONTAGE 
 
Notwithstanding Section 55(2)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the 
windows  relating to the commercial unit(s) hereby approved at ground floor level shall remain 
visually transparent - free from any applied vinyl advertisements, curtains, display stands or any other 
features that could restrict views in to or out of the premises at all times, unless otherwise agreed in 

Page 84



 

 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. Except where approved under other conditions of this 
consent. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the street scene is enlivened and that blank and inactive frontages are not created 
and in accordance with Policies PLY20, PLY25, DEV1, DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
42 CONDITION: NOISE COMERCIAL UNITS 
  
Internal noise generated from the commercial units  to the residential properties  hereby approved 
shall not exceed 25dB LAeq,15min or 35 dB LAFmax at any time. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the business 
and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
43 CONDITION: NOISE FROM PLANT 
 
The noise (LAeqT) emanating from plant hereby approved, including any air conditioning, ventilation 
or extract systems, shall not exceed the background noise level (LA90), including the 
character/tonalities of the noise, at any time as measured at the façade of the nearest residential 
property. All plant installed as part of the scheme shall thereafter be operated and maintained in 
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions . 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the business 
and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
44 CONDITION: HOURS OF OPERATION COMMERCIAL 
 
Hours of operation are restricted to the following times; 
Monday to Saturday 08.00 - 23.00 hrs 
Sunday and Bank Holidays 10.00 - 22.30 hrs 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the general 
operation of the establishment and from patrons arriving and leaving, and avoid conflict with Policies 
DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light) of the 
Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
45 CONDITION: DELIVERIES AND COLLECTIONS  
 
Goods deliveries and refuse collections are restricted to the following times: - 
Monday to Saturday: No deliveries or refuse collection between 6pm and 8am 
Sundays and Bank Holidays: No deliveries or refuse collection. Except where approved under other 
conditions of this consent.  
 
Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise emanating from the business 
and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 

Page 85



 

 

 
46 CONDITION: BIN STORAGE COMMERCIAL  
 
All food refuse generate at the premises prior to collection will be stored securely in closed lidded 
containers. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt no external storage of waste is permitted within the site (except during 
collection). 
 
Reason: 
To protect the residents, local operators and visitors from odours arising from decomposing food 
matter, and to reduce the potential for the attraction of pests such as rats, mice, ants, cockroaches 
and seagulls and avoid conflict with To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from 
noise emanating from the business and avoid conflict with Policies DEV1 (Protecting health and 
amenity) and DEV2 (Air, water, soil, noise, land and light) of the Plymouth and Southwest Devon 
Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
47 CONDITION: AIR SOURCE HEAT PUMPS  
 
The proposed centralised Air Source Heat Pumps shall achieve a 56% Carbon Saving Over Gas 
Boiler Base in accordance with the submitted Energy Strategy Review (Revision D dated 1 March 
2021).  
 
Reason: 
To ensure the scheme delivers appropriate carbon reduction measures in accordance with Policy 
DEV32 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
48 CONDITION: ENERGY AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Sustainability Statement 
including the sustainability measure set out which will be permanently retained thereafter.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure a sustainable form of development is secured and one which reduces natural resource use 
and is adaptable to Climate change and in accordance with the requirement of Policy DEV 32 of the 
Adopted Joint Local Plan. 
 
49 CONDITION: FLOOD RISK 
 
planning permission shall only be carried out in accordance with the flood risk management and 
mitigation recommendations set out in the approved Flood Risk Assessment (Ref. WE04821/FRA, v5, 
29 September 2020), which shall be fully implemented as part of the development and maintained 
and operated for the lifetime of the development.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure the development is safe from the risk of flooding and in accordance with Joint Local Plan 
Policies SPT12, DEV2 and DEV35 and Government advice contained in the NPPF. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



 

 

50 ONSITE CAR PARK MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Prior to the first occupation of the development an onsite car parking strategy shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The strategy shall: 
o Set out the use, restrictions and operation of the spaces proposed 
o Set out how coordination of the concierge space with waste collections will be under taken 
o Set out how the spaces will be managed with any proposed concierge service offered 
o Set out methods to control the use of the spaces 
o Provide details of signage 
 
Once approved the development shall be permanently managed in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt the 2 disabled/accessible spaces shall not be allocated to individual 
properties within the development. 
 
Reason: to ensure the safe operation of the proposed parking and to ensure it is made available for 
the intended purpose and in accordance with policies PLY25 and DEV29 of the Joint Local Plan. 
 
 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 
1 INFORMATIVE: (£0 CIL LIABILITY) DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT ATTRACT A 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 
 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from liability 
under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not attract a levy 
payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule. The Levy is subject to 
change and you should check the current rates at the time planning permission first permits 
development (if applicable) see www.plymouth.gov.uk/cil for guidance. 
 
Further information on CIL can be found on our website here: 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningapplications/communityinfrastructur
elevy  
 
More information and CIL Forms can be accessed via the Planning Portal: 
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/70/community_infrastructure_levy/5  
 
More detailed information on CIL including process flow charts, published by the Ministry of 
Housing, Local Communities and Government can also be found here: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy  
 
 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NEGOTIATION) 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework, the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant  and has 
negotiated amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 
 

Page 87



 

 

 3 INFORMATIVE: ACTIVE FRONTAGE 
 
For the purposes of the 'Active Frontage' condition; an active window is one where the activities 
within the property can be seen through a substantial proportion of the glazed area. 
 
 4 INFORMATIVE: ADVERTISING 
 
This permission does not give or imply any consent for the advertising material. Such advertising is 
controlled under the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007 
and the applicants should obtain any necessary consent separately. 
Furthermore, any signage proposed in the future should be of high quality and every effort should 
be made to ensure that ad hoc signage does not undermine the quality of the overall architectural 
composition over time. 
 
 5 INFORMATIVE: MARINE GRADE MATERIALS 
 
You are advised that materials should be of an appropriate specification and sufficiently robust to 
weather well in the exposed marine environment. 
 
 6 INFORMATIVE: PUBLIC HIGHWAY ENGINEERING 
 
No work within the public highway should commence until engineering details of the improvements 
to the public highway have been approved by the Highway Authority and an agreement under 
Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 entered into.  The applicant should contact Plymouth 
Highways for the necessary approval. 
 
 7 INFORMATIVE: RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME 
 
The applicant should be made aware that the property lies within a resident parking permit scheme 
which is currently over-subscribed. As such the development will be excluded from obtaining 
permits and purchasing visitor tickets for use within the scheme. 
 
 8 INFORMATIVE: TRAVEL PLAN 
 
The document required in connection with the  relevant travel plan condition  should be based 
upon the Council's Travel Plan Guide for Developments in Plymouth  published on the Council's 
website.  The guidance is available at this link : 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/travelplans or can be obtained by emailing 
Travelplans@plymouth.gov.uk   
 
Further information  on the Council's Travel Plan Audit and Monitoring Fee which may be 
applicable  is also contained in the Travel Plan guide and also in the Strategic Planning and 
Infrastructure Fees  Policy  which can be viewed here: 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningandbuildingcontrol/planningapplications/planningapplicationfee
s  
 
 9 INFORMATIVE: BUILDING SAFETY GATEWAYS 
 
The Applicants attention is drawn to the publication of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure and Section 62A Applications) (England) (Amendment) 
Order 2021.   This legislation applies to all new applications made on or after the 1st August 2021, 
as such this application is not required to meet these requirements.  Notwithstanding this, Fire 
Safety of high rise residential buildings is an important matter and as such the applicant is urged to 

Page 88



 

 

ensure these matters are given due consideration and to ensure that all relevant Building 
Regulations are met. 
 
10 INFORMATIVE: CONSULTATION CONDITION 6 
 
Applicants are advised that the detail required with condition 6 should be developed in consultation 
with the Designing Out Crime Officer and in the context of the guidance of the Commission on 
Violence against Women and Girls. 
 
 
 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OFFICIAL 

            
Plymouth City Council 
Planning Compliance Summary – March 2022  
 
 
 
Cases outstanding 
 

 
           188 

 
 
Cases received this month 
 

 
                        45 
 

 
Cases closed this month 
 
(No breach identified)  
 
(Informal/formal action taken)  

 
                       48 
 
                       (19) 
                        
                       (29) 

 
Planning Contravention Notices Issued 
 
Planning Contravention Notices Live 
 

 
                        0 
 
                        0 

 
Planning Enforcement Notices Issued 
 
Enforcement Notices Live 
 
Temporary Stop Notices (TSN) issued  
 
Temporary Stop Notices (TSN) Live 
 
Advertisement Removal Notice 
 
Breach of Condition Notice 
 

 
                        1 
 
                        4 
 
                        0 
  
                        0 
 
                        0 
 
                        1 

 
Untidy Land Notices Issued 
 
Untidy Land Notices Live 
 

 
                        0 
 
                        15 

 
Prosecutions Initiated 
 
Prosecutions Live 
 

 
                        1 
 
                        0 

 
 

Page 91 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee
Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

07/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00055/FUL Mr Clayton Fussell Demolition of rear conservatory, basement 
extension, and garage; and erection of two-
storey rear extension with rear balcony

103 Underlane Plymstock 
Plymouth PL9 9LB

Mr Sam Lewis

07/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00077/ADV The Pickstock Group 9no. building signage internally illuminated Crescent Point The Crescent Notte 
Street Plymouth PL1 3AB

Miss Emily Godwin

07/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00088/FUL Mr & Mrs Bentley Loft conversion with hip to gable and rear 
dormer

15 Torland Road Plymouth PL3 5TS Miss Emily Godwin

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00003/TPO John Janes Tree work to fell T12 (Pine) Kinnaird House  Buckingham Place 
Plymouth PL5 2EN

Mr Chris Dawson

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00018/TPO Mr Owen Hall Monterey Cypress (T1) - Removal of 2 lowest 
limbs and 2m reduction to the southern side 
of the tree over hanging 10 Furzehatt Way.

3 Furzehatt Road Plymouth PL9 
8QU

Mr Chris Dawson

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00094/FUL Hulton Enterprises 
Holdings Ltd

External alterations inc. installation of 
louvres, re-configuration of the secondary 
entrance including removal of ramp and 
extension of the existing bin store.

20 William Prance Road Plymouth 
PL6 5WR 

Mr Paul McConville

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00096/FUL Mr & Mrs Horton Loft conversion and front and rear dormers 30 Austin Crescent Plymouth PL6 
5QD

Ms Isobel Fardon

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00101/FUL Miss N Mason Replacement of existing conservatory roof 
and wall frames (onto existing base)

Fors, Horn Lane Plymouth PL9 9BR Miss Emily Godwin

05 April 2022 Page 1 of 16

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 8



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00121/TPO Mr Luke Catchpole Beech (T1) - Reduce lowest laterals on north 
side up to 2.5m cutting up to a diameter of 
45mm to appropriate pruning points up.

27 Warleigh Crescent Plymouth 
PL6 5BS

Emily Browne

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00126/FUL Mr Antony Codner First floor side extension over existing garage 1 Windermere Crescent Plymouth 
PL6 5HX

Ms Isobel Fardon

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00128/FUL Specsavers Optical 
Stores UK

Installation of 4no. additional AC condensing 
units to flat roof at rear of property inc. new 
shopfront

39 - 41 The Broadway Plymouth 
PL9 7AF 

Mr Sam Lewis

08/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00144/FUL Hobbs Two-storey side extension 1 Hilldean Close Plymouth PL5 4LR Mr Macauley Potter

09/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01777/FUL Ms Emily Jones Regularising the external seating areas Unit 3 -5, Royal William Yard 
Plymouth PL1 3RP 

Ms Bethany German

09/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00010/FUL Mr Azizi Extension to balcony and install full height 
glazing to undercroft seating area (re-
submission of 21/01336/FUL)

135 Hoe Road Plymouth PL1 3DE Mr Mike Stone

09/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00062/FUL Mrs M Williams Hip to gable roof with rear dormer and 
alteration to garage and front door

6 Howard Road Plymouth PL9 7DT Miss Emily Godwin

09/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00132/FUL Mrs Sandra Lamerton Single storey rear extension 3 Furzehatt Avenue Plymouth PL9 
8LJ 

Miss Emily Godwin

05 April 2022 Page 2 of 16

P
age 94



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

10/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02131/FUL K Wszolek Conversion of former rear commercial 
storage range to provide new residential 
accommodation to extend existing flat and 
associated building alterations

25 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LD 

Ms Abbey Edwards

10/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02132/LBC K Wszolek Conversion of former rear commercial 
storage range to provide new residential 
accommodation to extend existing flat and 
associated building alterations

25 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LD 

Ms Abbey Edwards

10/03/2022 Refused 21/02177/FUL Nimmo Two storey garage/outbuilding (part-
retrospective) (re-submission of 
21/01754/FUL)

26 Meadowfield Place Plymouth 
PL7 1XQ

Mr Paul McConville

10/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00164/FUL Mr Keith Miller Single storey rear and side extension 16 Effingham Crescent Plymouth 
PL3 5TN 

Mr Mike Stone

11/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/00700/FUL Mr & Mrs Carruthers Conversion and restoration to create 9no. 
flats inc. a contemporary rear infill extension 
and access lift (re-submission of 
19/01053/FUL)

7 & 8 Elliot Terrace Plymouth PL1 
2PL 

Mrs Karen Gallacher

11/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/00701/LBC Mr & Mrs Carruthers Conversion and restoration to create 9no. 
flats inc. a contemporary rear infill extension 
and access lift (re-submission of 
19/01054/LBC)

7 & 8 Elliot Terrace Plymouth PL1 
2PL 

Mrs Karen Gallacher

11/03/2022 Agreed 21/01378/CDM Mr Dunn Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 20/00783/FUL

680 Wolseley Road Plymouth PL5 
1JL 

Mr Paul McConville

11/03/2022 Agreed 21/01940/CDM Justin Bryce Condition Discharge: Conditions 7, 8, 9 & 10 
of application 20/00577/FUL

2 Armada Street Plymouth PL4 8LU Ms Abbey Edwards

05 April 2022 Page 3 of 16

P
age 95



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

14/03/2022 Agreed 22/00158/CDM Mr Robbie Brown Condition Discharge: Condition 6 of 
application 19/01486/FUL

Land At Seaton Neighbourhood 
(Phase 6) Plymouth 

Mr Chris Cummings

15/03/2022 Agreed 21/02255/CDM Mr Elliot Cox Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 
application 20/01874/FUL

26 Houndiscombe Road Plymouth 
PL4 6HQ

Ms Abbey Edwards

15/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00087/FUL Mr A Macleod Change of use from student HMO to HMO 
(Sui Generis)

12 - 13 Sussex Street Plymouth PL1 
2HT

Ms Abbey Edwards

15/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00091/FUL Mrs Emma Partridge Single storey rear extension, window and 
door to side elevation

27 Henry Avent Gardens Plymouth 
PL9 8GQ 

Miss Emily Godwin

15/03/2022 Agreed 22/00105/CDMLB Adam Willetts Condition Discharge: Condition 13 of 
application 16/01377/LBC

Melville Building, Royal William 
Yard Plymouth PL1 3RP  

Miss Katherine 
Graham

15/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00170/FUL Mr & Mrs Smith Rear infill extension to create garden room 
(part retrospective)

10 Alfred Street Plymouth PL1 2RP Mr Sam Lewis

15/03/2022 Agreed 22/00199/CDC James Ronnie Compliance with conditions of application 
13/00688/FUL

Plot A1, Millbay Development, 
Millbay Road Plymouth 

Miss Katherine 
Graham

15/03/2022 Agreed 22/00272/CDM Becton Dickinson 
Vacutainer Systems

Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 21/01906/FUL

Becton Dickinson Vacutainer 
Systems Belliver Way Plymouth 
PL6 7BP 

Mr Paul McConville

05 April 2022 Page 4 of 16

P
age 96



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01801/FUL Plymouth City Council Demolition of existing building and erection 
of a multi-storey car park comprising of 
ground plus 6no storeys and ancillary works 
including substation

Plymouth Railway Station 
Plymouth  

Miss Katherine 
Graham

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02182/FUL Timoneers Ltd Change of use from residential Buddhist 
Centre with ground floor cafe to homeless 
accommodation (Sui Generis) (temporary for 
2no. years) (retrospective)

33 Sutherland Road Plymouth PL4 
6BN

Mr Sam Lewis

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02256/FUL Claire's Snacks Claire's 
Snacks

Use of a redundant gas equipment building 
as a storage building and permanent siting of 
a catering unit.

Land Adj 89 St Modwen Road 
Plymouth PL6 8LH

Mr Macauley Potter

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00051/TPO Mrs Emma Holman Unspecified Species - Remove due to damage 
to property (driveway) and potential damage 
to neighbouring property.

54 Dunstone Road Plymstock 
Plymouth PL9 8SF 

Mr Chris Dawson

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00078/FUL Mrs Fiona Donald Two-storey side extension with hip-to-gable 
roof (re-submission of 21/00899/FUL)

106 Crossway Plymouth PL7 4HY Mr Macauley Potter

16/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00182/LBC Mr Adam Willetts Installlation of a concrete slab floor 
supported on a steel frame

Melville Building  Royal William 
Yard Plymouth PL1 3RP

Miss Katherine 
Graham

17/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00028/FUL Mr Andrew Cuer Removal of boundary hedges to be replaced 
with concrete block walls, and creation of 
vehicle hardstand.

149 Langley Crescent Plymouth 
PL6 6ET

Mr Macauley Potter

17/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00039/S73 Mr Andrew Callicott Variation of Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of 
application 20/01538/FUL (approved via 
appeal APP/N1160/D/21/3269554) to alter 
the exterior finish of the property and alter 
the window/door layout

55 Admiralty Street Stonehouse 
Plymouth PL1 3RY

Mr Sam Lewis

05 April 2022 Page 5 of 16

P
age 97



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

17/03/2022 Split Decision 22/00071/CDC Tina Wengradt Compliance with conditions of application 
16/00150/FUL

89 Spindle Crescent Plymouth PL7 
2JG 

Mr Simon Osborne

17/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00122/LBC Mr Ciampolini Replacement of windows to south and east 
elevation; retention of windows and doors to 
north and west elevation (part-retrospective)

Jessops, Horsham Lane Tamerton 
Foliot Plymouth PL5 4NP

Mr Paul McConville

17/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00147/TCO Suzanne Sykes Ash (T1) - Fell due to roots causing damage to 
adjacent building, with deflection between 2 
adjoining external walls, also undermining 
stone boundary wall with neighbouring 
propoerty and disruption under paving slabs 
of garden space.

50 Fore Street Plympton Plymouth 
PL7 1NB 

Mr Chris Dawson

17/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00152/FUL Mr & Mrs Luke 
Harrison

Two-storey side extension, single storey front 
extension and front vehicle hardstanding

9 Minses Close Plymouth PL9 8DR Mr Mike Stone

17/03/2022 Refused 22/00265/AMD Mr Calderwood Non-material Amendment: Alter design of 
rear French and adjacent windows for 
application 21/00971/FUL

2 Boringdon Terrace Plymouth PL9 
9TQ 

Mr Sam Lewis

18/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01985/FUL Mr Matt Strickland Additional storey to existing property 
including two storey front extension, single 
storey side extension, first floor rear balcony 
and alterations.

Elstow, Franklyns Plymouth PL6 5JG Ms Isobel Fardon

18/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02271/FUL M & N Chohan Conversion of rear outbuilding to create 1no. 
flat (Class C3) including the addition of 
second storey; plus alterations to existing 
HMO entrance and creation of undercroft 
bin/bike storage (re-submission of 
21/01862/FUL)

62 Mutley Plain Plymouth PL4 6LF Mr Sam Lewis

05 April 2022 Page 6 of 16

P
age 98



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

18/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00138/FUL Mrs Gemma Crocker Replacement of external store with summer 
house, widening of existing hardstand and 
alterations to front boundary wall and gate 
pier

2 The Grove Stoke Plymouth PL3 
4AL 

Miss Emily Godwin

18/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00149/ADV Mr Steve Bradshaw 1no. internally-illuminated fascia sign, plus 
window graphics

39 - 41 The Broadway Plymouth 
PL9 7AF 

Mr Sam Lewis

18/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00193/FUL Mr & Mrs Hutchings Widen existing two-storey rear extension, 
rear balcony, relocation of garden steps and 
new detached garage

33 Compton Avenue Plymouth PL3 
5DA 

Miss Emily Godwin

21/03/2022 Agreed 19/01219/CDM Taylor Wimpey Exeter Condition Discharge: Condition 13 (Public 
Spaces) & 17 (Landscape Maintenance Plan) 
of application 15/00517/REM

"Sherford New Community" Land 
South/Southwest Of A38 Deep 
Lane And East Of Haye Road 
Elburton Plymouth PL9 8DD 

Mr Tom French

21/03/2022 Agreed 19/01368/CDM Miss Ruth Burrows Condition Discharge: Condition 13 (Public 
Spaces) and condition 17 (Landscape 
Maintenance Plan) of application 
15/00519/REM

"Sherford New Community" Land 
South/Southwest Of A38 Deep 
Lane And East Of Haye Road 
Plymouth PL9 8DD  

Mr Tom French

21/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01241/LBC Mr Sean Harrison Rooflight access hatch and balustrade 60 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LA 

Mrs Karen Gallacher

21/03/2022 Agreed 22/00162/CDM Merkur Slots UK Ltd Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 21/01975/FUL

116 New George Street Plymouth 
PL1 1RZ 

Ms Bethany German

22/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00048/TCO Mr Joe Berryman Turkey Oak - Crownlift/selective pruning to 
nearest suitable growth points as shown in 
a ached photographs Goat Willow - Selec ve 
pruning to nearest suitable growth points as 
shown in attached photographs

27 Somerset Place Plymouth PL3 
4BZ 

Mr Chris Dawson

05 April 2022 Page 7 of 16

P
age 99



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

22/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00131/TPO Mr R Rabin Sycamore (T1) - Whole crown thin up to 20% 
of the foliage/bud density. Diameter of 
pruning cuts will not exceed 50mm. Turkey 
Oak (T2) - Crown reduce the radial branch 
spread back to previous reduction points (no 
more than 2.5m branch length) from a height 
of 15m to 13.5m and a spread of 3 to 4m 
radial spread. Diameter of pruning cuts will 
not exceed 50mm.

5 Venn Court Plymouth PL3 5NS Emily Browne

22/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00134/TPO Mr Dawn Clarke Oak (T1) - Reduce crown overhanging garden 
by 1m all over. Hawthorn (T2) - Reduce 
crown overhanging garden by 0.5m all over.

7 Elmwood Close Plymouth PL6 7JY Emily Browne

22/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00142/TCO Mr Jamie Miller Sycamore - Reduce size by 3 m limit the 
undermining of an historic wall and retain a 
reasonably sized specimen.

39 St Johns Road Turnchapel 
Plymouth PL9 9SR 

Emily Browne

22/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00160/TCO Mr Patrick Hendy 3x Yew (G1) - Reduce lateral branches by 
approx. 2-3m and 1m in height in order to 
manage as future topiaries. Lawson Cypress 
(T2) -  Fell to near ground level. Lawson 
Cypress and Bay Hedge (G3) - Remove 
Lawson cypress trees in order to favour 
native hedge. Yew (T4) - Crown raise low 
branches overhanging footpath in order to 
attain a clearance of approx. 3m from ground 
level. Lime (T5) - Remove epicormic growth 
on main trunk.

135 Wingfield Road Plymouth PL3 
4ER 

Emily Browne

22/03/2022 Agreed 22/00185/CDM Mr Jeffrey Seed Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 18/02105/S73

47A North Road East Plymouth PL4 
6AY 

Mr Daniel Thorning

23/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01868/FUL Mr James Prentice New shopfront, air-condition system and air 
in-take alterations associated with change 
from restaurant (Class E) to jewellers (Class E)

2 Cornwall Street City Centre 
Plymouth PL1 1LP

Ms Bethany German

05 April 2022 Page 8 of 16

P
age 100



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

23/03/2022 Agreed 21/02094/CDM Berat Veseli Condition Discharge: Conditions 15 & 16 of 
application 21/01687/S73

Bath Street Plymouth PL1 3LT Mr Chris Cummings

23/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00127/LBC Plymouth Community 
Homes

Proposed external repairs and redecoration 
works inc. roof coverings, rainwater goods, 
elevation painting and signage

2-15 How Street, 1-7, 9, 10-15 
Looe Street And 115-131 Vauxhall 
Street  Barbican Plymouth PL4 0DY

Ms Bethany German

23/03/2022 Agreed 22/00135/CDM Louis Hamston Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 21/01377/FUL

Staddon Heights Farm 50 Staddon 
Lane Plymouth PL9 9SP

Ms Abbey Edwards

23/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00165/LBC Mr Nick Houlton Fit out works to enable restaurant use inc. 
new entrance lobby, opening in existing 
stone internal wall, alterations to the level of 
an existing window opening to form a 
doorway, unblocking of an existing door 
opening, installation of a fire rated substation 
lobby and partitions and finishes

Melville Building  Royal William 
Yard Plymouth PL1 3RP 

Ms Bethany German

23/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00186/TCO Ms Rachel Broomfield Weeping Willow (T1) - Reduce the overall 
height and width by 4-5m to remove and lift 
the undercut to approx 3m off the ground to 
lift weight from the top and sides of the tree 
and give the tree a better shape. American 
Oak (T2) - Reduce its height and width by 1-
2m to take weight off the top and reduce the 
stress where the trunk is starting to split.

113 Fore Street Plympton 
Plymouth PL7 1ND 

Emily Browne

23/03/2022 Refused 22/00375/AMD Clarion Housing 
Association Limited

Non-material amendment: Amend wording 
for conditions 4, 5 & 6 of application 
20/01787/S73

Land At Poole Park Road, Savage 
Road, Roberts Road & Roope Close 

Mr Simon Osborne

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00043/FUL Mr & Mrs Jon Pettey Single storey rear extension to be used as 
residential annexe

4 Sherford Road Plymouth PL9 8DH Mr Mike Stone

05 April 2022 Page 9 of 16

P
age 101



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00167/FUL Mr Martin James Loft conversion with side dormer and 
additional window in west end elevation

26 Lippell Drive Plymouth PL9 9EL Mr Mike Stone

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00190/FUL Mr Peter Stapleton Single storey rear extension Flat 2, 10 Carlton Terrace Eldad Hill 
Plymouth PL1 5EA 

Miss Emily Godwin

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00192/FUL Mr Dominic Jennings Refurbishment works to building including 
new cladding to north-west and south-east 
elevations, window and doors alterations 
plus various other works to site

City College Plymouth, Kings Road 
Devonport Plymouth PL1 5QG

Ms Abbey Edwards

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00237/FUL Mr & Mrs Parkinson Single storey rear/side extension, inc. 
demolition of garage (re-submission of 
21/01584/FUL)

5 The Elms Plymouth PL3 4BR Mr Sam Lewis

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00240/FUL Mr D Amador Alterations to roof to provide a bedroom, 
including hip to gable alteration to rear 
extension (re-submission of 21/01919/FUL)

8 Gower Ridge Road Plymouth PL9 
9DR 

Miss Emily Godwin

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00387/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Gdynia Way Footbridge Plymouth  Mr Mike Stone

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00388/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Marsh Mills Footbridge Plymouth  Mr Mike Stone

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00389/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Crownhill Footbridge Pymouth Mr Mike Stone

05 April 2022 Page 10 of 16

P
age 102



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00390/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Roborough Footbridge Plymouth  Mr Mike Stone

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00391/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Outland Road Footbridge 
Plymouth 

Mr Mike Stone

24/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00392/ADV Plymouth City Council Display banners (2 in total) on footbridge to 
promote major city events.

Novorossiysk Road Footbridge 
Plymouth

Mr Mike Stone

25/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01396/FUL Mr Sean Cordon Demolition of existing garage and 
construction of 4-bed dwellinghouse with 
garage.

Land Adj. 54 Harwood Avenue 
Plymouth PL5 4NX 

Mr Paul McConville

25/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02199/S73 Charlotte Handy Variation of Condition  9 (Temporary 
Building - Re-instatement) to retain modular 
office buildings until 28/02/2027 of 
application 20/01606/FUL

Land To East Of 4 Basin, HMNB 
Devonport Plymouth PL1 4SG 

Mr Simon Osborne

25/03/2022 Refused 22/00024/ADV Joshua Chambers 1no. Digital poster 243 Old Laira Road Plymouth PL3 
6BW 

Ms Isobel Fardon

25/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00320/FUL Mr Andy Dunlop Single storey rear extension and first floor 
rear extension (re-submission of 
21/01445/FUL)

118A Dunraven Drive Plymouth 
PL6 6AT 

Mr Paul McConville

28/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00107/FUL Charlotte Handy Addition of third storey to modular office 
building, (to be retained until 28 February 
2027).

Land To East Of 4 Basin  Devonport 
Royal Dockyard Plymouth PL1 4SG 

Mr Simon Osborne

05 April 2022 Page 11 of 16

P
age 103



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

28/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00153/FUL Mr Rob McKee Single storey front extension 41 Holtwood Road Plymouth PL6 
7HU 

Mr Macauley Potter

28/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00208/FUL Mrs M Harvey Alteration of rear balcony staircase 3 Alfred Street Plymouth PL1 2RP Mr Sam Lewis

29/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02009/S73 Mr Tom Johnson Variation of Condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
application 16/01875/FUL

21 Meadow Park Plymouth PL9 
9NY 

Ms Abbey Edwards

29/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00168/FUL Mr & Mrs Kawao Single storey side extension to adjoin existing 
rear outbuildings, front porch extension, 
conversion of hip to gable and rear dormer, 
window to side elevation, raised rear 
platform and steps

13 Lyndhurst Road Plymouth PL2 
3DJ 

Miss Emily Godwin

29/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00209/LBC Mrs M Harvey Alteration of rear balcony staircase 3 Alfred Street Plymouth PL1 2RP Mr Sam Lewis

29/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00277/FUL Sally-Dee Owen Two-part single storey rear extensions 7 Kingswood Park Avenue 
Plymouth PL3 4NQ 

Miss Emily Godwin

29/03/2022 Refused 22/00424/AMD Mr Angelos Sanders Non-material amendment: Change the 
entrance to the building from the south 
elevation to the west elevation. Remove the 
door on south elevation and make store 
cupboard into a single door with step access 
for application 21/01616/FUL

17 Thorn Park Plymouth PL3 4TG Miss Emily Godwin

30/03/2022 Refused 22/00090/FUL Mr & Mrs Healey 1no. front box dormer and replacement of 
rear flat roof covering

85 Dunraven Drive Plymouth PL6 
6AT 

Mr Macauley Potter

05 April 2022 Page 12 of 16

P
age 104



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

30/03/2022 Refused 22/00140/FUL Mr White Detached garage 47 Beaumaris Road Plymouth PL3 
5SB 

Mr Mike Stone

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00178/TPO Mr Ron Purdie Yew (T2) - Reduce height of tree by 1m and 
prune in sides of tree by 0.5m. Sycamore 
(T3) - Reduce the height by 4m and prune in 
side by 2m or, thin canopy by 15-20% and 
prune back low branches on house side by 
2m. Sycamore (T4) - Re-reduce the tree by 
3m and prune in branches on the house side 
by 1m and remove all the small lower 
branches up to the crown brake or, only to 
prune branches  away from the property by 
1m and the removal of the small lower 
branches.

9 Jellicoe Road Plymouth PL5 3UU Emily Browne

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00217/TCO Mr Nigel Coles Holm Oaks (G1) - Reduce the group by 5m to 
manageable hedge height. 2x Holme Oaks 
(G2) - Reduce by 3m to maintain safety due 
to precarious position on top of wall. Holme 
Oaks (G3) - Reduce by 3m to reduce sail 
effect and to maintain safety of hedge/trees.

Rockville, Seymour Road 
Mannamead Plymouth PL3 5AR 

Mr Chris Dawson

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00232/TCO Mrs Mary Coslett Cherry (T1) - Fell. 2x Sycamore (T2 & T3) - 
Reduce crown height upto 3 m, cutting no 
greater than 75mm and 1.5-2m lateral 
reduction cutting no greater than 50mm. 2x 
Alder (T4 & T5) - Reduce lateral branches 
back over boundary line cut to main stem, 
cutting no greater than 75mm. Pittosporum 
(T6) - Reduce vertical height upto 3m, back to 
previous points ad trim lateral growth by 
30mm.

Blue Haze, Church Row Lane 
Plymouth PL5 4NZ 

Emily Browne

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00233/TCO Mrs Naso Fir (T1) - Fell, due to decline and possible 
Phytophthora.

First Floor Flat, 79 Mannamead 
Road Plymouth PL3 4SX 

Emily Browne

05 April 2022 Page 13 of 16

P
age 105



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00234/TCO Mrs Naso Ash (T2) - High Pollard, reduction in height 
upto 3m, and 2.5m lateral finish height 8-
10m approx, due to presence of Ash Die back. 
4x Cypress (G1) - Stems out front, fell, 1 has 
died and the others are past their best.

Ground Floor Flat, 89 Mannamead 
Road Plymouth PL3 4SX 

Emily Browne

30/03/2022 Agreed 22/00285/CDMLB Mr C Knapman Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 21/00180/LBC

Down Horn Farm  Horn Lane 
Plymouth PL9 9BR

Ms Abbey Edwards

30/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00287/FUL Mr Gareth Rice Single storey rear extension and loft 
conversion with three rear dormers and hip 
to gable roof extension.

144 Pomphlett Road Plymouth PL9 
7BS 

Mr Mike Stone

30/03/2022 Agreed 22/00317/CDMLB Mr Sean Harrison Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 21/01553/LBC

60 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LA 

Mrs Karen Gallacher

31/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/01813/FUL H3G (UK) Ltd Installation of 20m monopole, 9 no. 
apertures, 3no. equipment cabinets, 
alongside the relocation of 1no. equipment 
cabinet and the removal of the existing 
12.5m monopole and 3no. equipment 
cabinets.

Trelawney Place St Budeaux 
Plymouth PL5 1NA  

Mr Paul McConville

31/03/2022 Refused 21/01978/AMD Plymouth City Council Non-material Amendment: Front hedge 
species altered to different type and pavings 
to rear and side changed to match front for 
application 20/02012/FUL

Public Conveniences Adj Hoe 
Lodge Restaurant Hoe Road 
Plymouth PL1 2PA   

Mr Chris Cummings

31/03/2022 Agreed 21/02242/CDM Brady Construction 
Services Limited

Condition Discharge: Condition 16 of 
application 20/00519/FUL

Plot B240, Plymouth International 
Business Park William Prance Road 
Plymouth  

Mr Daniel Thorning

31/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/02265/FUL Tilstone Industrial 
Limited

External alterations and new and 
replacement goods doors

Unit H1, 85 St Modwen Road 
Plymouth PL6 8LH 

Ms Isobel Fardon

05 April 2022 Page 14 of 16

P
age 106



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

31/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00159/FUL Mrs C Evans First floor rear extension 18 Ferrers Road Plymouth PL5 1TX Mr Macauley Potter

31/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00184/FUL Mrs Rachel Clay Single storey side extension 25 Hill Close Plymouth PL7 1QG Ms Isobel Fardon

31/03/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00228/S73 Church Of Scientology 
Religious Education 
College Inc.

Variation of Condition 12 (Window Details) of 
application 21/00570/S73 to revert back to 
the originally proposed window details (as 
per applica on 19/00271/FUL) Refer to 
covering letter (18.1252)

Royal Fleet Club, 12 Morice Square 
Plymouth PL1 4PQ 

Mr Jon Fox

31/03/2022 Agreed 22/00284/CDM Mr C Knapman Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 
application 21/00179/FUL

Down Horn Farm  Horn Lane 
Plymouth PL9 9BR

Ms Abbey Edwards

01/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

21/00984/FUL Mr Paul Inch Change of use to commercial kitchen inc. 
extraction ventilation

Atlantic Building  Queen Annes 
Battery Plymouth PL4 0LP

Ms Bethany German

01/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00130/FUL Beverley Vara Subdivision into 2no separate retail spaces 
and removal of separating wall between units 
4 and 5

Unit 3, Jubilee Buildings Peverell 
Park Road Plymouth PL2 3PG 

Ms Bethany German

01/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00179/FUL Mr Mark Lauderdale Rear balcony. 337 Fort Austin Avenue Plymouth 
PL6 5TG 

Mr Macauley Potter

01/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00189/FUL Mr & Mrs Young Two-storey side extension and rear raised 
balcony

56 Upland Drive Plymouth PL6 6BD Mr Macauley Potter

05 April 2022 Page 15 of 16

P
age 107



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

04/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00173/FUL Mr Justin Bailey Two-storey rear extension 16 Oak Drive Plymouth PL6 5TZ Ms Isobel Fardon

04/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00216/FUL Mr Ben Kelly Single storey rear extension and raised patio 
(part retrospective)

37 Tavistock Road Plymouth PL5 
3AF 

Ms Isobel Fardon

04/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00249/FUL Mr & Mrs Channing Two-storey side and rear extension. 15 Barndale Crescent Plymouth 
PL6 6PJ 

Mr Macauley Potter

04/04/2022 Permission Granted 
in Principle

22/00254/PIP Mr & Mrs Corish Permission in principle for a detached (self-
build) dwelling, parking and garden and 
replacement parking

162 Dunstone View Plymouth PL9 
8QL 

Ms Abbey Edwards

04/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00297/FUL Mr & Mrs Morbey Loft conversion with dormer and gable end 
conversion.

14 Raymond Way Plymouth PL7 
4EQ 

Mr Macauley Potter

04/04/2022 Granted 
Conditionally 

22/00327/FUL Mr William Newbury Two-storey front extension, minor reduction 
in overall height to main dwelling with new 
external finish and construction of front 
garage/reconfiguration of driveway.

Chrikama, 7 Station Road 
Tamerton Foliot Plymouth PL5 4LD 

Mr Macauley Potter

05 April 2022 Page 16 of 16

P
age 108



Planning Appeal Decisions between 07/03/2022 and 05/04/2022

Date of Decision 16/03/2022

Ward Drake

Application Number 21/00800/FUL

Decision Appeal Dismissed

Address of Site 21 - 23 Houndiscombe Road Plymouth PL4 6HG 

Proposal Conversion of existing garage to a two-storey dwelling with associated external 
amenity space (re-submission of 20/01342/FUL)

Appeal Process Written Representations

Officers Name Ms Abbey Edwards

Synopsis of Appeals The Inspector supported the Council's view that the proposed dwelling would fail to create adequate living conditions for future users, with 
reference to outlook and daylight. The main concerns being a ground floor kitchen and first floor bedroom but also gave reference to non-
habitable rooms including a u lity and en-suite. As such, the applica on was considered to conflict with JLP Policies DEV1 and DEV10.   The 
Inspector did not support the Council's view that the proposed dwelling would have an unacceptable impact on the character and appearance 
of the laneway. The Inspector noted the dwelling would take design cues from existing residential properties (Bantham Mews) and would read 
as a proportionate addition to the building frontage, causing neither aesthetic harm or disruption to the character of the lane. As such the 
Inspector concluded that the proposal would comply with the design aims of JLP Policies DEV10 and DEV20.

05 April 2022 Page 1 of 1

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	 Voting Schedule

	6.1 79 Dean Hill, Plymouth, PL9 9AF - 22/00195/FUL
	6.2 Land at Sugar Quay, East Quay, Sutton Harbour, Plymouth - 20/02046/FUL
	7 Planning Enforcement
	8 Planning Application Decisions Issued
	9 Appeal Decisions

